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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-K

(Mark One)

ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT
OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2015

or

(| TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE
ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to

Commission file number: 001-34720

TELENAV, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its chaefr)

Delaware 77-0521800

(State or other jurisdiction of (I.LR.S. Employer
incorporation or organization) Identification Number)

950 De Guigne Drive

Sunnyvale, California 94085
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(408) 245-3800
(Registrant’s telephone number, including area code

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(b) afie Act:

Title of each class Name of each exchange on which registered

Common Stock, $.001 Par Value per Share The NASDAQ Global Market

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12(g) tfie Act:
None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a welbwn seasoned issuer, as defined in Rule 40%edSéturities Act of 1933, as
amended. YesO No [

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is notuieed to file reports pursuant to Section 13 orti®ecl5(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, as amended. Yé€sl No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant € filed all reports required to be filed by Secti® or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange



Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (ordiach shorter period that the registrant was reduodile such reports), and (2) has b
subject to such filing requirements for the pastl@gs. Yes No O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant lsmstted electronically and posted on its corpo¥alb site, if any, every Interactive
Data File required to be submitted and posted auntsio Rule 405 of Regulation Sduring the preceding 12 months (or for such shrqrerioc
that the registrant was required to submit and poch files). YeskX No O

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquilers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is oontained herein, and will not be
contained, to the best of the registrant’s knowéedig definitive proxy or information statementsanporated by reference in Part Ill of this
Form 10-K or any amendment to this Form 10-Kl

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantlarge accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, m-accelerated filer, or a smaller reporting
company. See the definitions of “large accelerdited” “accelerated filer” and “smaller reportirmmpany” in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange

Act.
Large accelerated filer [ Accelerated filer
Non-accelerated filer O (Do not check if a smaller reporting company) Smaller reporting company O

Indicate by check mark whether the registrantsiell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exge Act). YesO No

The aggregate market value of voting and non-vatimgmon equity held by non-affiliates of the regiat as of December 31, 2014, the
last business day of the registrant’s most recarttiyipleted second fiscal quarter, was approxim&&88 million (basedn a closing sale prit
of $6.67 per share as reported for the NASDAQ Gldksrket on December 31, 2014). For purposes afdhiculation, shares of common
stock held by officers and directors and shareofmon stock held by persons who hold more than aD#te outstanding common stock of
the registrant have been excluded from this calicudecause such persons may be deemed to batefilThis determination of executive
officer or affiliate status is not necessarily aclosive determination for other purposes.

The number of shares of the registrant's Commonks®.001 par value per share, outstanding asraf 30, 2015 was 40,536,912.

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the registrant’s definitive Proxy Statnt relating to its 2015 Annual Meeting of Stodkleos are incorporated by reference
into Part Ill of this Form 10-K where indicated.
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Special Note Regarding Forward-looking Statementsral Industry Data

This Form 10-K contains forward-looking statemehtst are based on our management's beliefs anthpens and on information currently available to
our management. The forward-looking statementgaméained principally in the sections entitled “Rfactors,” “Management's discussion and analysis o
financial condition and results of operations,” dBdsiness.” Forward-looking statements includeinfation concerning our possible or assumed future
results of operations, business strategies, fimgngians, competitive position, industry environm@otential growth opportunities and the effedts o
competition. Forward-looking statements includéesteents that are not historical facts and can éetifled by terms such as “anticipates,” “belieVésould,”
“seeks,” “estimates,” “expects,” “intends,” “mayplans,” “potential,” “predicts,” “projects,” “shdd,” “will,” “would” or similar expressions and the negat
of those terms.

Forward-looking statements involve known and unknaisks, uncertainties and other factors that neayse our actual results, performance or
achievements to be materially different from anyfa results, performance or achievements exprassiatplied by the forward-looking statements. We
discuss these risks in greater detail in “Riskdegitand elsewhere in this Form 10-K. Given theseeutainties, you should not place undue reliamcthese
forward-looking statements. Also, forward-lookirtgtements represent our management's beliefs anthptions only as of the date of this Form 10-K.

Except as required by law, we assume no obligatarpdate these forward-looking statements, optiate the reasons actual results could differ
materially from those anticipated in these forwboking statements, even if new information becomegslable in the future. You should read this FAGAK
completely and with the understanding that ouradtuture results may be materially different frarhat we expect.

Corporate information

Our predecessor company, TeleNav, Inc., incorpdrat¢he State of Delaware in 1999 and we incorjgaréan the State of Delaware in 2009 as TNAV
Holdings, Inc. Pursuant to stockholder approvateineed in December 2009, our predecessor companyetigvith and into us on April 15, 2010. As theitgr
surviving the merger, upon completion of the merger changed our name to TeleNav, Inc. In Nover@bé®, we changed our name to Telenav, Inc. Our
executive offices are located at 950 De Guigne &r8unnyvale, California 94085, and our telephamalver is (408) 245-3800. Our website address is
www.telenav.com. The information on, or that carabeessed through, our website is not part offtbrsn 10-K.

We file or furnish periodic reports, including aamnual reports on Form 10-K, our quarterly report$-orm 10-Q and our current reports on Form 8-K,
our proxy statements and other information with$leeurities and Exchange Commission, or the SE€h 8ports, proxy statements and other information
may be obtained by visiting the Public ReferencerRaf the SEC at 100 F Street, NE, Washington, RG549, by calling the SEC at 1-800-SEC-0330 or by
sending an electronic message to the SEC at pofai@sec.gov. In addition, the SEC maintains a vtelfgiww.sec.gov) that contains reports, proxy and
information statements and other information remaydssuers that file electronically. Our repofsyxy statements and other information are alsoemad
available, free of charge, on our investor relaiarbsite at http://investor.telenav.com/financidile as soon as reasonably practicable after vetrefgcally
file such information with the SEC. The informatipasted on our website is not incorporated ints Barm 10-K.

In this Form 10-K, “we,” “us” and “our” refer to Tenav, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

The names Always There Navigation™, Chatbaka™, &wiith Friends™, Evie™, Geobehavioral™, Geocookie®gets you and gets you there™,
Goby®, HopOver™, LivingMap™, Location Index ™, Laizan Score ™, MyTies™, MyMileage™, ONMYWAY®, RealReh™, RoadAssist™, Scout®,
Sipity®, skobbler®, Situational Targeting™, Smaldriher™, Telenav®, Telenav Connected Service™ ,nesldRIVE™, Telenav GPS Navigator™,
Telenav Navigator™, Telenav Scout™ , Telenav ShotguThinknear®, TrueDelta™, and Whereboutz®, ad aethe Telenav, Scout, skobbler and
Thinknear logos are our trademarks. All other tradiks and trade names appearing in this Form 1fekha property of their respective owners.
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PART I.

ITEM 1. BUSINESS
Overview

Telenav is a leading provider of location-basedfpien services. These services consist of our aative and mobile navigation platform
and our advertising delivery platform. Our auto amobile navigation platform allows Telenav to delienhanced location-based services to
auto manufacturers, developers and end users thraargous distribution channels, including wirelessriers. Our advertising delivery
platform delivers highly targeted advertising seeg leveraging our location expertise. We repoeraiing results in three business segments:
automotive, advertising and mobile navigation.

For our automotive segment customers, we offelaotw and mobile navigation platform services toislehmanufacturers and original
equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, for distributiath their vehicles. Our primary automotive custarteedate, Ford Motor Company, or
Ford, currently distributes our embedded, or onrthoproduct as an optional feature with all ofitedels in the U.S. Our automotive products
are now included on models manufactured in the,\C&nada, Mexico, Europe and China, as well agaidfan models in South America,
Australia and New Zealand. In January 2014 we edtarto an agreement with General Motors Corpomatio GM, for integration of our on-
board and connected navigation solutions in itsoles, which we expect to launch in model year 2@ar relationship with GM also includes
our mobile phone-based wireless connectivity, ought-in, services for vehicles. In January 2018 Idunched the new version of its OnStar
RemoteLink® mobile application powered by our logatbased services platform, which includes mapping one-box search. In July 2015,
we and Toyota Motor Corporation, or Toyota, ann@eha partnership for brought-in navigation serviebgre our Scout GPS Link will be
available first in the model year 2016 Toyota Taapand subsequently in other Entune™ Audio Plusppgd model year 2016 Toyota
vehicles in the United States. We believe our nys&s a supplier of cloud-based navigation servizesides a unique advantage in the
automotive navigation marketplace over our compitit

For our advertising segment customers, we believeadvertising delivery platform offers significaanidience reach, sophisticated
targeting capabilities and the ability to deliveterractive and engaging ad experiences to conswnétseir mobile devices. We are experts in
location-based advertising and believe we offequeivalue to brick-and-mortar and brand advertigersugh our location targeting
capabilities. Our technology focuses on managiegctimplexity and scale associated with mobile looadata to deliver better mobile
campaigns for our advertising partners. We delimebile advertisements by leveraging our proprieiasyouse ad serving technology. Our
inventory, or accessible market, is comprised ofifands of mobile applications and mobile websitasare accessed through programmatic
real-time bidding, or RTB, tools.

We derive revenue from automobile manufacturers@BMs, advertisers and advertising agencies, arelesis carriers. We receive
revenue from automobile manufacturers whose vehidatain our proprietary software and are abbctiess our personalized navigation
services. These manufacturers have typically nmtiged us with any volume or revenue guaranteeadtition, we have a growing busines
mobile advertising where our customers are primadlvertising agencies, which represent nationdlragional brands, and channel partners,
which work closely with local and small businessextisers. We also derive revenue from our partipsswith wireless carriers, who pay u:
enable their subscribers to use our mobile navagatervices. Some of these wireless carriershall tsubscribers on a monthly recurring basis
and the number of those monthly recurring substsit@ewhich we provide services continues to degliesulting in substantial declines in our
revenue from wireless carriers.

We generate revenue from the delivery of customszdtivare and royalties from the distribution astbustomized software in
automotive navigation applications. For exampledRgilizes our on-board automotive navigation pratdn its Ford SYNC platform. Our
automobile manufacturer and OEM customers payrogalty fee as the software is reproduced for ifegtan in vehicles with our automotive
navigation solutions. In addition, we earn a omeetroyalty for each new vehicle owner who downlod@sGM OnStar RemoteLink®
application, whereby we provide enhanced searchhibities for contracted service periods.

We generate revenue from advertising network sesvibrough the delivery of search and display abieg impressions based on the
specific terms of the advertising contract.

We also generate revenue from subscriptions tormlnile navigation services. End users with subsonp for our services are generally
billed for our services through their wireless @&aror through mobile application stores and
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marketplaces. Our wireless carrier customers pdyassd on several different revenue models, inefu¢l) a revenue sharing arrangement
may include a minimum fee per end user, (2) a mgmhannual subscription fee per end user, obé¥ed on usage.

Ouir fiscal year ends June 30. In this Form 10-Kyefer to the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, 2BA45 and 2016 as fiscal 2013, fiscal
2014, fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2016, respectivelyr ©tal revenue was $191.8 million in fiscal 20$350.3 million in fiscal 2014 and $160.2
million in fiscal 2015. Our net income decreasefr$13.1 million in fiscal 2013 to a net loss 02%$6) million in fiscal 2014 and a net loss of
$(23.1) million in fiscal 2015. On April 16, 201®&e completed the sale of our enterprise busineagh@d party. The results of operations of
our enterprise business have been classified asrisued operations in our statement of operationall periods presented through fiscal
2013. All information herein includes only resuttsm continuing operations, unless otherwise noted.

Auto and Mobile Navigation Services Platfor

Our map and navigation platform was originally deped to target mobile devices with real-time dii@ts and information about places
near the user’s mobile device. More recently, weehavolved our platform so that it is primarilydated to deliver solutions for automotive
manufacturers and OEMs. We have also enhancedbuiofis to make them better suited for the inegrerience.

We have developed proprietary technologies thablenss to provide location-based mapping and néeigaervices. These technologies
include both client-based and cloud-based servidasclient technologies include a navigation anitignce engine and tools allowing us to
efficiently develop and deploy new applicationsrobile phones and in vehicles. Our back-end clandises technologies allow us to deliver
real-time location-based data for users and thamtlypsoftware developers that adopt our softwaxeld@ment kit, or SDK, and application
protocol interfaces, or APls. We have developeéxilile platform that allows us to use multipleaatoviders for navigation, maps, points of
interest, or POIs, traffic and other location-basedtent services.

In January 2014, we acquired skobbler GmbH, or Blesba leading provider of technologies that ereathe Open Street Map, or OSM,
mapping data. By combining these technologies wfitter proprietary Telenav technologies, we havesldged a range of OSM capabilities
that allow us to use these crowd sourced maps éoe mdvanced services such as navigation. We ledfiat focusing our efforts on OSM will
better position us relative to our competitors argand the nature and extent of our product offgsrin

Our software and client application developmentpsses, which include design, porting and pubbogbirocesses, allow us to extend
services effectively and efficiently to differenttamobiles across various automotive platformsiarzhr electronic systems to meet the
requirements of automobile manufacturers and OEvisdir on-board and brought-in automotive products.

Our backend cloud technologies include our Geographic mfttion System, or GIS, engines for local searclteveecognition, geo ale
and advanced geo data aggregation, traffic anda &mlvertising platform. We have developed custeohivoice recognition technology built
upon a third party voice recognition engine to sehe specific needs of navigation services custerivée leverage our existing back-end
cloud technologies for deployment to automobile afacturer and OEM solution applications. We utilezésting technology to expand the
connectivity and service offerings for in-car expaces, including seamless interaction betweerusads' mobile devices and on-board
automobile systems such as displays, sensors afia faun our automotive brought-in navigation soduns.

We have developed a search technology that foarsegormation with localized relevance and accyracaddress the needs of
automotive and mobile phone users. Our proprie& &/ provides fast route and map generation whiteniping the route based on current
traffic conditions. Because our proprietary GlSadditly uses computing resources, these efficenenable us to scale our servers more
economically for our automotive brought-in solutgon

In addition to our automotive navigation serviass,offer our map and navigation platform to molpl®ne users in a number of ways.
We distribute our services through our wirelessieapartners, including AT&T Mobility LLC, or AT&T and directly to consumers through
mobile application stores and marketplaces. Weildige our premium services under wireless cabtands (or “white label” brands). We
provide our basic services directly to mobile phaeers for free and provide these users with tip®dpnity to purchase premium versions of
the product. We refer to the free to premium disttion as the “freemium” model of distribution. Cluee products are designed to be
monetized through delivery of advertising to molgitene users through our application. Our succébstie freemium model depends upon
our ability to generate a substantial active usesebplace ads to those mobile phone users anértahgse users from free to premium
services.
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Telenav's Advertising Delivery Platform

Our advertising platform allows us to deliver meldldvertisements on behalf of our advertising tdiém consumers based specifically or
the location of the consumer. We have developefritary technologies that enable us to deliveation-based advertising across all types o
mobile devices at scale. Our platform integratestion-enabled mobile advertising inventory withuamber of contextual and location-based
triggers to allow us to target mobile users basedah location data. We have demonstrated thgetarg based on location data is more likely
to engage consumers. Our platform permits us tabildeliver ad impressions through advertisindharges in less than 30 milliseconds and
to do so on billions of potential impressions eveay. In addition, we have the ability to target mobile campaigns based on a variety of
criteria beyond location. Our platform was buil@vide scalability through the use of machineeoladecision processes, which allows us to
execute thousands of campaigns, each with comalgeting criteria across multiple inventory sources

Services and Product
Automotive Navigation Services and Produ
Industry background

We believe the automobile industry is undergoirsigaificant change in the way that it develops aoduires technology for vehicles.
This shift is impacting both the auto OEMs andtieeone suppliers to automobile manufacturerstdiiisally a car included a collection of
relatively distinct functional capabilities, for @xple the radio, the air conditioning system amditaking system. Each system operated
independently and thus could be provided by a @ffethird party supplier. More recently, this gduy-piece approach to assembling cars ha
been replaced with a much more comprehensive astdragtic approach, which integrates a number tini@logy solutions within a vehicle.
This transition is evident in the changes to ininéstainment solutions, of which consumers are aeding better integrated and more feature
rich experiences. This transition has impactediavery of navigation services in the vehicle. kmtance, automobile manufacturers have
begun introducing lower priced navigation unitaantral component of on-board entertainment afadmation systems rather than as
standalone units and are making navigation stanolardore vehicles. These integrated units extegdrzbtraditional navigation units by
combining audio and voice capabilities with wiralegtwork connectivity to deliver real time locatigervices, such as traffic, weather
information and other connected data.

Automotive navigation systems are typically on-fabar brought-in. On-board services are the tradéticervice type with all key
navigation elements of the system residing in tireas a self-contained service along with the edlabftware and content, with the system no
requiring access to the Internet or wireless neta/tm function. Brought-in systems are deliveretkleissly through a mobile phone or other
device, such as a wireless modem, but use theicgraal electronic systems such as the videcescaad audio capabilities. In some cases
on-board service is enhanced by the delivery dhgeflive” data, such as current traffic condittodelivered wirelessly to the on-board systen
for display, which results in a type of hybrid seevcapability.

Industry challenges

The automobile industry is experiencing significaahsumer demand for in-car connected servicedtiregfrom the availability of
mobile phone-based Internet services which hawet mssumer expectations. For example, currentoamebnavigation systems, or navigation
systems that do not communicate with the Inteanet Jimited to the vehicle in which they are inkdl The mapping and POI data is static,
requiring time, cost and effort to update. Tradiily such systems have been sold as an optioairtefor a one-time charge and as a result
suffer from relatively low rates of adoption by somers. Automobile manufacturers that can enhdrecatcar experience with mobile
connectivity and improved infotainment capabiliteae finding greater acceptance from consumershieudelivery of these capabilities is
technically challenging and not a traditional pErthe automobile manufacturer's capabilities. Thiallenge is driving automobile
manufacturers to seek new partners to create diffiated in-car experiences. Automobile manufacsurad OEMs want to provide connected
navigation services in a way that they can be gaéely by the driver “keeping hands on the whedl eyes on the road” and effectively
integrate with large in-vehicle display or vehisfgeakers, voice recognition and location sensoraddlition, the automobile industry has seen
the recent introduction of in-car platforms anddarcts such as Apple's CarPlay and Google's autatines, including Open Automotive
Alliance, which take control of the product andtfdam away from the automobile manufacturer or O&hdl could diminish brand loyalty to
the automobile manufacturer.

Our competitive strengths
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Automobile manufacturers procure the various elamefieach car that they manufacture from a nurabsuppliers directly and through
OEMs. We work directly with automobile manufactseuch as Ford, GM and Toyota, as well as througM€) such as Delphi Automotive
Systems LLC, or Delphi. Our strong track record@®nnected and personalized navigation serviassdar to mobile phones and our history
of working with large wireless carriers have praddis with skills and technology that are wellediito meet the demands faced by today's
automobile manufacturers. The sales cycle rela@ditomobile manufacturers is long and consultaive requires direct and continuous
management of the automobile manufacturer and OEMgters to succeed in securing business. Oftemdlb@mobile manufacturer uses the
sales process to help it to define the ultimatelpcbthat it chooses to deliver to its end usems\vay that not only enhances customer
experience but also allows the automobile manufacto differentiate itself from the competitionuQsuccess with brought-in and on-board
navigation at Ford and GM, and the continuing shigmphasis to connected services has demonstretesirength of our offerings to other
automobile manufacturers and OEMs. It is our abilitbring innovative in-car user experiences #ratoptimized for the driving experience
that sets us apart from other providers of phorsedafferings, such as Apple's CarPlay and Gooaletsinitiatives, including Open
Automotive Alliance.

Our automotive services and products

We entered the automotive navigation services legsiim fiscal 2008, initially with Ford, and oursti brought-in navigation product was
launched in Ford's 2010 model year vehicles. Sinaetime we have been working with automobile nfacwrers and OEMs to provide our
mobile navigation services and products worldwitetgh on-board and brought-in systems. Our tedyyopowers automotive navigation
services and products that provide accurate, @asyd and connected navigation services to dratemdow cost. We currently provide our on-
board GPS navigation software for Ford's secondlaindl generation SYNC™ system under an agreeméhtRord that expires in December
2017. This product is enhanced by Ford with thévdef of real-time traffic and historical informati to help drivers search, find and drive to
places more reliably and efficiently. In Januarnt20we announced that we entered into a contrabt@// to provide worldwide embedded
and connected navigation services beginning witcsenodel year 2017 vehicles. The agreement careisitial three-year production cycle,
which we expect to commence with select model 2847 vehicles. Our relationship with GM also indadroughin services for vehicles. |
January 2015, GM launched the new version of itSt@nRemoteLink® mobile application powered by lmagation-based services platform,
which includes mapping and one-box search. Undetaims of the GM agreement, we expect our embeadeadonnected services to suppor
navigation in more than 100 countries. In July 204& and Toyota announced a partnership for breinghavigation services where our Scout
GPS Link will be available first in the model ye616 Toyota Tacoma, and subsequently in other EituAudio Plus equipped model year
2016 Toyota vehicles in the United States. In aalditwe work with Delphi on white label versionsmfr on-board automotive platform for
three vehicles in North America. In January 2018lpbi launched our product in China with Great Wtitors, a major Chinese automobile
manufacturer.

Our services and products allow our automobile rfeaiurers and OEMs the flexibility to use the fitalhge of technologies to deliver on-
board or brought-in services, as well as to enhanc@n-board navigation services with live datehsas traffic, fuel prices, fresh maps and
POls for enhanced user experiences by drivergdditian, as the market transitions to cars that'akgays connected,” we expect our service
offerings to become more personalized.

Platform and architecture

Our offerings for on-board or brought-in automotnavigation services are tailored to meet the requents of the automobile
manufacturers and OEMs while leveraging our expentiith respect to client design and functional@yr automotive navigation products a
offer the capability to connect to our auto and iteobavigation platform for updated data and sexsidVe have created an automotive
reference product, or ARP, which allows us to simaanufacturers and OEMs our entire product portfdllee ARP incorporates our auto and
mobile navigation platform capabilities as wellcasnected services. Auto manufacturers or OEMs timety elect to configure the ARP to
their needs as an on-board system or an on-boatemsywith connectivity to live data services. Imiéidn, we have designed custom versions
of our navigation products to be exclusively cldaased solutions for those manufacturers or OEMssgeonnected solution only services.

Advertising Network Service
Industry background

The convergence of several factors is fundamentalanging the way mobile users consume conteri@ninobile devices and has
created a significant opportunity for mobile adigéng. It has become possible to deliver innovatineractive and engaging consumer media
experiences on a wide variety of mobile devicesmishimers are increasingly using their mobile devigstead of their personal computers and
other traditional media to access content, padityhile they
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are on the go. The convergence of better mobilé&cds\and faster connectivity has enabled develdparseate, and consumers to interact v
content that is instantly delivered to mobile desgic

Mobile advertising provides advertisers with a nemaf benefits over traditional advertising media #Chbased online advertising, su
as anytime, anywhere access, personalization,docttrgeting and relevance. The development ofitbbile advertising ecosystem has
mirrored the development for online PC-based adiegt. However, a key differentiator of mobile adising is the ability to identify the
location of the user. Location is a powerful indareof an individual's interests and likely actiofiberefore, advertising delivered to mobile
devices has the potential to increase the impattelevance of an ad to the user. With mobile atbirg, an ad can be targeted to a consume
who is in close proximity to a specific locationich as a retail store, or to a consumer who mayitivan area that advertisers wish to target
based on demographics or other characteristicerGlve benefits of mobile advertising as compasedaditional offline advertising and PC-
based online advertising, we expect and marketestuddicate that marketers will continue to stiiftir advertising budgets to mobile.

Industry challenges

The mobile advertising marketplace is a dynamist ggowing industry with many new participants. &disers are transitioning
significant portions of their marketing budgetgtie mobile marketplace where many of the traditiapproaches to engaging customers are
different and the means to reach their customersgmts new challenges. These advertisers needafoldoéo conduct ad campaigns that act
favorable return on investment, or ROI. ROI typligéhcludes elements related to message reachemacelitargeting capabilities and campaign
effectiveness measurements. The mobile advertisgadtetplace is comprised of application developausertising networks, mobile agenc
advertising exchanges and demand-side platformgngrathers. This environment is becoming nearbfiesively “programmatic,” meaning
that advertisers are buying impressions acrossaggas in real time based on their desired audi@iieevarious market participants tend to
focus on specific elements of the marketplace awuth ¢ry to deliver unique technology offerings $siat advertisers. Some focus on targeting
others audience data and still others, includinpHriear, on the location information that makesrtiebile marketplace distinct from all other
advertising opportunities. Tracking the performaatads in applications and user interactions witise ads is difficult and requires signific
technological capabilities and know-how.

Our competitive strengths

Our mobile advertising solution combines the lamgd growing pool of mobile impressions marked waitation information, a unique
ability to focus on particular audiences, and dyicamser content customizable based on location.

We have developed a number of techniques that albto differentiate between ad impressions thatide highly-accurate location data
and those that are inaccurate. Our proprietary imt&core Index measures the accuracy of locatifmmmation within advertising
impressions and the most recent index showed that3¥% of impressions were highly accurate. Oulitglio effectively filter out inaccurate
data is a key competitive advantage in the ragtifting mobile advertising space.

Because of our ability to identify real-time andtbrical location data, as well as our abilityrigést contextual targeting data, we can
focus our ads on specified demographics and adeerdiefined customer segments. For example, arlagid in a geographic area where it
happens to be raining can provide a rain-relatessage. An ad for sunblock can be limited to ard#savhigh level of sunlight and ultraviolet
radiation. In addition, it is our ability to do hat significant scale that allows advertisersetich their target audience.

Our services and products

Our advertising services are built around the Bhié provide sophisticated location-based adviedign a manner that allows advertisers
to connect with consumers on mobile devices. Fampte:

Creatives We run a wide range of creatives, including statynamic and rich media content. Our creativeved| national advertisers to
easily “localize” their content without having teeate thousands of individual campaigns. Our aredticuses on leveraging location data to
incorporate local context such as distance to @ $tzation, information on where to purchase alpob or nearby events that could impact the
potential consumer.

Targeting- We offer a variety of targeting tools to our adigng clients to improve the performance of thenpaigns. Our targeting
includes both audience-focused tools centered achieg specific customer segments and proximitgthasols focused on driving foot traffic
to retail locations and other direct-response eelanetrics.
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Reports and metricsWe offer clients a broad range of reporting gdédws them to monitor all their advertising cangya and explains
clearly what is happening at any particular paintime with respect to any of the campaigns beimg Our platform provides advertisers wit
rich set of analytics and insights.

Platform and architecture

Our mobile advertising platform is hosted in theud, primarily by Amazon Web Services, or AWS. \Wedrage the flexibility and
scalability of these cloud service providers to hwag scale requirements.

Infrastructure and operations
Auto and Mobile Navigation Services

Our end users rely on our services primarily whitethe road. As a result, we strive to ensure titicuous availability of our services
through our high quality hosting platform and opiersal excellence.

Data center facilities We have developed our infrastructure with thel gbanaximizing the availability of our applicatisnwhich are
hosted on a highly scalable and available netwachtied in two AWS facilities in Oregon and Virginia

We have entered into hosted service agreementsAVMtS for primary resource capacity in addition teatster recovery capacity.
Pursuant to the service agreements, AWS provigestefacility space, power, cooling and Interneineativity for a term of one year, and
such agreements are subject to renewal.

Advertising network services

We have developed our advertising network seniitfeastructure with the goal of maximizing the marhance of our platform. Our
platform is hosted on a highly scalable and avéglaletwork provided by AWS. Our advertising platfohas been designed to place significan
focus on the location of any particular unit ofgdésy advertising made available for purchase ohtie& bidding ad exchanges. This focus on
location provides our product with the speed anmhbdity to more rapidly bid on the inventory thve¢ believe is best suited for our customers
advertising needs. Our use of AWS provides sigaifidlexibility with respect to service capabiltty meet any peaks in demand from our
advertisers.

Research and developme

Our research and development organization is ressiplerfor the design, development and testing ofseuvices and products. Our
engineering team has deep expertise and experiei@®eS and wireless and connected services ancdavednumber of personnel with
longstanding experience with location servicesiapfibns and scaling hosted service models. Intaadithrough our acquisition of Thinknear
and our own internal efforts, we have developeckeige in real time bidding and advertising tanggttapabilities.

Our current research and development efforts anesked on:
» improving and expanding features, functionality @edformance of our existing servic

« developing applications, services and produmtsiéw mobile phones, mobile phone operating systml emerging wireless
network technologies, and developing our technofogwutomobiles, desktop computers and tablets;

» developing key technology and content to reduael {harty cost:

» developing innovative and engaging advertisirgdpcts across our navigation solutions that afilemhighly effective
targeting of end users and provide for accuratesoreanent of behavior; and

» developing features and functionality that allowND® be used as a substitute for commercial mapcses
Our development strategy is to identify featuresyises and products that are, or are expected,tndeded or desired by our end users.

As of June 30, 2015, our research and developtaant consisted of 413 people, 189 of whom are éacim Sunnyvale and Culver City,
California and 224 of whom are located in Shangimai Xi‘an, China; Berlin, Germany; and Cluj, Ronaani
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We have been successful in creating cross borgabdiies in China and Romania for high value eegring at lower cost. Our U.S. and
China research and development operations funttigether to provide service and product developrferrur automotive and mobile device
customers and extension of our existing service®t mobile phones. Our Romanian development sffodus on our OSM products and
certain mobile navigation products. Our researahdevelopment expenses were $60.3 million , $60l&mand $68.1 million for fiscal
2013, 2014 and 2015, respectively.

Marketing and sale
Automotive Navigation Services

In connection with sales efforts directed at autbiteomanufacturers and OEMs, we employ a sales thatfocuses on targeted
customers and responds to requests for proposaktatdd sales opportunities.

The design and sales cycle for automotive navigaarvices and products is substantially longem thase associated with our mobile
navigation services to customers of wireless caride our advertising network services. The autiveatales cycle is long and consultative
requires direct and continuous management of temer and OEM providers to succeed in securingnbas. Often the automobile
manufacturer uses the sales process to help theefite the ultimate product that they choose tiveeto their end users. For example, de
wins for vehicles may be awarded 12 to 36 monthay po the anticipated commercial launch of theigleh However, once we launch services
with an automotive manufacturer, our applicatiod aarvices are typically bundled with the vehidtasmultiple years because of the longer
automotive product cycles.

Advertising Network Services

Marketing. We market our advertising services based uporogation expertise. We are building brand recagniand customer
relationships based upon a consultative relatignsfith key advertising buyers, primarily advertgiagencies. Given the mobile advertising
marketplace is still in its infancy, we believettiag have an opportunity to influence the way bayerderstand the advertising opportunity.

Sales. We are highly engaged in direct sales effortsxqeand the reach of our mobile advertising sol&idle anticipate continuing to
increase our advertising sales headcount durieglfiZ016; however, individual sales representatiypially take six to nine months to
become fully productive.

Customers

We derive revenue from automobile manufacturers@BMs, advertisers and advertising agencies, areless carriers. We derive our
revenue primarily from automobile manufacturers @iMs whose vehicles contain our proprietary soféasnd are able to access our
navigation services. We also derive revenue frompamtnerships with wireless carriers who sell mavigation services to their subscribers
either as a standalone service or in a bundle etithr data or voice services. In addition, we hegeowing business in mobile advertising
where our customers are primarily advertising agerihat represent national and regional brandschadnel partners that work closely with
local and small business advertisers.

We generate revenue from automobile manufacturet<aEMs for delivery of customized software andaltigs from the distribution of
this customized software for on-board and conneatédmotive navigation solutions. In addition, vegreroyalties from brought: services fo
vehicle applications powered by our location-basedices platform. We typically enter into longnesupply arrangements with our auto
customers to provide our solutions across mulggiemodels in multiple regions around the world.

We also generate revenue from advertisers and tiglagragencies for the delivery of search andldispdvertising impressions based
the specific terms of the advertising contract.

Our revenue from customers located in the UnitedeStcomprised 92% , 94% and 96% of our total newdaor fiscal 2013 , 2014 and
2015, respectively.

We are substantially dependent on Ford for ourmegeln fiscal 2013 , 2014 and 2015, Ford represkB6% , 46% and 61% of our
revenue, respectively. We expect Ford to represaignificant portion of our revenue for the foreslele future. We expect AT&T to continue
to represent a declining portion of our revenudidoal 2013 , 2014 and 2015 , AT&T represented 284% and 15% of our revenue,
respectively. In addition, Sprint Nextel Corporatior Sprint, represented 16% of our revenue oafig013.
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We provide automotive-grade GPS navigation softviaféord pursuant to an agreement dated Octob&20I®. We are the preferred
provider for GPS on-board navigation integratedhwibrd's second-generation SYNC platform duringténe of the agreement, which expires
in December 2017. The agreement may be renewesimessive 12-month periods if either party providetice of renewal at least 45 days
prior to the expiration of the applicable term, dhe other party agrees to such renewal. Our agreewith Ford also allows either party to
terminate the agreement if the other party is eali or materially breaches its obligations antsfai cure such breach.

Our agreement with AT&T automatically renews eacérsh for successive one year periods unless gitirgy provides notice of
termination at least 60 days prior to the expiratdthe applicable term. Our agreement with AT&asnautomatically renewed in March 2015
for one year. During the term of our agreementaveethe exclusive provider of white label GPS natian services to AT&T. AT&T is not
required to offer our navigation services. Our agrent with AT&T also allows either party to termi@dhe agreement if the other party is
insolvent or materially breaches its obligationd &ails to cure such breach. We are also requoagvie AT&T preferred pricing during the
term of our agreement.

Under our agreements with Ford and AT&T, we havigakions to indemnify each of them against, amotiger things, losses arising ¢
of or in connection with any claim that our techomy or services infringe third party proprietaryimellectual property rights. Our agreements
with Ford and AT&T may be terminated in the evemirg#ringement claim is made against us and ie@&sonably determined that there is a
possibility our technology or service infringed apmthird party's rights.

We employ administrative, physical and technicégaards to prevent unauthorized collection, agaess and disclosure of our end
users' private data and to comply with applicabtiefal, state and local laws, rules and regulatidfesdo not use any end user data for direct
marketing or promotions without the consent ofuker and do not store any user location informatianis specifically identifiable with an
end user except to deliver and support our servitkesare also required to comply with our custofretringent privacy policies and standards.

Intellectual property

We rely on a combination of patent, copyright, éacrk and trade secret laws, as well as confidéptmmocedures and contractual
restrictions, to establish and protect our proprigtights. These laws, procedures and restrictiwogide only limited protection and the legal
standards relating to the validity, enforceabitityd scope of protection of intellectual properghts are uncertain and still evolving.
Furthermore, effective patent, trademark, copyragid trade secret protection may not be availatbés/ery country in which our services and
products are available.

We seek to patent key concepts, components, pistquocesses and other inventions. As of July2815, we held 71 U.S. patents and
65 foreign patents expiring between April 11, 2@2@ February 14, 2034, and have 115 U.S. and &igfopatent applications pending. Of
pending 115 U.S. patent applications, 110 are raigional patent applications, which are patentiagpons that are examined on their merits
by the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office, and freepaiovisional patent applications, which are filedpurposes of establishing priority but
cannot result in an issued U.S. patent unlessahegirst converted to nonprovisional patents. Ehgastents and patent applications may relate
to features and functions of our navigation sewiged the technology platform we use to providenth&/e have filed, and will continue to fil
patent applications in the United States and atbantries where there exists a strategic technodbgir business reason to do so. Any future
patents issued to us may be challenged, invalidatedcumvented. Any patents that may issue irfilwre with respect to pending or future
patent applications may not provide sufficientlpdad protection or may not prove to be enforceabbections against alleged infringers.

As of June 30, 2015, we owned the U.S. PatenfTaademark Office registered trademarks for Geoa®kiGoby®, ONMYWAY®,
Scout®, skobbler®, Sipity®, Telenav®, Thinknear®aWhereboutz®, as well as the logos for Telenavu§cskobbler and Thinknear. We
also own the Telenav registered trademark in thigedriKingdom, European Union, Mexico and China. Ndge several unregistered
trademarks, including the names Always There Nawig&', Chatbaka™, Drive with Friends™, Evie™, Gelmdneoral™, ... gets you and
gets you there™, HopOver™, LivingMap™, Locationérd™, Location Score ™, MyTies™, MyMileage™, ReaRe™, RoadAssist™, ,
Situational Targeting™, Smart Planner™, Telenavrgated Service™, Telenav DRIVE™, Telenav GPS Nadwig¥, Telenav Navigator™,
Telenav Scout™, Telenav Shotgun™, and TrueDelta™® eileavor to enter into agreements with our enegl®wand contractors and with
parties with which we do business in order to liadtess to and disclosure of our proprietary infdrom. We cannot be certain that the steps
we have taken will prevent unauthorized use ornsvengineering of our technology. Moreover, otimeay independently develop
technologies that are competitive with ours or thiitnge our intellectual property. The enforcernehour intellectual property rights also
depends on the success of our legal actions aghess infringers, but these actions may not beessful, even when our rights have been
infringed.
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We also enter into various types of licensing agreats to obtain access to technology or data tithtisers utilize in connection with our
navigation services. Our contracts with certaiarigors include minimum guaranteed royalty paymevigh are payable regardless of the
ultimate volume of revenue derived from the nuntdfgraying end users. Our most important agreemastsvith the providers of maps
pursuant to which we generally pay a monthly feegpel user, a per transaction fee or a revenuénghaercentage for data provided based in
each case upon a multi-tiered fee structure. Weealtain map data from HERE North America, LLC, @k company, or HERE, pursuant to
an agreement dated December 1, 2002. Our agreevitaril ERE was automatically renewed under its @xisterms through January 31,
2016, and automatically renews for successive eae periods unless either party provides notiagoofrenewal at least 180 days prior to the
expiration of the applicable term. In addition, HER obligated to make available certain map data@r current automotive customers to
fulfill their requirements as follows: for Ford (dugh December 2017); and for GM (through Decer2Bd®), which can be extended for an
additional period of ten years and seven yearpegtvely. In August 2015, Audi AG, or Audi, BMW A®Gr BMW, and Mercedes AG, or
Mercedes, announced their acquisition of Nokia’sREmap business.

We also obtain map data pursuant to an agreemémffwmTom North America, Inc., or TomTom, datedyJL 2009, as amended. Our
agreement with TomTom automatically renews for eaghported application for successive one yeaogsmeach July 1 (except for brougit-
applications sold on Apple's App Store and selegtéddcle navigation system applications), unletisegiparty provides written notice of
termination at least 90 days prior to the expiratdthe then-current term for each supported apptin. We most recently amended our
TomTom agreement effective January 30, 2014 tonelxtiee license period for TomTom map data for wgjoaled turn by turn GPS navigati
service for mobile phones (except for Sprint’'s Haddffering, automotive navigation products) thgbiDecember 31, 2015.

Our agreements with HERE and TomTom also allowrtya terminate the agreement if the other partyemally breaches its
obligations and fails to cure such breach. In agdidjtwe obtain other data such as weather updgassprices, POI and traffic information from
additional providers.

Competition

The markets for development, distribution and séllecation services and advertising services &kl competitive. Many of our
competitors have greater name recognition, largstotner bases and significantly greater finantéahnical, marketing, public relations, sa
distribution and other resources than we do.

We compete in the location services market anchaarary competitors include location service prarslsuch as Apple, Google,
Microsoft, Nokia, TeleCommunication Systems, or T@8d TomTom; PND providers such as Garmin LtdGarmin, and TomTom;
integrated navigation mobile phone providers siBarmin and Nokia; and providers of Internet ambite based maps and directions such
as AOL Corporation, or AOL, Apple, Mapquest, Imar. Mapquest, Google, Microsoft and Yahoo!, Inc.Yahoo, Yelp Inc., or Yelp,
Foursquare Labs, Inc., or Foursquare, and Fullpdeehnologies, Inc. (MotionX), or Fullpower.

We compete in the automotive navigation market wgtablished automobile manufacturers and OEMsgemndders of on-board
navigation services such as AISIN AW CO., Ltd, a6/, Robert Bosch GmbH, or Bosch, Elektrobit Cagiimn, or Elktrobit, Garmin,
TomTom and NNG LLC, or NNG, as well as other cortpet such as Apple, Google, Microsoft and TCS.

We compete in the advertising network servicesrass with mobile platform providers, including Gted\pple, and Millennial Media,
Inc., or Millennial Media, XAD, Inc., or XAD, Verv@/ireless, Inc., or Verve Wireless, PlacelQ, lc.PlacelQ, and NinthDecimal, Inc., or
NinthDecimal, among other

Competition in our markets is based primarily oadurct placement and performance including featdvestions, reliability, flexibility,
scalability and interoperability; wireless carriagtomotive manufacturer and OEM and advertisirenay relationships; technological
expertise, capabilities and innovation; price a¥/ges and products and total cost of ownershignnrecognition; and size and financial
stability of operations. We believe we compete fatty with respect to these factors based upopénformance, reliability and breadth of our
services and products and our technical experience.

Some of our competitors and potential competitojeyeadvantages over us, either globally or inipatar geographic markets, includi
with respect to the following:

» significantly greater revenue and financial resea

« stronger brand and consumer recognition in a paatiaonarket segment, geographic region or worldy
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» the capacity to leverage their marketing expendgurcross a broader portfolio of prodt
» access to core technology and intellectual propartjuding more extensive patent portfol
* access to custom or proprietary cont
» quicker pace of innovatio
» stronger wireless carrier, automotive and handsetufacturer relationshig
« more financial flexibility and experience to malajaisitions
» lower labor and development costs;
» broader global distribution and prese!

Our competitors’ and potential competitors’ advaetover us could make it more difficult for usédl our navigation services and
advertising network services, and could resulhioréased pricing pressures, reduced profit margiogased sales and marketing expense
failure to increase, or the loss of, market sharexpected market share, any of which would likedyse harm to our business, operating resul
and financial condition.

Employees

As of June 30, 2015 , we employed 579 people, diotpu413 in research and development, 78 in saldsrarketing, 26 in customer
support, data center operations, and advertisiegatipns, and 62 in a general and administratipacity. As of that date, we had 306
employees in the United States, 154 in China, A02dmania, 15 in Germany and two in Japan. Weeagage a number of temporary
employees and consultants. None of our employerepigsented by a labor union or is a party tolleciive bargaining agreement.

Executive Officers of the Registrai

The following table sets forth the names, age®{dsine 30, 2015 ) and positions of our executifiears:

Name Age Position

Dr. HP Jin 51 President, Chief Executive Officer and ChairmathefBoard of Directors
Michael Strambi 53 Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer

Rohan Chandran 40 Vice President and General Manager, Mobile Busitlss

Salman Dhanani 42 Co-President, Automotive Business Unit

Loren Hillberg 57 General Counsel, Secretary, and President and &dvianager, Thinknear
Hassan Wahla 43 Co-President, Automotive Business Unit

Dr. HP Jinis a cofounder of our company and has served apreaident and a member of our board of directioesOctober 1999.
Dr. Jin has also served as our chief executive@ffand chairman of our board of directors fromabet 1999 to May 2001 and since
December 2001. Prior to Telenav, Dr. Jin served s@snior strategy consultant at the McKenna Graugtrategy consulting firm. Prior to that
time, Dr. Jin was a business strategy and managetoesultant at McKinsey & Company, a managemensghing firm. Dr. Jin was also
previously a technical director at Loral Integraialvigation Communication Satellite Systems, or CBE, a division of Loral Space &
Communications, Inc., a GPS service and engineedngpany. Dr. Jin holds a B.S. and M.S. in Mecharimgineering from Harbin Institute
of Technology in China and a Ph.D. in Guidance,ifj@ion and Control, with a Ph.D. minor in Elecaii&ngineering, from Stanford
University.

Michael Strambhas served as our chief financial officer and weassince June 2012. From November 2009 to Juh2,20r. Strambi
served as our vice president of finance. From Déezr2008 to August 2009, Mr. Strambi served as piesident and chief accounting officer
of Silver Spring Networks, Inc., a provider of singid services. From February 2008 to DecembeB20. Strambi served as chief financial
officer of Metacafe, Inc., a provider of online g services. From February 2006 to February 2008Skambi served as vice president of
finance of MobiTV, Inc., a provider of mobile medialutions. From 2002 to 2006, Mr. Strambi serveddrious positions, the most recent of
which was vice president, controller and treasuith Macromedia, Inc., a provider of web publighioroducts and solutions that was acqt
by Adobe Systems Incorporated. Mr. Strambi hol&s% in Business Administration with a concentnatiio Accounting from California State
University, Sacramento and an M.B.A. in Financerfithe University of Southern California.
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Rohan Chandraihas served as our vice president and general mamaghkile business unit since October 2014. Fronudey 2014 to
October 2014, Mr. Chandran served as our headrafuroer products. From April 2013 to January 2014,@Ghandran served as senior vice
president, product management of Technorati, inprovider of online media services. From June 2061®ebruary 2013, Mr. Chandran ser
in various positions, the most recent of which Wwaad of consumer products, with YP, Inc., form&R&T Interactive, a consumer local
search and digital marketing company. From Febr@868 to June 2010, Mr. Chandran served as chafugive officer and founder of
Collient, Inc., a longorm video personalization company. From August®@0February 2008, Mr. Chandran served as seiriectdr, produc
management, with Experian Interactive, a providesrdine financial services marketing solutions..\@handran holds a B.A. in Economics
and a B.S. and M.S. in Computer Science from Stdrifmiversity.

Salman Dhananis a cofounder of our company and has served gsazident of our automotive business unit sincedgn2014.
Mr. Dhanani served as our vice president, growtitesgy and partnerships from July 2012 to Janu@iy}2as our vice president, products fr
August 2010 to July 2012 and as our vice presigepntjucts and marketing from August 2009 to Au@@t0. Mr. Dhanani served as our
executive director of marketing from March 2009tdy 2009 and as our senior director of marketngfNovember 1999 to February 2009.
From January 1999 to November 1999, Mr. Dhananiegkas a consultant at the McKenna Group, a syrategsulting firm. From July 1996
to December 1998, Mr. Dhanani served as an apgitahgineer at Schlumberger Ltd., a technologysatiimg services company.
Mr. Dhanani holds a B.S. in Electrical Engineeriragn the University of Washington.

Loren Hillberghas served as our general counsel and secretagy April 2009 and president and general managenkihbar since
October 2014. From January 2013 to October 2014Hillberg served as general manager, mobile bgsinait. From September 2007 to
September 2008, Mr. Hillberg served as vice pregidad general counsel at Forcel0 Networks, atetfivheld communications and networks
company. From April 2005 to May 2007, Mr. Hillbengld various management positions, including exeewice president and general
counsel at Macrovision Corporation (now Rovi Cogimm), a publicly traded digital entertainment gamy. From May 1998 to March 2005,
Mr. Hillberg served as senior vice president angegal counsel at Macromedia, Inc., a provider of yweblishing products and solutions that
was acquired by Adobe Systems Incorporated. Mibefig holds a B.A. in Economics from Stanford Umsiy and a J.D. from the University
of California, Hastings College of Law.

Hassan Wahl&as served as co-president of our automotive bssineit since January 2014. Mr. Wahla served asioampresident,
business development and carrier sales from ARAG® to January 2014 and served as our executigetdi of business development from
May 2005 to August 2009. From April 2003 to May 80Mr. Wahla served as a senior product managseztel Communications, a wireless
communications company that merged with SprintniFebruary 2002 to April 2003, Mr. Wahla servediae president of business
development of Wireless Multimedia Solutions, avately held wireless software platform company.rki®eptember 1999 to February 2002,
Mr. Wahla served as director of business developmeklicroStrategy, Inc., a business intelligencftvgare company. Prior to that time,

Mr. Wahla served as a senior consultant at Mariffoeer, a maritime equipment company. Mr. Wahlaldal B.S. in Industrial Engineering
from Virginia Tech, an M.S. in Management from Sey Institute of Technology and a Masters of Iragamal Affairs from Columbia
University.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

We operate in a rapidly changing environment th@blves numerous uncertainties and risks. Theuafig risks and uncertainties may
have a material and adverse effect on our busirfasmcial condition or results of operations. Yshould consider these risks and
uncertainties carefully, together with all of théher information included or incorporated by refeoe in this Form 10-K before you decide
whether to purchase any of our securities. If ahthe risks or uncertainties we face were to octlue, trading price of our securities could
decline, and you may lose all or part of your irtuant.

Risk related to our business

We incurred losses in fiscal 2014 and 2015, and estthat we will continue to incur losses in fiscaD16 and we do not know when, or if,
will return to profitability, as we make further gpenditures to enhance and expand our operation®nder to support growth and
diversification of our business.

As a percentage of revenue, our net income (loas)(d4)% and (20)%h fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014, respectively. Cawanue from pai
wireless carrier mobile navigation has substantiddiclined and we expect it to continue to do sar. @oss margin declined to 51% in fiscal
2015 from 60% in fiscal 2014 due primarily to thereased proportion of product revenue contribérath our onboard automotive navigatis
solutions, which generally have higher associatedent costs and resulting lower gross margins theirmobile navigation services provided
through our wireless carrier customers, and the
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increased revenue contribution of our advertisingifess, which has lower gross margins than ownaative and mobile navigation
businesses.

We anticipate that we will incur net operating ks fiscal 2016, as we anticipate increased edipges to operate our business. These
expected losses are due in part to the expectathued decline in our higher margin mobile navigatievenue. Furthermore, there will be a
lengthy delay between the time we secured the aefaachew contract with GM, and the timing of reuerihereto, as well as a substantial
required upfront investment in research and dewvetay resources for this new contract, and continoegstments necessary due to the early
nature of our advertising business.

Although we are working to replace the continuedide in wireless carrier revenue, our efforts éwelop new services and products ant
attract new customers require investments in g&imn of longer term revenue. For example, thégdesycle for automotive navigation
products and services is 18 to 24 months and ierdodwin designs and achieve revenue from thisitir@rea, we typically have to make
investments two to four years before we anticipateiving revenue, if any. This is the case formlationship with GM. We intend to make
additional investments in systems and continupaed our operations to support diversificatiomof business, but it is likely that these
efforts at diversification will not replace our dieing wireless carrier revenue in the short-teifmat all. We also anticipate that as we replace
some of our personnel, we will do so with some @ygés hired in higher cost geographic areas whe Haferent skills. As a result of these
factors, we believe we will incur a net operatingd and that we will incur net losses at leastutjindiscal 2016 and we cannot predict wher
if, we will return to profitability. Our investmestand expenditures may not result in the growthvlgaanticipate. Although we acquired
skobbler and have expended additional internaluress to develop our own OSM-based maps to reduicmapping costs in the long-term, in
the short-term, those development efforts will haveegative effect on our ability to become prabifita

Our quarterly revenue and operating results havadtuated in the past and may fluctuate in the fusidue to a number of factors. As a
result, we may fail to meet or exceed the expeotaiof securities analysts or investors, which abehuse our stock price to decline.

Our quarterly revenue and operating results may significantly in the future. Therefore, you shduiot rely on the results achieved in
any one quarter as an indication of future perforcea Period to period comparisons of our revenaeoperating results may not be
meaningful. Our quarterly results of operations rilagtuate as a result of a variety of factorsjuding, but not limited to, those listed below,
many of which are outside of our control:

» the transition away from paid carrier navigatiorfreemium offerings for mobile phone based navigaservice:
« the ability of automobile manufacturers to sellcamibbiles equipped with our produt

» the introduction of competitive in-car platformsd products, such as Apple's CarPlay and Goamlésinitiatives, including Open
Automotive Alliance;

« the seasonality of new vehicle model introductiand consumer buying patterns, as well as the sfffatconomic uncertainty on
vehicle purchasesparticularly outside of the U.S.;

» the effectiveness of our entry into new businesasrsuch as advertisi
« changes made to existing contractual obligationk wicustomer that may affect the nature and tirofmgvenue recognitio
» the loss of our relationship or a change in ouenexe model with any particular wireless carrietcomer

* poor reviews of automotive service offeringoimthich our navigation solutions are integratediitésy in limited uptake of
navigation options by car buyers;

« loss of subscribers by our wireless carrier custsrea reduction in the number of subscriberdaaspthat include our servic
* the timing and quality of information we receiverft our customer
e ourinability to attract new end use

» the amount and timing of operating costs andtabgxpenditures related to the expansion of qarations and infrastructure
through acquisitions or organic growth;

» the timing of expenses related to the developmeatquisition of technologies, products or busies
e the timing and success of new service introductimnas or our competitol
* the timing and success of marketing expendituresuo products

« the extent of any interruption in our servi
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» potential foreign currency exchange gains asdds associated with expenses and sales denomimatgdencies other than the
U.S. dollar;

e general economic, industry and market conditibias impact expenditures for new vehicles, smangis and mobile location
services in the United States and other countriesrevwe sell our services and products;

» changes in interest rates and our mix of invesitisy which would impact our return on our invesitaen cash and marketable
securities;

« changes in our effective tax rates;
« the impact of new accounting pronouncem

Fluctuations in our quarterly operating results imigad analysts and investors to change their tfaddevaluing our common stock. A:
result, our stock price could decline rapidly areleould face costly securities class action lawsuitother unanticipated issues.

We are dependent on Ford for a substantial and iaasing portion of our revenue and our business,dircial condition and results of
operations will be harmed if our revenue from Fodbes not continue to grow or declines.

Ford represented approximately 61% and 46% ofexgnue in fiscal 2015 and fiscal 2014 , respectivtle expect that Ford, other
automobile manufacturers and OEMs will accountioincreasing portion of our revenue, as our regdram paid wireless carrier provided
navigation declines. However, our revenue couleémiidlly decline if Ford increases the cost to comers of our navigation product or reduce:
the number of vehicles or the geographies in whdlticles with our product as an option are soldtsosales of vehicles fall below forecast
to competition or global macro-economic conditio@sr agreement with Ford expires in December 207adso allows either party to
terminate the agreement if the other party is wesatl or materially breaches its obligations antsfas cure such breach. In the event that Ford
does not elect to renew our contract after Decer@b&7, or chooses to renegotiate our contractssfeevorable terms, our revenue may
decline and our business operating results anddiahcondition could be harmed. The agreement beasenewed for successive 12-month
periods if either party provides notice of reneaileast 45 days prior to the expiration of theliapple term, and the other party agrees to suc
renewal. We may not successfully increase our nexérom Ford if our products are replaced withihiekes by Ford with our competitors'
products or from price competition from third pesti

For on-board automotive navigation, we recognizemee as the related customized software is deliver and accepted by our
customers. In addition we recognize royalties edfn@m our on-board solutions generally as thevearfé is reproduced for installation in
vehicles. We have limited experience managing, stjng and retaining automobile manufacturers aB#/® as customers and if we are not
able to maintain Ford as a customer our revenuededline.

We may not be successful in generating materialeeue from automotive manufacturers and OEMs othéan Ford and our business,
financial condition and results of operations wile harmed if we are unable to diversify our autonvet navigation revenue

Although we have attempted to mitigate our depeod@m Ford by establishing relationships with o#ngilomobile manufacturers and
OEMs, these relationships may not produce sigmificavenue if the products are launched in limiteztels or due to competition from third
parties. In addition, due to the complexities ofereue recognition in accordance with GAAP, when iémee generate revenue we may be
required to recognize certain revenue over extepaeidds. Revenue recognition could also be imghlojechanges in procurement patterns,
shipping terms and title transfer. Furthermore may incur significant expense to develop productsafitomobile manufacturers, such as
under our worldwide connected navigation servigge@ment with GM, without ever receiving any revenelated to the sale of vehicles with
our navigation services. Our ability to attractaambbile manufacturers may also be limited if theM3Echosen to provide navigation services
have existing relationships with other navigatiemaors or provide their own solutions.

Even if we are able to diversify our automotive igation business through new arrangements, suohrasiore recently established
relationships with GM and Toyota, customers mayeatett to purchase automobile manufacturer and @BWgation offerings that include ¢
software and/or services for reasons unrelate@itidpnance of our software or services. If customechase rates are less than anticipate
may be unable to effectively diversify our autometnavigation revenue and our business, finanoiadlition and results of operations may be
harmed.

Our automotive navigation products are an importapart of our effort to expand outside of mobile dee navigation to other platforms and
we may not be successful in our efforts to attractd retain automobile manufacturers and OEMs, impbent profitable and high quality
products or achieve end customer acceptance of senvices and fee mode

In fiscal 2009, we began offering our first brougihtonnected automotive navigation products amaf po that time, we had limited
experience in the automotive navigation markefideal 2010, we began offering our first on-boantioanotive navigation products. Our on-
board solutions may not satisfy automotive manuf&es’ or end customers’ expectations for
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those solutions. If automobile manufacturers and/®Eo not believe that our services meet theiraasts’ needs, our products and services
may not be designed in to future model year vekicle

The design and sales cycle for on-board or broughtitomotive navigation services and productsiisstantially longer than those
associated with our mobile navigation servicesust@amers of wireless carriers or our advertisiragfptm services. As a result, we may not be
able to achieve significant revenue growth with rstomers from the automotive navigation busifressshort period of time, or at all. For
example, design wins for vehicles may be awardetb B5 months prior to the anticipated commeraahkch of the vehicle. Our relationship
with GM includes brought-in services for vehicleglan January 2015 GM launched the new versiotsdDhStar RemoteLink® mobile
application, but we cannot assure you that the Relnmk® project will lead to us receiving significerevenue in the short-term, if at all. We
also entered into a contract with GM to providentsldwide connected navigation services beginmiity select model year 2017 vehicles.
do not expect to receive any revenue from the lawfichose vehicles until fiscal 2017 at the eatliand in the course of the development of
those vehicles we may be designed out altogethercdinot assure you that when and if our produxistg production and launch in GM
vehicles and become available for sale, they weiliba wide variety of geographic markets in whizt sells vehicles in or across a variety of
models and brands. GM has not provided us withvahyme or revenue guarantees. In July 2015, weTaydta announced a partnership for
brought-in navigation services where our Scout GiP& will be available first in the model year 20I6yota Tacoma, and subsequently in
other Entune™ Audio Plus equipped model year 20dyfa vehicles in the United States. We cannotragguu that the Scout GPS Link
Toyota project will lead to us receiving signifitaavenue in the short-term, if at all.

As we have limited experience in the automotiveigaion market, we also may not price our solutitnsuch a way that is profitable 1
us and enables us to recoup the development expeimsicurred to provide such solutions in the timgeexpect or at all. Development
schedules for automotive navigation products difecdit to predict, and there can be no assurahaéwe will achieve timely delivery of these
products to our customers. To the extent that veegehservice fees beyond an initial fee at the timevehicle is purchased, we may not be
successful in gaining traction with customers tovjite services and charge ongoing monthly or anfags outside of the traditional on-board
navigation service model. Our map, POI and othetartt costs for our automobile navigation solutiars higher than those we have
historically paid for our mobile phone-based natimaservices and to date we have not been ahlee®SM offerings for automotive
navigation. If we are unable to improve our margime may not be able to operate our automobilegadidin business profitably. If we fail to
achieve revenue growth in any of our automotivegetion solutions (whether on-board, brought-irotirer), we may be unable to achieve the
benefits of revenue diversification. In additiony ¢hird party automotive and mobile navigation teart suppliers, HERE and TomTom, are
also becoming competitors with their own automotie@igation services offerings.

As our offerings in automobile navigation expandbtought-in, as well as built-in, we may not cothganticipate the financial
accounting treatment for the various products. \WMddbe required to amortize revenue from prodoees time although we previously
recognized revenue for similar products when th@iegble vehicle was sold.

We may be unable to enter into agreements to peasidomobile navigation products if we do not offavigation products that serve
geographies throughout the world or automobile rfesturers and OEMs are uncomfortable with our ghib support markets outside of the
United States. Our automobile manufacturer and @EMomers may choose to partner with providersadtion services with extensive
international operations. We may be at a disadganta attracting such customers due to our busimgisg) concentrated in the United States.
Ford only recently began offering vehicles with sotutions outside of the United States and we nmybe successful in those geographies if
customers are uncomfortable with the look and ééelur solutions. If we are unable to attract daire such automobile manufacturer and O
customers, our revenue and operating results witidgatively affected.

Our ability to build demand for our automobile rgation products is also dependent upon our alidifyrovide the products in a cost
effective manner, which may require us to reneg@tiaap and POI content relationships to addresspeific demands of dneard navigatio
applications.

Our multi-platform products are new and may not firmarket acceptance.

We introduced Scout, a service that end users @aasa for navigation and planning with their mopit®nes and cars. We have not
previously offered a planning service or a sertia spans different platforms. We cannot assutetlyat automobile manufacturers and end
users will accept our Scout service or, even if tthe, that end users will adopt and use this serwihich encompasses services different than
our historical strength in navigation, or that will e able to generate sufficient revenue fromwdo offset its costs. If we fail to develop
innovative products that automobile manufacturedend users adopt, our operating results anddiaboondition could be harmed. Further,
Google and Apple have each developed technolodfoptas that they are marketing to auto manufactuérauto manufacturers adopt these
platforms, they may also adopt Google and Appla\ggation services that run on these platformsifsd, consumers may elect to use these
free service offerings rather than pay for our picid which are currently sold by Ford as new catuiees with substantial cost to the consut
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The success of our automotive navigation productaynbe affected by the number of vehicle models mffewith our navigation solutions, ¢
well as overall demand for new vehicles.

Our ability to succeed long term in the automotivdustry depends on our ability to expand the nunolbenodels offered with our
navigation solution by our current automobile maatiirers. We are also dependent upon our abiligfttact new automobile manufacturers
and OEMs. For automobile manufacturers with whomhawe established relationships, such as Fordsueaess depends on continued
production and sale of new vehicles with, and adogty, end users of our products offered by sutbraobile manufacturers, when our
product are not standard features. As we move fahwair existing automobile manufacturers and OEMsg not include our solutions in
future year vehicles or territories, which wouldyagvely affect our revenue from these productedBetion and sale of new vehicles are
subject to delay from forces outside of our contsakh as natural disasters, parts shortages ardstoppages, as well as general economic
conditions.

Strategic transactions in the mapping and autometivndustries could jeopardize our map pricing arid,turn, our competitive pricing for
our automotive customers.

Audi, BMW and Mercedes recently announced theiugition of Nokia’s HERE map business. Thoughdhéo manufacturers have
stated that HERE's map business will remain aut@usnand continue to serve other auto manufacturess is a risk that HERE will increase
its prices for maps to competitors of the groupahpanies that acquired HERE. If HERE increasegtite of maps, our gross margins, mos
notably in our automotive business, may be adweicted by such increase in map costs.

We may not successfully generate advertising re\veeas a result of our acquisition of Thinknear ordm our navigation services if we are
unable to attract and retain advertisers.

Although we began providing advertising to somewf end users in 2010 and the percentage of oentevrepresented by advertising
has grown rapidly, advertising was 11% and 8% oftotal revenue during fiscal 2015 and 2014, respely. In October 2012, we acquired
Thinknear, a privately held California-based hylmeral mobile advertising company. To date, the rimsrgf our advertising business have t
well below those we experience in our automotiveigetion and mobile navigation businesses. Furtlbeemwe believe the advertising
business can be subject to varying buying pattenadsseasonality which can impact our ability tovgour revenue. For example, in fiscal
2015, we experienced sequential quarters of intrgad decreasing revenue levels. In order to gromadvertising business, we need to
identify and attract a significant number of adigents through our Thinknear platform. The mobilgeatising market is highly competitive, &
advertisers have many options through which tolmase mobile advertising. Our business will requsé¢o attract and retain a large number o
advertisers and will also require us to maintamability to purchase a large volume of inventdrg@mpetitively attractive rates. Increased
competition from other mobile advertising comparaad technology developers could impair our abtlitgecure advertiser revenue.
Increased competition could also limit our abitibypurchase inventory for advertising placementnatconomically attractive rate. We do no
have substantial experience in selling advertising supporting advertisers and may not be ableveldp these capabilities successfully. We
may not be successful recruiting the number ofsspégsonnel we need to scale or effectively tiagmt to sell mobile advertising. Sales
personnel may also be slow to ramp up their sajedipes, negatively impacting our ability to growe may not succeed in attracting and
retaining a critical mass of advertisers and adgrtgents and may not be successful in demonstrdiingalue of mobile advertising. If we fail
to do so, we may be unable to generate a matevial bf revenue from advertising to offset the sadtproviding free navigation. Even if we
are able to increase our advertising revenue, wenaabe able to improve the margins of our adsanj business if we do not generate
additional ad impression space within our own aggpions, such as Scout. If we are unable to imptieganargins of our advertising business,
it may not become profitable and may impair outighio become profitable as a whole and invegtem opportunities.

Our legacy wireless carrier mobile navigation busiss is declining and as it continues to declineiliittbecomes an insignificant portion of
our business, our revenue and net income or losB eontinue to be adversely affected.

We have historically been substantially dependartixm wireless carrier customers for a large partibour revenue. Sprint ceased
paying us for mobile navigation provided to its sciibers in bundles on September 30, 2013. Our tdhge wireless carrier customers have
also experienced declines in monthly recurring meresfrom subscriptions for mobile navigation. Iscl 2015 and 2014 , AT&T represented
15% and 24% of our total revenue, respectivelyhénlast three fiscal years, AT&T subscribers haeterially decreased their subscriptions
for, and usage of, our paid navigation servicesammndevenue from our relationship with AT&T hashiged accordingly. We anticipate that
AT&T subscribers, and subscribers of other carnene pay monthly recurring charges for our serviggh continue to decrease their
subscriptions for paid navigation services in fawbfree or freemium offerings and that our revefroen our relationship with AT&T will
continue to decline. AT&T may determine that thetaaf offering our service to its subscribers ouglis the benefits if the drop off of
subscribers continues. Our failure to maintainretationship with AT&T would substantially harm dowsiness and we cannot assure you the
we and AT&T will be able to reduce subscriber evasiWe anticipate that even if AT&T remains a wasd carrier customer, our revenue fror
AT&T will continue to decline substantially durirdigcal 2016 and possibly beyond.
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Our experience has been that subscribers do ndd ggaty monthly recurring charges for mobile natimaproducts that were formerly
bundled with other services and instead use fréeemium offerings. We have sought to develop osloeirces of revenue from our location-
based platforms, including automotive navigatiod btation-based advertising, but those sourcesv@nue have substantially lower margins
than wireless carrier mobile navigation revenue, asch result, we would have to generate substigmiare revenue from those services to
replace the declining wireless carrier revenue. @lier sources of revenue have only recently béggmow as fast as the declines in mobile
wireless carrier revenue and we cannot assurehaiuhis recent growth will continue. As a restltre lower margins on automobile
navigation and advertising revenue, we anticipiad we will continue to incur net losses in fis@ll6 and possibly future periods. If we are
unable to demonstrate to investors that we haveldped stable, long-term revenue streams, thenggalices of our common stock may
decline further and the trading volumes for our ooon stock may be low, adding to price volatility.

We provide freemium navigation to compete with freféerings and we may not be successful with thesev products or convert “free”
users to paid users.

We provide freemium personalized navigation apfilices on the Apple App Store, the Google Play miglkee, Microsoft Windows
Marketplace and through other marketplaces andvioretess carrier partners. Freemium offerings age basic navigation services that are
monetized through paid upgrades to premium progdastsvell as through advertising. We may not agh&bstantial end user acceptance of
these products, and even if end users downloadisethe freemium products, we may not be successfainverting those “free” users into
paid users, particularly since we have begun terafbice-guided navigation in our freemium offesn@ur freemium offerings provide
planning features and other features unrelatedite pavigation that we do not have substantial e&pee in designing or marketing. These
features may deter users who are looking for a pavégation offering. We have limited experienceriarketing our products and services
directly to end users or generating advertisingnee through our mobile navigation users. To ther#that our number of active subscribers
is low, we may not be able to fulfill sufficient\aettising orders to generate meaningful advertisevgnue from a freemium model. Bad
reviews from end users may dissuade other end freensdownloading our freemium offerings or conuagtto paid users. We may not be
successful in gaining visibility among end userthait incurring significant expenses to market puaducts and services to those users. In
addition, we do not have experience in convertisgysi of free applications to paid users or in gaimeg revenue from full featured products
solely through advertising revenue. If we are ueaablachieve high visibility among end users onst effective basis or fail to convince those
end users to convert to paid products and reveraguping services, we may be unable to sustaimemgnue and we may incur losses in the
future.

Mobile connected device users may choose not tovaliracking of their location information and thefflere local advertising on thei
devices.

The growth of our advertising revenue will dependoar ability to deliver location targeted, highglevant ads to consumers on their
mobile connected devices. Our targeted advertisifighly dependent on the consumers allowing appibns to have access to their location
data. Users may elect not to allow location dataisly for a number of reasons, including personabgy concerns. Mobile operating systems
vendors and application developers are also promdgatures that allow device users to disableagdeftinctionality that consumers may elect
to invoke. In addition, companies may develop patsithat enable users to prevent ads from appeanitigeir mobile device screens. If any
these developments were to become widely used tguooers, our ability to deliver effective advertgsicampaigns on behalf of our advertisel
clients would suffer, which could hurt our ability generate advertising revenue.

Our business practices with respect to data coulkgise to liabilities or reputational harm as asult of governmental regulation, legal
requirements or industry standards relating to camser privacy and data protection.

Our advertising services depend on our abilityditect, store and use information related to motidgices and the ads we place,
including a device's geographic location for theppse of targeting ads to the user of the deviedeFal, state and international laws and
regulations govern the collection, use, retentibraring and security of data that we collect aconsanobile advertising platform. We strive to
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, p@&and legal obligations relating to privacy aathdprotection. However, it is possible that
these requirements may be interpreted and appliadianner that is inconsistent with our practiées. failure, or perceived failure, by us to
comply with such laws could result in proceedingadions against us by governmental entities, waress or others. Such proceedings or
actions could hurt our reputation, force us to sb&gnificant amounts to defend ourselves, distoactmanagement, increase our costs of ¢
business, require us to change our advertisindcgsror disclosures, adversely affect the demandupservices and ultimately result in the
imposition of monetary liability. We may also bent@ctually liable to indemnify and hold harmless olients from the costs or consequence:
of inadvertent or unauthorized disclosure of da#d we store or handle as part of providing ouvises.

The regulatory framework for privacy issues worldwis evolving, and various government and conswagencies and public advocacy
groups have called for new regulation and changésdiustry practices, including some directed atrtfobile and advertising industries in
particular. It is possible that new laws, regulasiostandards, recommendations, best practicesjoirements will be adopted that would affec
our business, particularly with regard to locathmased services, collection or
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use of data to target ads and communication wittswmers via mobile devices. To the extent that m@uo clients are subject to new law or

recommendations or choose to adopt new standactsnmendations, or other requirements, we may @ager compliance burdens. If we
are perceived as not operating in accordance withstry best practices or any such guidelines desavith regard to privacy, our reputation
may suffer and we could lose relationships witheatiser or developer partners.

We operate in a highly competitive market, includitompetitors that offer their services for freehigh could make it difficult for us to
acquire and retain customers and end users.

The market for development, distribution and sdllcation services is highly competitive. Manyafr competitors have greater name
recognition, larger customer bases and signifigagriéater financial, technical, marketing, pubgtations, sales, distribution and other
resources than we do. Competitors may offer mabdation services that have at least equivalenttfanality to ours for free. For example,
Google offers free voice-guided turn by turn natigaas part of its Google Maps product for mobléices, including those based on the
Android and iOS operating system platforms, andl&mffers proprietary maps and voice-guided turridsp directions. Microsoft also
provides a free voice-guided turn by turn navigasolution on its Windows Mobile and Windows Phaoperating systems. Competition from
these free offerings may reduce our revenue, rasoliir incurring additional costs to compete aadhhour business. If our wireless carrier
customers can offer these mobile location sentiaeleir subscribers for free, they may elect taseetheir relationships with us, like Sprint
or alter or reduce the manner or extent to whiely tmarket or offer our services or require us tostantially reduce our fees or pursue other
business strategies that may not prove successfadldition, new car buyers may not value navigasiolutions built in to their vehicles if they
feel that free (brought-in) offerings, for examplgple CarPlay or Google's auto initiatives, inchgliOpen Automotive Alliance, are adequate
and may not purchase our solutions with their naws.c

Our primary competitors include location serviceviders such as Apple, Google (including Waze),mBoft, Nokia, TCS, and
TomTom; PND providers such as Garmin and TomTomviders of Internet and mobile based maps andtitrexsuch as AOL, Apple,
Mapquest, Google, Microsoft, Yahoo, Yelp, Foursguand Fullpower; and wireless carriers and comnatioic solutions providers developi
their own location services. In the automotive gation market, we compete with established autored@EMs and providers of on-board
navigation services such as AISIN, Bosch, Elektrabarmin, TomTom and NNG, as well as other contpestisuch as Apple, Google,
Microsoft and TCS. In our advertising business,campete against Google, Apple, Millennial MediaxA/erve Wireless, PlacelQ and
NinthDecimal, among others. Some of our compe’ and our potential competitors’ advantages overither globally or in particular
geographic markets, include the following:

< the provision of their services at no or low castbnsumer:

» significantly greater revenue and financial reses

« stronger brand and consumer recognition regiormalkyorldwide

« the capacity to leverage their marketing expenégacross a broader portfolio of mobile and nonfegiroducts
e access to core technology and intellectual propertjuding more extensive patent portfol

* access to custom or proprietary cont

« quicker pace of innovatic

»  stronger wireless carrier, automotive, handset fiaaturer and advertising agency relationst

« stronger international presence may make our largepetitors more attractive partners to automatimamufacturers and OEN
e greater resources to make and integrate acquis,

« lower labor and development costs;

« broader global distribution and prese!

Our competitors’ and potential competitors’ advaetaover us could make it more difficult for us#dl our navigation services, and
could result in increased pricing pressures, rediypeefit margins, increased sales and marketingesgs and failure to increase, or the loss o
market share or expected market share, any of whdathd likely cause harm to our business, operatasglts and financial condition.

If we are unable to integrate future acquisitionsiscessfully, our operating results and prospectsiicbbe harmed

In the future, we may make acquisitions to improue navigation services offerings or expand intev mearkets. Our future acquisition
strategy will depend on our ability to identify,gutiate, complete and integrate acquisitions dmkgessary, to obtain satisfactory debt or
equity financing to fund those acquisitions. Mersgend acquisitions are inherently risky, and any
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mergers and acquisitions we complete may not beesstul. Future mergers and acquisitions we magyauwwould involve, numerous risks,
including the following:

- difficulties in integrating and managing the o@ns, technologies and products of the compaméacquire including skobbler,
which is geographically remote from our existingmdions;

« diversion of our managemestttention from normal daily operation of our Ingsis

e our inability to maintain the key business nglaships and the reputations of the businessexg@ire, such as the European
automobile manufacturer and OEM relationships obsier;

* our inability to retain key personnel of the acqdicompan)

e uncertainty of entry into markets in which wevbdimited or no prior experience and in which catifprs have stronger market
positions;

* our dependence on unfamiliar affiliates and custsméthe companies we acqu

» insufficient revenue to offset our increased expsrassociated with acquisitio

< our responsibility for the liabilities of the busises we acquire, including those which we mayntitipate; an
* our inability to maintain internal standards, cotgr procedures and polici

We may be unable to secure the equity or debt igndecessary to finance future acquisitions ongetrat are acceptable to us. If we
finance acquisitions by issuing equity or convéetitbebt securities, our existing stockholders likily experience dilution, and if we finance
future acquisitions with debt funding, we will incimterest expense and may have to comply witmfire covenants and secure that debt
obligation with our assets.

We may be required to recognize a significant charg earnings if our goodwill or other intangiblessets become impaired.

We have recorded goodwill related to our prior asitjons, and may do so in connection with any ptiéd future acquisitions. Goodwill
and other intangible assets with indefinite lives @ot amortized, but are reviewed for impairmemntually or on an interim basis whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate teatdtrying value of these assets may not be reableer Factors that may indicate that the
carrying value of our goodwill or other intangitdlesets may not be recoverable include a persidéetine in our stock price and market
capitalization, reduced future cash flow estimates slower growth rates in our industry. We maysdapiired to record a significant charge in
our financial statements during the period in whadly impairment of our goodwill or other intangilassets is determined, which would
adversely impact our results of operations. Furtloge, in fiscal 2015 we began to report resulthiiee business segments, which requires th
allocation of goodwill and intangibles to eachloése segments. As a result, our impairment revash gear or on an interim basis shall be
conducted by reporting unit, which can result ifferent outcome than if assessed on an overa@idated basis. Revenue from our mobile
navigation business has been declining substanbta#r the last few years and continued deterionadf this revenue base can result in an
impairment of the goodwill and intangibles assigt®this reporting unit. Based on the results afamnual goodwill impairment test as of
April 1, 2015, the estimated fair value of our meliavigation business exceeded its carrying viaju22%. We have not recognized any
impairment of goodwill in the three year period eddune 30, 2015 .

We may be required to recognize a significant chartg earnings if our strategic private equity intesents become impaired

We have in the past and may in the future enterimtestments in businesses in order to comple@reatpand our current business or
enter into new markets. Private equity investmangsinherently risky and subject to factors outsifleur control and no assurance can be
given that our previous or future investments Wélsuccessful, will deliver the intended beneéits] will not materially harm our business,
operating results or financial condition. We mayéguired to record a significant charge in ouaficial statements during the period in which
any impairment of our private equity investmentdeésermined, which could adversely impact our tssof operations. We recorded
impairment charges of $0.5 million and $0.3 millfmn cost-basis investments during fiscal 2015 204, respectively.

In connection with the investments we made in fi2€d.5 in the form of convertible notes to two &asi in connection with the spin off
product lines developed by our Shanghai, ChinaXdad, China teams, we may be forced to recogniziitiadal impairment on the value of
our investments in those entities, if they are lmabraise additional capital. As of June 30, 2046 recorded an impairment charge of $0.8
million to write off our remaining investment batanin the Shanghai entity. Current unfavorable m@@pnomic conditions in China may
affect the Xian entity's ability to raise additibicapital and we may be required to record an inmpant if the Xian entity is unable to continue
operations or repay our note as a result. As o B 2015, our investment balance in the Xiartyemtas $0.7 million.
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Our effective tax rate may fluctuate, which couldduce our anticipated income tax benefit in the ding.

Our effective tax rate could be adversely affedtgdeveral factors, many of which are outside afamntrol. Our effective tax rate may
be affected by the proportion of our revenues acdme (loss) before taxes in the various domeaticisternational jurisdictions in which we
operate. Our revenue and operating results areuiffo predict and may fluctuate substantiallynfr quarter to quarter. We are also subject to
changing tax laws, regulations and interpretatiomaultiple jurisdictions in which we operate, aslixas the requirements of certain tax and
other accounting body rulings. Since we must estrar annual effective tax rate each quarter baseglcombination of actual results and
forecasted results of subsequent quarters, anifisat change in our actual quarterly or forecdstanual results may adversely impact the
effective tax rate for the period. Our estimatedusi effective tax rate may fluctuate for a varietyeasons, including:

e impacts from our inability to benefit from tharcyback of net losses expected to be incurreds@alf 2016 and thereafter due to the
limitations of the two year loss carryback for fealdax purposes.

< changes in forecasted annual operating incomessrig jurisdictior
» changes in relative proportions of revenue andrireor loss before taxes in the various jurisdicionwhich we operat
< changes to the valuation allowance on net defémedsset

» changes to actual or forecasted permanent difters between book and tax reporting, includingakesffects of purchase
accounting for acquisitions and non-recurring ckargghich may cause fluctuations between report@pgs;

e impacts from any future tax settlements with stideral or foreign tax authoritie

e impacts from increases or decreases in taxveselue to new assessments of risk, the expirafitime statute of limitations or the
completion of government audits;

* impacts from changes in tax laws, regulatiors iaterpretations in the jurisdictions in which weerate, as well as the requirement:
of certain tax rulings;

e impacts from withholding requirements in variowm-U.S. jurisdictions and our ability to recotyse withholdings, which may
depend on how much revenue we have in a partipuiadiction to offset the related expenses;

* impacts from acquisitions and related integratictivéies; o
e impacts from new FASB requiremel

Although we believe our estimates are reasondieultimate tax outcome may differ from the amouatorded in our financial
statements and may materially affect our finan@allts in future periods. In fiscal 2014, we relgat a valuation allowance on the majority of
our deferred tax assets, net of liabilities sifmedssets are not more likely than not to be r@dlased upon our assessment of all positive an
negative evidence. Realization of deferred taxtasselependent upon future taxable earnings,iiad of which is uncertain. Due to losse:
fiscal 2014 and 2015, and expected losses in f&2Hb and potentially future years in the U.S. ma&ntained a full valuation allowance on
deferred tax assets in the U.S. Due to foreignaip®y losses in previous years and continued fareagnings volatility, we continued to
maintain a full valuation allowance for our foreigaferred tax assets in China, Brazil and the dritmgdom. In the event deferred tax assets
cannot be realized based upon the ability to cackllosses and credits within the carryback peod effective tax rate would be negatively
impacted.

We rely on our customers for timely and accuratebsariber and vehicle sales information. A failure disruption in the provisioning of this
data to us would materially and adversely affectr@bility to manage our business effectively.

We rely on our automotive and OEM customers to igi®us with reports on the number of vehicles thaywith our on-board and
brought-in navigation services included and to temyalties for those sales to us. We also relponwireless carrier customers to bill
subscribers and collect monthly fees for our mobé#egigation services, either directly or througidtparty service providers. If our customers
or their third party service providers provide ughwinaccurate data or experience errors or outagtseir own billing and provisioning
systems when performing these services, our reverayebe less than anticipated or may be subjemtijisstment with the customer. In the
past, we have experienced errors in wireless cagporting. If we are unable to identify and resotliscrepancies in a timely manner, our
revenue may vary more than anticipated from peagokeriod and this could harm our business, opagatisults and financial condition.
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We rely on a proprietary provisioning and reportirgystem to track end user activation, deactivataord usage data and any material
failures in this system could harm our revenue, aft our costs and impair our ability to manage oowsiness effectively

Our provisioning and reporting system that auttoatéis end users and tracks the number of end aisétheir use of our services is a
proprietary and customized system that we develagednally. Although we believe that the flexibyliof this service to integrate tightly with
wireless carriers’ reporting and provisioning syssegives us a competitive advantage, we mightriegenue and the ability to manage our
business effectively if the system were to expegematerial failures or be unable to scale as asinless grows. In addition, we may not be
able to report our financial results on a timelgibaf our customers question the accuracy of ecords or we experience significant
discrepancies between the data generated by ouvisjmmoing and reporting systems and data genetatetdeir systems, or if our systems fail
we are unable to report timely and accurate infoionao our third party data providers. The indhitio timely report our financial results
would impair the quality of our financial reportilagd could result in the delisting of our commarckt

If our end users increase their usage of our sels; our operating loss may increase, or we may mlanger losses because we offer t
service as a free offering or usage for paid offegls outpaces our expectatior

With limited exceptions, fees for the use of ouws®s do not vary depending on whether or howrofile end user uses our services, ant
we offer certain of our mobile phone based navigesiervices for free. Historically, end users usiagain mobile phones or under certain
service plans tended to use our services moredtiem end users. We budget and operate our seilwyoemking certain assumptions about
usage patterns. If our end users were to furtheease their usage of our services substantialigaye end users access our services for free
through a freemium model, we would incur additioegbenses to expand our server capacity throughsriof third party hosted services and
pay additional third party content fees. These timtthl costs would harm our operating results anarfcial condition.

We rely on third party data and content to provider services and if we were unable to obtain corttahreasonable prices, or at all, our
gross margins and our ability to provide our sergwould be harmec

We rely on third party data and content to provade services, including map data, POI, traffic infiation, gas prices and weather
information. If our suppliers of this data or camtevere to enter into exclusive relationships vather providers of location services or were to
discontinue providing such information and we weanable to replace them cost effectively, or atall, ability to provide our services would
be harmed. Our gross margins may also be affettad tost of third party data and content increasfstantially. Although we have recently
announced efforts to use OSM data to reduce thenmgs we incur for third party map data, we maybeatuccessful at integrating OSM data
into our products and may experience difficultyméustomer acceptance if the quality of the consugarerated data within OSM is lower
than that of paid maps. We have only recently ohiced mobile phone-based navigation with OSM anddhed our first brought-in
automotive navigation service with OSM in 2015.8Asesult, we may not have sufficient data for awdtive manufacturers and OEMs to feel
comfortable electing to use OSM in the products semtices we provide them.

We obtain map data from TomTom and HERE, whichcarapanies owned by our current and potential cogpefTomTom and Nokia,
respectively. Accordingly, these third party data @ontent providers may act in a manner thatismour best interest. For example, they |
cease to offer their map and POI data to us. We reasntly amended our TomTom agreement effecaneidry 30, 2014 to extend the license
period for TomTom map data for voice-guided turntlmyn GPS navigation service for mobile phonesépkéor Sprint’s bundled offering,
automotive navigation products) through Decembei2815. Our agreement with HERE was automaticalhewed under its existing terms
through January 31, 2016, and automatically reffewsuccessive one year periods unless either paotyides notice of non-renewal at least
180 days prior to the expiration of the applicaklen. Nokia, which owns HERE, has recently agreesktl HERE to a consortium of German
automobile manufacturers, and the sale of HERE imagase our costs.

We may identify other requisite content and contefated technologies, including certain geocodiath necessary for our OSM
products, that we may be unable to license or devieternally. If we are unsuccessful in licensihgse content or technologies from third
parties or developing them internally, we may bahie to successfully launch our OSM-based prodgiotsally and across all desired product
offerings.

We may not be able to upgrade our navigation sesvidtatform to support certain advanced featurdsamctionality without obtaining
technology licenses from third parties. Obtainihgse licenses may be costly and may delay theduntt@n of such features and functionality,
and these licenses may not be available on comatlgrtavorable terms, or at all. The inability téfer advanced features or functionality, or a
delay in our ability to upgrade our navigation $eeg platform, may adversely affect consumer denf@andur navigation services and,
consequently, harm our business.

We also use our proprietary provisioning and repgrsystem to record and report royalties we owthital party providers of content
used by end users in connection with our serviCestain of the third party content providers hawe ight to audit our use of their services
and, if we were found to have under or incorrentlyorted usage, we may be required to pay the plairty content providers for the actual
usage, as well as interest and the cost of the.g\my significant error in
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our recording and payment of royalties to our thpiadty content providers could have a materialaherse effect on our financial results. We
may also incur losses as a result of any signifiearor.

Network failures, disruptions or capacity constrdgin our third party hosted data center facilitieould affect the performance of ot
navigation services and harm our reputation and orgvenue.

We use hosted services provided by AWS and wirelasser networks to deliver our navigation andextiging platform services. Our
operations rely to a significant degree on thecidfit and uninterrupted operation of the third pddta centers we use. In the event that AWS
experiences a disruption in services or a natusalstier, our ability to continue providing our sees would be compromised. Depending or
growth rate in the number of our end users and tisgige of our services, if we do not timely cortgptbe negotiation for and scale of
additional hosting services, we may experienceagpesues, which could lead to service failured disruptions. In addition, if we are una
to secure third party hosting services with appeipmower, cooling and bandwidth capacity, we fpayinable to efficiently and effectively
scale our business to manage the addition of neless carrier customers, increases in the nunflmrraend users or increases in data traffic

AWS hosting services are potentially vulnerabldamage or interruption from a variety of sourcasluding fire, flood, earthquake,
power loss, telecommunications or computer sysfaihge, human error, terrorist acts or other egseWe have not yet completed a
comprehensive business continuity plan and therdeano assurance that the measures implementesi toydate, or measures implemente
us in the future, to manage risks related to ndtaitures or disruptions in our data centers Wwéladequate, or that the redundancies built int
our servers will work as planned in the event dfuoek failures or other disruptions. In particuldinye experienced damage or interruptions tc
AWS hosting services our ability to provide efficieand uninterrupted operation of our services wdnd significantly impaired.

We could also experience failures of our data gerdeinterruptions of our services, or other peois in connection with our operations,
as a result of:

» damage to or failure of our computer softwaréamdware or our connections and outsourced seaviemgements with third
parties;

e errors in the processing of d¢

* computer viruses or software defe

» physical or electronic breaks, sabotage, intentional acts of vandalism amdai events; ¢
» errors by our employees or third party service futers

Poor performance in or disruptions of our servioasld harm our reputation, delay market acceptafcar services and subject us to
liabilities. Our wireless carrier agreements reguis to meet at least 99.9% operational uptimeirements, excluding scheduled maintenance
periods, or be subjected to penalties. Any outagenetwork or system, or other unanticipated gobihat leads to an interruption or
disruption of our navigation services, could havaaderial adverse effect on our operating resultsfanancial condition.

We may not be able to enhance our location servitekeep pace with technological and market devehgmts, or develop new location
services in a timely manner or at competitive psc

The market for location services is characterizgddpid technological change, evolving industrnyndids, frequent new product
introductions and short product life cycles. Tokeace with technological developments, satisfygasing customer requirements and act
product acceptance, our future success dependsaupability to enhance our current navigation &&y platform and advertising services
platforms and to continue to develop and introduee navigation services, advertising services dahdrdocation-based product offerings and
enhanced performance features and functionality timely basis at competitive prices. Our inabjlfyr technological or other reasons, to
enhance, develop, introduce or deliver compellenyises and products in a timely manner, or atrailesponse to changing market conditions
technologies or consumer expectations could hawatarial adverse effect on our operating resultsooid result in our services becoming
obsolete. Our ability to compete successfully dépend in large measure on our ability to maindai@chnically skilled development and
engineering team and to adapt to technologicalgdsand advances in the industry, including progidor the continued compatibility of our
services platform with evolving industry standaatisl protocols and competitive network operatingremments.
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Our lengthy sales cycle makes it difficult for us predict when we will generate revenue from autdritie manufacturer and OEM
customers.

Being selected to participate and being designtedriaw vehicle models is a lengthy and time consgrprocess and our navigation
services platform may not be included for factagdnd our control if we are participating in thénidde design with an OEM. Because of th
lengthy cycles, we may experience delays fromithe tve begin the sales process and incur increasstd and expenses to obtain a partner &
a customer and integrate our navigation servicatfqum until the time we generate revenue from swichless carrier, OEM or automobile
manufacturer. These delays may make it difficulptedict when we will generate revenue from newamegrs. For example, we entered into
an agreement with GM in January 2014, but we danttipate generating meaningful revenue reladetie¢ distribution of our embedded and
connected navigation solutions in vehicles undsragreement until certain model year 2017 vehictase to market. While we may launch
brought-in services, such as GOnStar RemoteLink application and Toyota's SGR® Link, more quickly, we may not be able to retipe
a significant portion of the revenue we generaienfthose services if we have obligations to progidgport for a long period of time. Althou
we may develop usage data to support a more rap@&hue recognition for those services, we may ae¢ Isufficient evidence to support
earlier revenue recognition.

A large percentage of our research and developmaperations are conducted in China and Romania, amar ability to introduce new
services and support our existing services costeff’ely depends on our ability to manage those otendevelopment sites successfu

Our success depends on our ability to enhancewterd services and develop new services and ptedapidly and cost effectively. A
majority of our research and development persoaresin China and Romania. Although we have soughgtain certain key personnel, we
may be unable to retain them over the long-ternaddition, we have been experiencing significantéases in compensation costs in China
due to competitive market conditions for qualifidff, as well as higher risk of employee turnameecertain China markets.

We also expect that we may continue to consolidat&in of our operations or reduce our workfofagd are unable to continue to
replace wireless carrier revenue with other souofdsgh gross margin revenue. These reorganizatiwmeductions in force could result in
unexpected costs or delays in product developnhe@ntcobuld impair our ability to meet market windogrscause us to forego certain new
product opportunities.

Because our long term success depends on our aghiiditincrease the number of end users located alasif the United States, our busine
will be susceptible to risks associated with intational operations.

As of June 30, 2015 , we had international openatia China, Romania, Germany, Mexico and Japane®perience with wireless
carriers, automobile manufacturers and OEMs anériiders outside the United States is limited. @uenue from customers in the United
States comprised 96% and 94% of our total reveoufistal 2015 and 2014 , respectively. However,aatomotive navigation products are
distributed globally in many different regions ddesthe United States, including South America,dper;, Asia, Australia, China and New
Zealand. Our limited experience in operating owibess outside the United States increases théhaslour current and future international
expansion efforts may not be successful. In pdei¢cour business model may not be successfulriticpéar countries or regions outside the
United States for reasons that we currently daantitipate. In addition, conducting internationpécations subjects us to risks that we hawvi
generally faced in the United States. These include

« fluctuations in currency exchange ra
e unexpected changes in foreign regulatory requires
« difficulties in managing the staffing of remote ogigons

e potentially adverse tax consequences, inclutiegcomplexities of foreign value added tax systdoreign tax withholding,
restrictions on the repatriation of earnings anahngfes in tax rates;

« dependence on foreign wireless carriers with difiépricing model:

e roaming charges to end us:

e availability of reliable mobile networks in thoseuntries

* requirements that we comply with local telecommatian regulations and automobile hands free lawkase countrie
« the burdens of complying with a wide variety ofdign laws and different legal standa

e increased financial accounting and reporting busderd complexitie

e political, social and economic instability in sojnesdictions

e terrorist attacks and security concerns in genara
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* reduced or varied protection for intellectual pnapeights in some countrie

The occurrence of any one of these risks could thegha affect our international business and, cojsatly, our operating results.
Additionally, operating in international marketgjoéres significant management attention and firarreisources. We cannot be certain that th
investment and additional resources required @béish, acquire or integrate operations in othemtges will produce desired levels of reve
or profitability and we may incur larger lossesaa®sult.

We rely on our management team and need specialpmtonnel to grow our business, and the loss oé @m more key employees or our
inability to attract and retain qualified personnelould harm our business.

Our success and future growth depend on the skitisking relationships and continued services afraanagement team. Our future
performance will depend on our ability to contirtagetain our senior management, particularly eghowth areas of our business, such as
automotive and advertising.

Our future success also will depend on our ahititattract, retain and motivate highly skilled memsel in the United States and
internationally. All of our U.S. employees work fes on an at will basis. Competition for highlylld personnel is intense, particularly in the
software industry and for persons with experienith 8PS and location services. The high degre@uofpetition for personnel we experience
has resulted in and may also continue to resuktarincurrence of significantly higher compensatosts to attract, hire and retain employees.
We have from time to time experienced, and we exjgecontinue to experience, difficulty in attrangi hiring and retaining highly skilled
employees with appropriate qualifications. In aiddit existing employees often consider the valuthefstock awards they receive in
connection with their employment. If our stock grigerforms poorly, it may adversely affect our it retain highly skilled employees. Our
inability to attract and retain the necessary pamsbcould adversely affect our business and fuguogth prospects.

We may be required to incur unanticipated capitadpenditures.
Circumstances may arise that require us to maketigifzated capital expenditures, including:

* requirements to replace outsourced hosting thitid party data centers for which we provide equept due to cost, natural
disasters or inadequate quality of services;

» the replacement of outdated or failing equipment
» the acquisition of key technologies to supportxgand our products and servic

We rely on network infrastructures provided by owireless carrier customers, mobile phones and in-eareless connections for the
delivery of our navigation services to end users.

We generally provide our navigation services frawnck party hosted servers, which require closegiratton with the wireless carriers’
networks. We may be unable to provide high qualdyvices if the wireless carriers’ networks perfqroorly or experience delayed response
times. Our future success will depend on the abdita and quality of our wireless carrier custorsiemetworks in the United States and abroac
to run our mobile navigation services. This inclsideployment and maintenance of reliable netwoliis thve speed, data capacity and securit
necessary to provide reliable wireless communioatgervices. We do not establish or maintain thésgess networks and have no control
over interruptions or failures in the deploymend amaintenance by wireless carrier customers of tietivork infrastructure. In addition, these
wireless network infrastructures may be unableufipsrt the demands placed on them if the numbsule$cribers increases, or if existing or
future subscribers increase their use of limiteddwadth. Market acceptance of our mobile navigaservices will depend in part on the que
of these wireless networks and the ability of oireless carrier customers to effectively managé théscribers’ expectations.

In addition, certain automobile navigation applicas rely on wireless connections between the Velaied our network. We have no
influence or control over the vehicteireless equipment and if it does not operatesatisfactory manner, our ability to provide thesevice:
would be impaired and our reputation would be hakrme

Wireless communications have experienced a vaoietytages and other delays as a result of infrestre and equipment failures and
could face outages and delays in the future. Thateges and delays could affect our ability to gievour navigation services successfully. In
addition, changes by a wireless carrier to its petinfrastructure may interfere with the integoatiof our servers with their network and
delivery of our navigation services and may caumkbesers to lose functionality for services theyehalready purchased. Any of the foregoing
could harm our business, operating results anadiacondition.

We cannot control the quality standards of our l@se carrier customers, their mobile phone progidantomobile manufacturers and
other technology customers. We cannot guarantééhibanobile phones or icar wireless equipment are free from errors orasféf errors o
defects occur in mobile phones or services offésedur wireless carrier customers, it could reButtonsumers terminating our services,
damage to our reputation, increased customer geavid support costs,
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warranty claims, lost revenue and diverted develammesources, any of which could adversely affectousiness, results of operations and
financial condition.

Mergers, consolidations or other strategic transicts in the wireless communications industry couddeaken our competitive positio
reduce the number of our map providers and adveysaffect our business.

The mapping data industry continues to experiepcsdaidation. Should one of our map providers cidate or enter into an alliance
with another navigation provider, this could havwaaterial adverse impact on our business. Curregitly of our map suppliers are owned by
competitors in the navigation space. Nokia, whism® HERE, has recently agreed to sell HERE to aaium of German automobile
manufacturers. Microsoft recently also sold somigsofnapping assets to Uber, which may reduce ctitiggeamong the remaining map
suppliers. Such a consolidation may cause us todarap supplier or require us to increase thdtiegave pay to map vendors as a result of
enhanced supplier leverage, which would have ativegeffect on our business. We may be unabletace our map suppliers, were we to
lose a map supplier, and the remaining map suppl@rincrease license fees. In addition, as weimoatto use more OSM-based maps and n
longer purchase maps from those suppliers, we raaynhble to purchase other data that is integmiitanavigation products from our existing
map suppliers.

Changes in business direction and market conditiamuld lead to charges related to structural reorgzation and discontinuation of
certain products or services, which may adversdfget our financial results.

In response to changing market conditions and ¢s@el to focus on new and more potentially attvactipportunities, we may be requi
to strategically realign our resources and congielstructuring, eliminating, or otherwise exitingri@min business activities. For example, in
April 2013, we sold our enterprise business toira tharty, which resulted in a net gain to us Habaequired us to provide transition services
to the buyer. In the fourth quarters of fiscal 2@h8l 2014, in order to better align and focus esources we initiated restructuring plans
resulting in reductions of approximately 83 and 1llBtime positions, respectively, and restruabgricharges of $1.5 million and $2.4 million,
respectively, related to severance and benefitthiopositions eliminated. Any decision to reduneestment in, dispose of, or otherwise exit
business activities may result in the recordingpscial charges, such as workforce reduction andssive facility space costs.

Risks related to our intellectual property and relgtion

We operate in an industry with extensive intelleatyproperty litigation. Claims of infringement agast us, our customers, or other business
partners may cause our business, operating resats financial condition to suffer

Our commercial success depends in part upon ugastmers and our customers not infringing intéllatproperty rights owned by oth
and being able to resolve claims of intellectualpgarty infringement without major financial expetudés and/or need to alter our technologies
or cease certain activities. We operate in an imgwgith extensive intellectual property litigati@md it is not uncommon for our wireless
carrier customers, handset manufacturing partaetsmobile manufacturers and OEMs and competitobetinvolved in infringement lawsu
by or against third parties. Many industry partaips that own, or claim to own, intellectual prapexggressively assert their rights, and our
customers and other business partners, who we ageegtain circumstances to indemnify for intellead property infringement claims related
to our services, are often targets of such assertiWe cannot determine with certainty whetherexigting or future third party intellectual
property rights would require us to alter our temlbgies, obtain licenses or cease certain actdvitie

We have received, and may in the future receiamd from third parties alleging infringement aritles related claims. As of the date of
this Annual Report on Form 10-K, we were named dsfandant in several cases alleging that our @esvnfringe other parties' patents, as
well as other matters. See Part |, Iltem 3, “LegatPedings,” for a description of these matter@sEhcases and future litigation may make it
necessary to defend ourselves and our customerstaadbusiness partners by determining the saagderceability and validity of third party
proprietary rights or to establish our proprietdghts. Some of our competitors may have substhntiseater resources than we do and ma
able to sustain the costs of complex intellectwapprty litigation to a greater degree and for lemgeriods of time than we could. In addition,
patent holding companies that focus solely on ektrg royalties and settlements by enforcing patighits may target us, our wireless carrier
customers or our other business partners. Thespartes typically have little or no product reveraunel therefore our patents may provide |
or no deterrence against such companies filingnpaté&ingement lawsuits against us. Regardlesstadther claims that we are infringing
patents or other intellectual property rights haxg merit, these claims are time consuming andyctisevaluate and defend and could:

» adversely affect our relationships with our currentuture customers and other business par

e cause delays or stoppages in the shipment efhéglenabled or preloaded mobile phones or vehigtesause us to modify or
suspend the provision of our navigation services;

* cause us to incur significant expenses in defendiighs brought against our customers, other basipartners or t
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» divert management's attention and resou

e subject us to significant damages or settlem

* require us to enter into settlements, royalty egnising agreements on unfavorable terrr

e require us or our business partners to cease rettvities and/or modify our products or servi

In addition to liability for monetary damages agstins or, in certain circumstances, our custonveegnay be prohibited from developil
commercializing or continuing to provide certainoofr navigation services unless we obtain licefizes the holders of the patents or other
intellectual property rights. We cannot assure @t we will be able to obtain any such licenses@mmercially reasonable terms, or at all. If
we do not obtain such licenses, our business, tipgnasults and financial condition could be miatér adversely affected and we could, for
example, be required to cease offering our navigagervices or be required to materially altermavigation services, which could involve
substantial costs and time to develop.

Indemnity provisions in various agreements potetfiffaexpose us to substantial liability for intellegal property infringement, damage
caused by defective software and other losses.

Our agreements with our customers include indewuatifin provisions. We agree to indemnify them @mskes suffered or incurred in
connection with our navigation services or produictsiuding as a result of intellectual propertfrimgement, damages caused by defects and
damages caused by viruses, worms and other malisiitware. The term of these indemnity provisisngenerally perpetual after execution
of the corresponding agreement, and the maximuengiat amount of future payments we could be reglio make under these
indemnification provisions is generally substanéiatl may be unlimited. In addition, some of thegeaments permit our indemnitees to
terminate their agreements with us if they deteentirat the use of our navigation services or prtedindringes third party intellectual property
rights.

We have received, and expect to receive in thedutlemands for indemnification under these agratgsn&hese demands can be very
expensive to settle or defend, and we have indiseipcurred substantial legal fees and settlew@sts in connection with certain of these
indemnity demands. Furthermore, we have been edtifiy several customers that they have been nasndefendants in certain patent
infringement cases for which they may seek indeitatibn from us. See Part |, Item 3 “Legal Procagdf for a description of these matters.
These indemnity demands remain outstanding andsalwed as of the date of this Form 10-K. Largefeiindemnity payments and associatec
legal fees and expenses, including potential indgnpayments and legal fees and expenses relaiitftetcurrent or future notifications, could
materially harm our business, operating resultsfanashcial condition.

We may in the future agree to defend and indenmifycustomers in connection with the pending nedtibns or future demands,
irrespective of whether we believe that we havelaigation to indemnify them or whether we beli¢kat our services and products infringe
the asserted intellectual property rights. Alteiredy, we may reject certain of our customers’ imuhity demands, which may lead to disputes
with our customers and may negatively impact olati@nships with them or result in litigation agstius. Our customers may also claim that
any rejection of their indemnity demands const#genaterial breach of our agreements with thelowalg them to terminate such
agreements. Our agreements with certain customaydmterminated in the event an infringement cligimade against us and it is reasoni
determined that there is a possibility our techgglor services infringed upon a third party’s righf, as a result of indemnity demands, we
make substantial payments, our relationships withcostomers are negatively impacted or if anywfaustomer agreements is terminated,
business, operating results and financial conditimnd be materially adversely affected.

The occurrence or perception of a security breaahdisclosure of confidential information could harnour business.

Our products and services include the transmismnshstorage of certain personal, private and cenfidl information primarily related
the location of our end users. If there is a séglieach or if there is an inappropriate disclesefrany of these types of information, we could
be exposed to investigations, litigation, fines paedalties. Remediation of and liability for logsnwisappropriation of end user or employee
personal information could have a material adveffext on our business and financial results. Ef/ere were not held liable for such event, a
security breach or inappropriate disclosure of quaa private or confidential information could hmour reputation and our relationships with
current and potential end users. Even the peraepfia security risk could inhibit market accep&iof our navigation services. In addition, we
may be required to invest additional resourcegatept against damages caused by any actual agipedcdisruptions of our navigation
services or security breaches.

Recent United States Supreme Court cases andliidpeion have addressed issues relating to pingithformation regarding the
location of a vehicle or mobile device to law ecEment agencies without a warrant. Other lawseélad mobile phones and integrated GPS
tracking in a vehicle remains unsettled and we begubjected to different standards in differersglictions. We may incur substantial cos
we are required to litigate whether an individulsation can be disclosed without a warrant, whichld harm our operating results. We may
also be required to provide information about tieation of an end user’s mobile phone to governrastitorities, which could result in public
perception that we are providing
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the government with intelligence information andedesome end users from using our services. Aniefe developments could harm our
business.

Changes in government regulation of the wirelessvmounications, the automobile and mobile advertisimglustries may adversely affect
our business.

It is possible that a number of laws and regulatioray be adopted in the United States and elsewinareould restrict the wireless
communications industry, further regulate the autbite industry or impair the mobile advertising urstry, including laws and regulations
regarding lawful interception of personal data,dsfree use of mobile phones or navigation servigdsn autos or the control of such use,
privacy, taxation, content suitability, copyrighitdhantitrust. Furthermore, the growth and develagtroéelectronic storage of personal
information may prompt calls for more stringent somer protection laws that may impose additionatléns on companies such as ours that
store personal information. We anticipate that k&tipn of the industries in which our products aedvices are used will increase and that we
will be required to devote legal and other resositceaddress this regulation. Changes in curreve ta regulations or the imposition of new
laws and regulations in the United States or elsgehegarding the wireless communications or aubdleindustries may make operation
more costly, and may materially reduce our abtlityncrease or maintain sales of our products andces.

Warranty claims, product liability claims and prodati recalls could subject us to significant costschadversely affect our financial results.

We warrant our automotive navigation products tdrbe from defects in materials, workmanship ansigtefor periods ranging from
three months to seven years. If our navigationisesvor products contain defects, there are eimdiree maps supplied by third party map
providers or if our end users do not heed our wagsiabout the proper use of these products, asiksbr accidents could occur resulting in
property damage, personal injury or death. If aithese events occurs, we could be subject tofgignt liability for personal injury and
property damage and under certain circumstancdd bewsubject to a judgment for punitive damagesddition, if any of our designed
products are defective or are alleged to be defectve may be required to participate in a recathpaign. Warranty claims, a successful
product liability claim or a requirement that wetp@pate in a product recall campaign may advgraéfiect our results of operations and
financial condition.

We maintain limited insurance against accidentteelaisks involving our products. However, we cargssure you that this insurance
would be sufficient to cover the cost of damagesthers or will continue to be available at commaglg reasonable rates. In addition, we may
be named as a defendant in litigation by consuimeligidually or on behalf of a class if their haetis or automobiles suffer problems from
software downloads from our customers. If we argblmto obtain indemnification from our customarday damages or legal fees we may
incur in connection with such complaints, our fioi@hposition may be adversely impacted. In additiasurance coverage generally will not
cover awards of punitive damages and may not ditnecost of associated legal fees and defense tsts are unable to maintain sufficient
insurance to cover product liability costs or if dnsurance coverage does not cover an award,usinéss, financial condition and results of
operations could be adversely affected.

Government regulation designed to protect end uggvacy may make it difficult for us to provide owgervices or adopt advertising based
revenue models.

We transmit and store a large volume of persoriatimation in the course of providing our produatsl @ervices. This information is
increasingly subject to legislation and regulationsumerous jurisdictions around the world. Thizsgrnment action is typically intended to
protect the privacy and security of personal infation that is collected, stored and transmittedrifrom the governing jurisdiction.

Legislation may also be adopted in various jurisdits that prohibits use of personal informatiod ararch histories to target end users
with tailored advertising, or provide advertisirtigail. Although our advertising revenue to dateds significant, we anticipate we will continue
to grow advertising revenue in the future to im@@verage revenue per user in certain markets.

We could be adversely affected if domestic or imiional legislation or regulations are expandektuire changes in our business
practices or if governing jurisdictions interpretimplement their legislation or regulations in wahat negatively affect our business. For
example, the USA PATRIOT Act provides certain rigtd U.S. law enforcement authorities to obtairspeal information in the control of
U.S. persons and entities without notifying theeeffiéd individuals. If we are required to allocaggsicant resources to modify the delivery of
our services to enable enhanced legal intercepfitime personal information that we transmit armtestour results of operations and financial
condition may be adversely affected.

In addition, because various foreign jurisdictitiase different laws and regulations concerningstbeage and transmission of personal
information, we may face unknown requirements fitse compliance challenges in new internationaketarthat we seek to enter. Such
variation could subject us to costs, delayed serldanches, liabilities or negative publicity tlieauld impair our ability to expand our
operations into some countries and therefore lmitfuture growth.
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As privacy and data protection have become morsitbanissues, we may also become exposed to patéabilities as a result of
differing views on the privacy of personal infornagit These and other privacy concerns could adlyeisgact our business, results of
operations and financial condition.

If we are unable to protect our intellectual propgrand proprietary rights, our competitive positiand our business could be harme

We rely primarily on a combination of patent lawvademark laws, copyright laws, trade secrets,idenfiality procedures and
contractual provisions to protect our proprietaghinology. However, our issued patents and anydyatents that may issue may not survive
a legal challenge to their scope, validity or eaéability, or provide significant protection for.(ghe failure of our patents to adequately prc
our technology might make it easier for our contpetito offer similar products or technologiesatidition, patents may not issue from any of
our current or any future applications.

Monitoring unauthorized use of our intellectual peaty is difficult and costly. The steps we haveetato protect our proprietary rights
may not be adequate to prevent misappropriatiaupfntellectual property. We may not be able ttedeunauthorized use of, or take
appropriate steps to enforce, our intellectual priyprights. Our competitors may also independetitlyelop similar technology. In addition,
the laws of many countries do not protect our detdary rights to as great an extent as do the t#itise United States. Any failure by us to
meaningfully protect our intellectual property abuésult in competitors offering products that inpmrate our most technologically advanced
features, which could seriously reduce demand Giomavigation services. In addition, we may infileire need to initiate infringement claims
or litigation. Litigation, whether we are a plaffibr a defendant, can be expensive, time consumirtgmay divert the efforts of our technical
staff and managerial personnel, which could harmboginess, whether or not such litigation resialis determination favorable to us.

Confidentiality agreements with employees and otharay not adequately prevent disclosure of our gacrets and other proprietary
information.

We have devoted substantial resources to the dawelot of our proprietary technology, including gireprietary software components
our navigation services and related processegdker ®o protect our proprietary technology and peses, we rely in part on confidentiality
agreements with our employees, licensees, indepécdatractors and other advisors. These agreemesiot effectively prevent disclosure
of our confidential information and may not provigie adequate remedy in the event of unauthorizadadiure of our confidential information.
In addition, others may independently discoverdraelcrets and proprietary information, and in stades we could not assert any trade secre
rights against such parties. Costly and time comsgiitigation could be necessary to enforce anémheine the scope of our proprietary rights,
and failure to obtain or maintain trade secretgutibn could adversely affect our competitive basmposition.

We use open source software in our navigation sesvplatform and client applications and may useempen source software in the
future. Use of open source software may subjechauigation services platform and client applicasido general release or require us to re-
engineer our navigation services platform and tlplications, which may cause harm to our businém time to time, there have been
claims challenging the ownership of open sourcensok against companies that incorporate open s@aftware into their products. As a
result, we could be subject to suits by partieBriteg ownership of what we believe to be open sewaftware. Some open source licenses
contain requirements that we make available sotwde for modifications or derivative works we ceehised upon the open source software
and that we license such modifications or derivaativorks under the terms of a particular open solizease or other license granting third
parties certain rights of further use. If we congbour proprietary software products with open sewaftware in a certain manner, we could,
under certain of the open source licenses, benexdjto release our proprietary source code. Intimthdio risks related to license requirements,
usage of open source software can lead to gresksrthan use of third party commercial softwasegpen source licensors generally do not
provide warranties or controls on origin of theta@fre. Open source license terms may be ambigualisany of the risks associated with
usage of open source cannot be eliminated, and cibulot properly addressed, negatively affect lousiness. If we were found to have
inappropriately used open source software, we neagguired to release our proprietary source aedengineer our navigation services
platform and client applications, discontinue thkef our service in the event re-engineering oabe accomplished on a timely basis or take
other remedial action that may divert resourcesydwam our development efforts, any of which coatilersely affect our business, operating
results and financial condition.

Risks related to being a publicly traded companydamlding our common stock

As a public company, we are obligated to develod amintain effective internal control over financlaeporting. We may not alway
complete our assessment of the effectiveness ofilmi@rnal control over financial reporting in a tirely manner, or such internal control mi
not be determined to be effective, which may adebraffect investor confidence in our company ara a result, the value of our common
stock.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act requires that we test dernial control over financial reporting and discl@scontrols and procedures annually
For example, as of June 30, 2015 , we performeisyand process evaluation and testing of ourniater
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control over financial reporting to allow managemand our independent registered public accouritingto report on the effectiveness of our
internal control over financial reporting, as reqdiby Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. @anmliance with Section 404 requires that
we incur substantial expense and expend significemagement time on complianedated issues. Moreover, if we are not able topdgmwith
the requirements of Section 404 in the futuref wre or our independent registered public accogfiim identify deficiencies in our internal
control over financial reporting that are deemebdanaterial weaknesses, the market price of agkshay decline and we could be subject tc
sanctions or investigations by the NASDAQ Globalrkéd, the SEC or other regulatory authorities, Wwhiould require significant additional
financial and management resources.

We will incur continued high costs and demands uporanagement as a result of complying with the laargl regulations affecting public
companies, which could harm our operating results.

As a public company, we incur significant legalc@aanting, investor relations and other expensesjding costs associated with public
company reporting requirements. We also have iecuand will continue to incur costs associated witirent corporate governance
requirements, including requirements under Sectihand other provisions of the Sarbanes-Oxley &ctyell as rules implemented by the
SEC and the stock exchange on which our commokk stdcaded. We are generally not eligible to répmder reduced disclosure requirem
or benefit from longer phase in periods for “emegggrowth companies” as such term is defined inJtirapstart Our Business Act of 2012.
The expenses incurred by public companies for téppand corporate governance purposes have iretteramatically over the past several
years. We expect these rules and regulations tiincento impact our legal and financial compliagosts substantially and to make sc
activities more time consuming and costly. We arahle currently to estimate these costs with amgyeateof certainty. We also expect that,
over time, it may be more expensive for us to abthiector and officer liability insurance. As &udt, it may be more difficult for us to attract
and retain qualified individuals to serve on ouatubof directors or as our executive officers if gagnot provide a level of insurance coverage
that they believe is adequate.

Regulations relating to offshore investment acties by residents of China may limit our ability secquire Chinese companies and cot
adversely affect our business.

In October 2005, SAFE, a Chinese government aggmoymulgated “Relevant Issues Concerning Foreigtch&rge Control on Domestic
Residents’ Corporate Financing and Roundtrip Inmesit Through Offshore Special Purpose VehiclesCiocular 75, that states that if
Chinese residents use assets or equity interesiteimChinese entities as capital contributionegtablish offshore companies or inject asse
equity interests of their Chinese entities intasbffre companies to raise capital overseas, theynegister with local SAFE branches with
respect to their overseas investments in offshongpanies. They must also file amendments to tegistrations if their offshore companies
experience material events involving capital vasiatsuch as changes in share capital, share ér@nsfiergers and acquisitions, spinoff
transactions, long term equity or debt investmentsses of assets in China to guarantee offshdigations. Under this regulation, their failt
to comply with the registration procedures settfamtsuch regulation may result in restrictionsgeimposed on the foreign exchange activi
of the relevant Chinese entity, including restans on the payment of dividends and other distidiostto its offshore parent, as well as
restrictions on the capital inflow from the offskarntity to the Chinese entity.

We attempt to comply, and attempt to ensure thastmekholders who are subject to Circular 75 aheiorelated rules comply, with the
relevant requirements. However, we cannot provideassurances that all of our stockholders whdChiaese residents have complied or will
comply with our request to make or obtain any atile registrations or comply with other requiretserquired by Circular 75 or other
related rules. Any future failure by any of ourcitbolders who is a Chinese resident, or contrdded Chinese resident, to comply with
relevant requirements under this regulation coulgext us to fines or sanctions imposed by the €grgovernment, including restrictions on
our Chinese subsidiary’s ability to pay dividendsiake distributions to us.

If securities analysts do not publish research @ports about our business or if they publish negatievaluations of our stock, the price
our stock could decline.

We expect that the trading price for our commoulstwill be affected by any research or reports thdtistry or financial analysts publi
about us or our business. If one or more of théyatsawho may elect to cover us downgrade theiluatens of our stock, the price of our
stock could decline. For example, in late July 2Gallowing our earnings release for the three rhergnd fiscal year ended June 30, 2011,
several financial analysts published research tepmwering their price targets of our stock. Afterr announcement and the publication of
these reports, our stock price fell more than 40%ne or more of these analysts cease coveragarafompany, our stock may lose visibility
in the market, which in turn could cause its ptizelecline. As of June 30, 2015, only three redeanalysts published reports regarding our
company. In addition, if our stock were to trad@ites below $5.00 per share in the future, fifelranalysts may terminate coverage of our
company due to internal policies within their intraent banks, which could result in further stockc@ideclines.

Our stock price has fluctuated significantly and ma&ontinue to fluctuate in the future.
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Our common stock was sold in our IPO at $8.00 pares Although our common stock has traded at piésehigh as $22.07 per share, it
has also traded at prices as low as $4.65 ancehédsd to have significant downward and upward priogements in a relatively short time
period. Future fluctuations or declines in the imgdorice of our common stock may result from a bemof events or factors, including those
discussed in the preceding risk factors relatinguiooperations, as well as:

» actual or anticipated fluctuations in our operatiagults
» changes in the financial projections we may protathe public or our failure to meet these prof;

e announcements by us or our competitors of sizarit technical innovations, relationship changéh ey customers,
acquisitions, strategic partnerships, joint vergugapital raising activities or capital commitngnt

» the publics response to our press releases or other pulllmuanements, including our filings with the S
» lawsuits threatened or filed against us;
» large distributions of our common stock by sigrfit stockholders to limited partners or others whimediately resell the shar

General market conditions and domestic or inteonali macroeconomic factors unrelated to our peréorre, such as the continuing
unprecedented volatility in the financial marketsy also affect our stock price. For these reasomestors should not rely on recent trends tc
predict future stock prices or financial resultszdstors in our common stock may not be able tpadie of the shares they purchased at prices
above the IPO price, or, depending on market cimdit at all.

In addition, if the market price of our common $tdalls below $5.00 per share for an extended peofctime, under stock exchange
rules, our stockholders will not be able to usehssltares as collateral for borrowing in margin acts. Further, certain institutional investors
are restricted from investing in shares priced Wwe$6.00 per share. This inability to use sharesunfcommon stock as collateral and the
inability of certain institutional investors to iest in our shares may depress demand and leatksoadasuch shares creating downward
pressure on and increased volatility in the mapkiee of our common stock.

Recently, the market price for our common stocktheded only slightly above the cash value of @ammon stock. If investors do not
value our company as an ongoing business and aflg it for the cash on our balance sheet, oukgidce may decline if we continue to
incur net losses and use our cash to fund opegtile may also attract investors who are lookimgsFmrt-term gains in our shares rather that
being interested in our long-term outlook. As autgeghe price of our common stock may be volatile.

The concentration of ownership of our capital stotiknits your ability to influence corporate matters

Our executive officers, directors, current 5% aajer stockholders and entities affiliated withntHeeneficially owned (as determined in
accordance with the rules of the SEC) approximdiél$% of our common stock outstanding as of Jn€@15 . This significant
concentration of share ownership may adverselyctffe trading price for our common stock becansestors often perceive disadvantages i
owning stock in companies with controlling stocldwls. Also, these stockholders, acting togethdrpwiable to control our management and
affairs and matters requiring stockholder approwaluding the election of directors and the appitaf significant corporate transactions, suct
as mergers, consolidations or the sale of subathndill of our assets. Consequently, this conaittn of ownership may have the effect of
delaying or preventing a change of control, inahgda merger, consolidation or other business coatioim involving us, or discouraging a
potential acquirer from making a tender offer drestvise attempting to obtain control, even if tblagnge of control would benefit our other
stockholders.

ITEM 1B. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.

ITEM 2. PROPERTIES
Facilities

Our corporate headquarters are located at 950 Dgn€WDrive, Sunnyvale, California in an office cwtigig of approximately 175,000
square feet pursuant to a lease that expires ieleer 2019. This headquarters facility houses thienity of our U.S. research and
development, support, marketing and general andrastnative personnel. We lease approximately 32 @fuare feet of space in Shanghai,
China for our research and development, salesgoubst operations pursuant to a lease expiringept&nber 2016, approximately 9,000
square feet in Xi'an, China, for research and dgwalent
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operations pursuant to a lease expiring in Septe{iiE7, and approximately 19,000 square feet ifj, Ramania, for research and
development operations pursuant to leases thateekpDecember 2015 and July 2016. We lease appaigly 12,000 square feet in Culver
City, California for research and development asdsand marketing operations. We also lease cffieee of less than 5,000 square feet eac
in Northlake, Washington; Reston, Virginia; Sougidi, Michigan; Boston, Massachusetts; Chicagmdls; New York, New York; Atlanta,
Georgia; San Francisco, California; Berlin, Germang Tokyo, Japan for our sales, marketing anchiessidevelopment personnel located in
those areas. We believe our current facilities badlladequate or that additional space will be alslon commercially reasonable terms for th
foreseeable future.

ITEM 3. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

From time to time, we may be subject to legal pediiegs and claims in the ordinary course of businé& have received, and may in
future continue to receive, claims from third pestasserting infringement of their intellectualgedy rights. Future litigation may be neces:
to defend ourselves and our customers by determthia scope, enforceability and validity of thirrty proprietary rights or to establish our
proprietary rights. From time to time we also mayslibject to claims from our third party contertviders that we owe them additional
royalties and interest, which claims may resulitigation if we and the third party content progidare unable to resolve the matter. There cal
be no assurance with respect to the outcome ofamgnt or future litigation brought against ugparsuant to which we have indemnification
obligations and the outcome could have a matetiadise impact on our business, operating resutt§iaancial condition.

On December 31, 2009, Vehicle IP, LLC, or Vehidbe filed a patent infringement lawsuit againstrughie U.S. District Court for the
District of Delaware, seeking monetary damages &l expenses and other relief. Verizon Wirel@s¥grizon, was named as a defendan
in the Vehicle IP litigation based on the VZ Navmaproduct and has demanded that we indemnifydafehnd Verizon against Vehicle IP. At
this time, we have not agreed to defend or indeyrwidrizon. AT&T was also named as a co-defendattiénVehicle IP litigation based on the
AT&T Navigator and Telenav Track products. AT&T hasdered the defense of the litigation to us aadve defending the case on behalf of
AT&T. After the district court issued its claim cstnuction ruling the parties agreed to focus otyearmmary judgment motions, the
defendants filed motions for summary judgment afinfsingement. On April 10, 2013 the district cogranted AT&T and our motion for
summary judgment of noninfringement. Plaintiff apleel the district court's claim construction anchgwary judgment rulings to the U.S. Cc
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On November2@14, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federat @i reversed the district court's claim
construction and overturned the district courtangiof summary judgment of noninfringement. Theedaas been sent back to the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware and trial is memtly scheduled for February 2017. Due to the tagties related to litigation, we are unable
to evaluate the likelihood of either a favorablainfavorable outcome. We believe that it is reabfynpossible that we will incur a loss;
however, we cannot currently estimate a range piassible losses we may experience in connectitinthis case. Accordingly, we are
unable at this time to estimate the effects of ldigsuit on our financial condition, results of ogt#ons, or cash flows.

On April 30, 2010, Traffic Information, LLC, or Tifec Information, filed a patent infringement lawsagainst us in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas, seekingietary damages, fees and expenses, and other Télepatent at issue was subject to
reexamination by the U.S. Patent and Trademarlc®fir PTO and the reexamined claims were foundithvRlaintiff appealed this finding
and on May 30, 2013, the Patent Trial and Appear8oor PTAB, confirmed the invalidity of theseiola. Plaintiff filed a request for
reconsideration of this decision with the PTAB, eihivas denied on January 13, 2014. Traffic Inforomefiled an appeal with the U.S.
Appeals Court for the Federal Circuit, and on Jan@f, 2015, the court affirmed the PTO's findirfignvalidity. On April 28, 2015, Traffic
Information filed a dismissal of all claims against On May 6, 2015, the District Court entereddiseissal.

On February 6, 2015, Location Services IP, LLCdfilecomplaint against AT&T, Inc. and Telenav, limcthe U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, alleging that the AT&aWngator, Telenav GPS Plus, and Telenav Scout Mahplications infringe four U.S.
patents. On April 16, 2015, Location Services IRCLdismissed all claims against AT&T, Inc. and Teleninc. and filed a new complaint
against AT&T Mobility, AT&T Services, Inc. and Tealav, Inc. in the same court, alleging that the ATidvigator, Telenav GPS Plus,
Telenav GPS Navigator, and Telenav Scout Mobildiegupns as well as AT&T Store Locator and the Mg Mobile Application infringe
the same four U.S. patents. The complaint seelzegified monetary damages, fees and expenses jandtine relief. AT&T has requested
that we defend and indemnify them in this matteit eslates to the AT&T Navigator product and werdagreed to do so. Due to the
preliminary status of the lawsuit and uncertaintedated to litigation, we are unable to evaluhtelikelihood of either a favorable or
unfavorable outcome. We believe that it is reashnabssible that we will incur a loss; however, gannot currently estimate a range of any
possible losses we may experience in connectidmtis case. Accordingly, we are unable at thigttmestimate the effects of this complaint
on our financial condition, results of operatiomsash flows.
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In addition, we have received, and expect to comtito receive, demands for indemnification from customers, which demands can be
very expensive to settle or defend, and we havedpast offered to contribute to settlement am®antl incurred legal fees in connection witf
certain of these indemnity demands. A number adgtiedemnity demands, including demands relatingetading litigation, remain
outstanding and unresolved as of the date of tislFA.0-K. Furthermore, in response to these demaedway be required to assume control
of and bear all costs associated with the defehearacustomers in compliance with our contract@hmitments. At this time, we are not a
party to the following cases; however our custonhenge requested that we indemnify them in conneatiibh such cases:

In 2008, Alltel, AT&T, Sprint and T-Mobile USA, of-Mobile, each demanded that we indemnify and difeem against patent
infringement lawsuits brought by patent holding pamies EMSAT Advanced Geo-Location Technology LIn@ &ocation Based Services
LLC (collectively, EMSAT) in the U.S. District Coufor the Northern District of Ohio. In March 201EMSAT and AT&T settled their claim
The PTO reexamined two of the patents in suit, icmirig the validity of only two of the assertediota from those patents. All patent claims
that EMSAT alleged to be infringed by the Telena®S3Navigator product were cancelled during reexatian. In the suits against T-Mobile,
Alltel and Sprint, EMSAT amended its allegationgemove allegations of infringement of the patdainas that were cancelled during
reexamination. EMSAT and T-Mobile stipulated toisngissal and their case was dismissed on Januag028. On March 20, 2015, the Court
dismissed and closed the Alltel case and on A@xil2D15 the Court dismissed and closed the Spaise.0Ve have not yet determined the
extent of our indemnification obligations to AT&We believe that it is reasonably possible that wWeimcur additional loss; however, we
cannot currently estimate a range of other possilstees we may experience in connection with thiecAccordingly, we are unable at this
time to estimate the overall effects of this matterour financial condition, results of operatiooscash flows.

In March 2009, AT&T demanded that we indemnify aledlend them against a patent infringement lawsoght by Tendler Cellular of
Texas LLC, or Tendler, in the U.S. District Cowt the Eastern District of Texas. In June 2010, ATsettled its claims with Tendler and we
came to an agreement with AT&T as to the extemtusfcontribution towards AT&T's settlement and émeount of our contribution was not
material; however, there continues to be a disageet as to whether any additional amounts are dov@d &T for legal fees and expenses
related to the defense of the matter. We belieatittis reasonably possible that we will incur diddal loss; however, we cannot currently
estimate a range of other possible losses we nyagriexce in connection with this case. Accordinglg,are unable at this time to estimate the
overall effects on our financial condition, reswdfsoperations, or cash flows.

While we presently believe that the ultimate outeashthese proceedings, individually and in theragate, will not materially harm our
financial position, cash flows or overall trendsésults of operations, legal proceedings are stibjeinherent uncertainties and unfavorable
rulings could occur. Nevertheless, were unfavoréibbd outcomes to occur, there exists the possilif a material adverse impact on our
business, financial position, cash flows or overalhds in results of operations.

Large future indemnity payments and associated fega and expenses, including potential indempétyments and legal fees and
expenses relating to our wireless carrier and athstomers’ indemnity demands with respect to peptiiigation, could materially harm our
business, operating results and financial conditidhen we believe a loss or a cost of indemnifarats probable and can be reasonably
estimated, we accrue the estimated loss or castlemnification in our consolidated financial stagnts. Where the outcome of these matters
is not determinable, we do not make a provisioaunfinancial statements until the loss or coshdémnification, if any, is probable and can
be reasonably estimated or the outcome becomesrkrdtihough to date we have not agreed to deferiddamnify our customers for
outstanding and unresolved indemnity demands wiverdo not believe we have an obligation to do sthhar our solution infringes on asser
intellectual property rights, we may in the futagree to defend and indemnify our customers in ection with demands for indemnification,
irrespective of whether we believe that we havelaigation to indemnify them or whether we beliewg solution infringes the asserted
intellectual property rights. Alternatively, we megject certain of our customers’ indemnity demaimtduding the outstanding demands,
which may lead to disputes with our customers, tieglgt impact our relationships with them or regultitigation against us. Our wireless
carrier or other customers may also claim thatraggction of their indemnity demands constitutesaderial breach of our agreements with
them, allowing them to terminate such agreemehtge Imake substantial payments as a result of imitgrdemands, our relationships with «
customers are negatively impacted, or any of oatarner agreements is terminated, our businessatipgresults and financial condition
could be materially harmed.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES
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Not applicable.

PART II.

ITEM 5. MARKET FOR REGISTRANT'S COMMON EQUITY, RELATED STOC KHOLDER MATTERS AND ISSUER
PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES

Our common stock began trading on the NASDAQ Glabatket under the symbol “TNAV” on May 13, 2010.dfollowing table sets
forth the range of high and low closing sales gricEour common stock for the periods indicated:

Year ended June 30, 2015 High Low

First Quarter $ 79¢ % 4.7¢
Second Quarter $ 72z $ 5.8t
Third Quarter $ 9.1t $ 6.47
Fourth Quarter $ 9.7¢ $ 7.9:2
Year ended June 30, 2014 High Low

First Quarter $ 6.2z % 5.31
Second Quarter $ 726 $ 5.97
Third Quarter $ 6.5 $ 5.6¢
Fourth Quarter $ 6.5C $ 5.2¢

We had approximately 58 stockholders of recordfakuly 31, 2015. A substantially greater numbehalflers of our common stock are
“street name” or beneficial holders, whose sharedald by banks, brokers and other financial tustins. We have never declared or paid
dividends on our common stock and do not expepafodividends on our common stock for the foreskeciiture. Instead, we anticipate that
all of our earnings in the foreseeable future élused for the operation and growth of our busines

Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use Bfoceeds.

Not applicable.

STOCK PERFORMANCE GRAPH

This performance graph shall not be deemed “swigcitnaterial” or to be “filed” with the Securitiemd Exchange Commission for
purposes of Section 18 of the Securities Exchargeof\1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, @rafilse subject to the liabilities under
that Section, and shall not be deemed to be incatpad by reference into any filing of Telenav, lnnder the Securities Act or the Exchange
Act.

The following graph shows a comparison from May A@l10 (the date our common stock commenced traminthe NASDAQ
Global Market) through June 30, 2015 of cumulatotel return for our common stock, the NASDAQ Cormsip® Index and the Russell 3000
Index. Such returns are based on historical reanlisare not intended to suggest future performddat for the NASDAQ Composite Index
and the Russell 3000 Index assume reinvestmernvidiedds.
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COMPARISON OF CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN"®

$200 Among Telenav. Inc, the NASDAQ Composite index and
the Russell 3000 index

§160

£40
May-10 Nov-18 May-11 Mov-11 May-12 Mov-12 May-13 Mow-13 May-14 Hov-14 May-15
s Telenav, Inc e M ASDAG Composite (total refurns) s Rus sell J000

“5100 invested on 51310 in stock or 4/30010 in index, including reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending June 30, 2015

ITEM 6. SELECTED FINANCIAL DATA

The following selected financial data should bedraconjunction with the consolidated financialtetnents and related notes thereto
appearing elsewhere in this Form 10-K. We havevddrthe statement of operations data for fiscatgyeaded June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013
and the balance sheet data as of June 30, 201304ddrom the audited consolidated financial sta&eis included elsewhere in this Form 10-
K. The statement of operations data for the figealrs ended June 30, 2012 and 2011 and the balheeedata as of June 30, 2013, 2012 and
2011 were derived from the audited consolidatedriaial statements that are not included in thisrFb@-K. The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared in accordance vBthgenerally accepted accounting principles, or ®ABhe results of operations of our
enterprise business, which were previously presesdea component of our consolidated operatindtsediave been classified as discontinued
operations in our statement of operations for etlquls presented. We have not declared or dis&ibaty cash dividends on our common st
Historical results are not necessarily indicati¥eesults to be expected for future periods.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data:

(in thousands, except per share data) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Revenue $ 160,23¢ $ 150,311 $ 191,80 $ 205,52 $ 199,11¢
Cost of revenue 78,78¢ 60,84: 69,11 44.44¢ 38,15(
Gross profit 81,45¢ 89,47 122,68 161,07- 160,96¢
Operating expenses:
Research and development 68,06( 60,57 60,34¢ 65,76¢ 52,61°
Sales and marketing 26,97¢ 33,13¢ 30,43t 25,34t 16,58t
General and administrative 23,60¢ 26,17¢ 24,76 26,08 19,757
Restructuring costs 1,15C 4,41; 1,671 — —
Total operating expenses 119,79: 124,29¢ 117,22( 117,19: 88,96:
Operating income (loss) (38,33¢) (34,827 5,467 43,88 72,00¢
Other income, net 2,26 1,28¢ 1,207 1,48¢ 1,17:
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
provision (benefit) for income taxes (36,069 (33,539 6,674 45,36¢ 73,17¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (13,006 (4,01%) 1,09: 13,55¢ 28,59:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net of
tax $ (23,069 $ (29,529 % 5581 $ 31,80t $ 44,58
Income (loss) from discontinued operations, n
of tax — 3 — 3 7,48¢ $ 60z $ (2,019
Net income (loss) $ (23,06 $ (29,524 % 13,067 $ 32,40¢ % 42,57:
Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.5¢) $ (0.7¢) $ 014 $ 077 $ 1.0€
Income from discontinued operations, net of
tax $ — $ — % 0.1¢ $ 0.01 $ (0.0%)
Net income (loss) $ (0.5¢) $ (0.7¢) $ 03z $ 0.7¢ % 1.01
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations $ (0.5¢) $ (0.7¢) $ 0.1z $ 0.7z $ 0.9¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of
tax $ — 3 — % 0.1¢ $ 0.0z $ (0.0%)
Net income (loss) $ (0.5¢) $ (0.7¢) $ 031 $ 0.7¢ % 0.94
Weighted average shares used in computing net
income (loss) per share applicable to common
stockholders:
Basic 39,99! 38,79¢ 40,31( 41,40¢ 41,97¢
Diluted 39,99: 38,79¢ 41,91¢ 43,94 45,08¢
Consolidated Balance Sheets Data: June 30,
(in thousands) 2015 2014 2013 2012 2011
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term
investments $ 119,91¢ $ 136,84¢ $ 191,68 $ 199,46( $ 203,31
Working capital 138,41! 153,23 190,38! 204,97 178,60:
Total assets 223,92 239,84: 273,66 264,77 260,62
Common stock and additional paid-in capital 140,44 129,31t 118,23 118,89 115,10¢
Total stockholders’ equity 176,18: 192,40! 214,46 216,51¢ 188,46t
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ITEM 7. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL C ONDITION AND RESULTS OF
OPERATIONS

The following discussion and analysis should bel regether with our consolidated financial statetseand the notes to those statem
included elsewhere in this Form 10-K. This disaussiontains forward-looking statements based oncourent expectations, assumptions,
estimates and projections about Telenav and owstrg. These forward-looking statements involvksrisnd uncertainties. Our actual results
could differ materially from those indicated in seeforward-looking statements as a result of carfattors, as more fully described in “Risk
factore” in Item 1A of this Form 10-K, Management’s Dissias and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resolt Operations and elsewhere
in this Form 10-K. We undertake no obligation talate publicly any forward-looking statements foy aeason, even if new information
becomes available or other events occur in theréutu

Overview

Telenav is a leading provider of location-basedfpten services. These services consist of our aatma and mobile navigation platform
and our advertising delivery platform. Our auto amobile navigation platform allows Telenav to delienhanced location-based services to
auto manufacturers, developers, and end usersgihnaarious distribution channels, including wiralesirriers. Our advertising delivery
platform delivers highly targeted advertising seed leveraging our location expertise. We repogerating results in three business segments:
automotive, advertising and mobile navigation.

For our automotive segment customers, we offemotw and mobile navigation platform services toislermanufacturers and original
equipment manufacturers, or OEMs, for distributigth their vehicles. Our primary automotive custertedate, Ford, currently distributes
on-board product as an optional feature with altsmodels in the U.S. Our automotive productsran included on models manufactured in
the U.S., Canada, Mexico, Europe and China, asagalffered in models in South America, Austratid Alew Zealand. In January 2014 we
entered into an agreement with GM for integratibowr onboard and connected navigation solutions in itsoles, which we expect to laun
in model year 2017. Our relationship with GM alsoludes brought-in services for vehicles, and imuday 2015 GM launched the new version
of its OnStar RemoteLink® mobile application powet® our location-based services platform, whiatiides mapping and one-box search.
In July 2015, we and Toyota announced a partnefshiprought-in navigation services where our SRS Link will be available first in the
model year 2016 Toyota Tacoma, and subsequendthigr Entune™ Audio Plus equipped model year 20dy®#a vehicles in the United
States. We believe our history as a supplier afidlbased navigation services provides a uniquerddga in the automotive navigation
marketplace over our competitors.

For our advertising segment customers, we believedvertising delivery platform offers significaaidience reach, sophisticated
targeting capabilities and the ability to deliveterractive and engaging ad experiences to conswmnetseir mobile devices. We are experts in
location-based advertising and believe we offequeaivalue to brick-and-mortar and brand advertigemugh our location targeting
capabilities. Our technology focuses on managiegctimplexity and scale associated with mobile looadata to deliver better mobile
campaigns for our advertising partners. We delimebile advertisements by leveraging our proprietafyouse ad serving technology. Our
inventory, or accessible market, is comprised otifands of mobile applications and mobile websktasare accessed through programmatic
real-time bidding, or RTB, tools.

We derive revenue from automobile manufacturers@BMs, advertisers and advertising agencies, arelesis carriers. We receive
revenue from automobile manufacturers whose vehwdatain our proprietary software and are abkct®ess our personalized navigation
services. These manufacturers have typically notiged us with any volume or revenue guaranteeadtition, we have a growing busines
mobile advertising where our customers are primaivertising agencies, which represent nationdlragional brands, and channel partners,
which work closely with local and small businessextisers. We also derive revenue from our partripsswith wireless carriers, who pay u:
enable their subscribers to use our mobile navdgatervices. Some of these wireless carriershgll tsubscribers on a monthly recurring basis
and the number of those monthly recurring subsrgiteewhich we provide services continues to degliesulting in substantial declines in our
revenue from wireless carriers.

We generate revenue from the delivery of customsadtivare and royalties from the distribution asthustomized software in
automotive navigation applications. For exampledRdilizes our on-board automotive navigation prctdn its Ford SYNC platform. Our
automobile manufacturer and OEM customers payrogalty fee as the software is reproduced for itattan in vehicles with our automotive
navigation solutions. In addition, we earn a omeetroyalty for each new vehicle owner who downlodesGM OnStar RemoteLink®
application, whereby we provide enhanced searchlibies for contracted service periods.
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We generate revenue from advertising network sesvibrough the delivery of search and display atbieg impressions based on the
specific terms of the advertising contract.

We also generate revenue from subscriptions temmlnile navigation services. End users with subsorig for our services are generally
billed for our services through their wireless @ror through mobile application stores and masleetes. Our wireless carrier customers pz
based on several different revenue models, inctuflin a revenue sharing arrangement that may ieciuchinimum fee per end user, (2) a
monthly or annual subscription fee per end use(3pbased on usage.

Recent Developments

In April 2015, we entered into an agreement to sfira product line developed by our Shanghai, @h@am, including certain assets anc
technology as well as the transfer of seven emgleyand we agreed to invest $1.0 millioiihe form of a convertible note. We are the pryr
investor; however, we do not have significant ieflae over the operations of the business. Accosdimg record the monthly net change in
operating results against the carrying value ofcthevertible note recorded in long-term investmem®ur consolidated balance sheet. Fiscal
2015 includes three months of operating result$iferinvestee entity. The entity's success is ngatit upon its ability to generate revenue an
raise additional capital. Based upon the earlyestéfghis company, its lack of success to datathef these endeavors, and China's recent
unfavorable macroeconomic conditions making theimgiof additional capital difficult, we recorded impairment charge of $0.8 million to
write down the carrying value of the convertiblaento zero as of June 30, 2015.

In June 2015, we entered into an agreement toagpaproduct line developed by our Xian, Chinante@ncluding certain assets and
technology as well as the transfer of 12 employaed,we agreed to invest $0.8 million in the forha@onvertible note. We are the primary
investor; however, we do not have significant ieflae over the operations of the business. Accadiag record the monthly net change in
operating results against the carrying value ofcthrevertible note recorded in long-term investmem®ur consolidated balance sheet. Fiscal
2015 includes one month of operating results ferittvestee entity. The entity's success is contingpon its ability to generate revenue and
raise additional capital. As of June 30, 2015, inuestment balance was $0.7 million .

All information in the following management's dission and analysis of financial condition and ressof operations includes only rest
from continuing operations (and excludes our ditomed enterprise business, which was sold in A#l3) for all periods presented, unless
otherwise noted.

Key operating and financial performance metrics

We monitor the key operating and financial perfoncemetrics set forth in the tables below to halgwaluate growth trends, establish
budgets, measure the effectiveness of our salemarkkting efforts and assess our operationalieffates. Certain of these measures, non-
GAAP income (loss) from continuing operations, oktax, adjusted earnings before interest, taxegretiation and amortization, or adjusted
EBITDA, from continuing operations and diluted nGAAP income (loss) from continuing operations, ofetax, per share are not measures
calculated in accordance with U.S. generally aambptcounting principles, or GAAP, and should retbnsidered as an alternative to any
measure of financial performance calculated andgmied in accordance with GAAP. In addition, thase-GAAP measures may not be
comparable to similarly titled measures of othenpanies because other companies may not calchktein the same manner that we do.
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands, except percentages and per share aumts)
Revenue $ 160,23¢ $ 150,31: $ 191,80(
Gross margin 51% 60% 64%
Non-GAAP gross margin 53% 62% 65%
Automotive gross margin 45% 51% 46%
Automotive non-GAAP gross margin 46% 51% 46%
Advertising gross margin 35% 40% 36%
Advertising non-GAAP gross margin 44% 55% 5%
Mobile navigation gross margin 73% 74% 76%
Mobile navigation non-GAAP gross margin 74% 76% 73%
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta $ (23,067 $ (29,529 % 5,581
Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing operationst of tax $ (12,889 $ (6,839 $ 18,18t
Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations $ (20,519 $ (12,12) % 25,49
Diluted income (loss) from continuing operationst af tax, per share $ (0.5¢) % (0.7¢) $ 0.1z
Diluted non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing ogions, net of tax, per
share $ (032 % (0.1¢) % 0.4:

Gross margin is our gross profit, or total revelass cost of revenue, expressed as a percentage tftal revenue. Our gross margin ha:
been and will continue to be impacted by the irgir@apercentage of our revenue base derived fraonative navigation solutions and
advertising network services, which generally hiaigher associated third party content costs and frarty display ad inventory costs,
respectively, than our navigation offerings proddierough wireless carriers.

Non-GAAP gross margin measures our GAAP gross masyicluding the impact of stock-based compensatigrense and capitalized
software and developed technology amortization egee Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing opere, net of tax, measures GAAP
net income (loss) from continuing operations, rfaam, excluding the impact of stock-based comptosaxpense, capitalized software and
developed technology amortization expenses, argt @éfms such as legal settlements, valuation allmes against certain deferred tax assets
and restructuring costs, net of taxes. Stock-basatpensation expense relates to equity incentiadsigranted to our employees, directors,
and consultants. Stock-based compensation expesdeelen and will continue to be a significant reagrnon-cash expense for us. While we
include the dilutive impact of such equity awandsveighted average shares outstanding, the expasseiated with stock-based awards
reflects a non-cash charge that we exclude from@AAP income (loss) from continuing operations, oftax, non-GAAP income (loss) from
continuing operations, net of tax, per share, atjdséed EBITDA from continuing operations. Capitalil software amortization expense
represents internal software costs that are preljawapitalized and charged to expense as the adtig used in our operations. Developed
technology amortization expense relates to the tmation of acquired intangible assets. Legal spttnts represent settlements from patent
litigation cases in which we are defendants andltgydisputes. Changes in valuation allowance darded tax assets represented changes in
the realization of the underlying assets. Benefificome taxes represented the impact from chamtga accounting method and amended ta;
returns. Restructuring costs represent recognitfahe estimated amount of costs associated watnueturing activities. Our non-GAAP tax
rate from continuing operations differs from the &Atax rate from continuing operations due to timiaation of any tax effect of the GAAP
stock-based compensation expenses, legal settlsmmestructuring costs, and other items that airggbadiminated to arrive at the non-GAAP
income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations measuvas GAAP income (loss) excluding the impact ofcktbased compensation
expense, depreciation, amortization, interest iresasther income (expense), provision (benefitjricome taxes, and other items such as lege
settlements and restructuring costs, net of tajustdd EBITDA, while generally a measure of prdiitiy, can also represent a loss.

Non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (loss) froomtinuing operations, net of tax, and adjustedTEB\ from continuing
operations are key measures used by our managaemeéhbard of directors to understand and evaluateare operating performance and
trends, to prepare and approve our annual budgleioaslevelop short- and long-term operational plémgparticular, we believe that the
exclusion of the expenses eliminated in calculatiog-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (loss) froontinuing operations, net of tax,
and adjusted EBITDA can provide a useful measur@doiod-to-period comparisons of our core busingsaddition, adjusted EBITDA is a
key financial measure used by the compensation dtieeof our board of directors in connection witile development of incentive-based
compensation for our executive officers. Accordingie believe that non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAgme (loss) from continuing
operations, net of
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tax, and adjusted EBITDA provide useful informattorinvestors and others in understanding and atialyi our operating results in the same
manner as our management and board of directors.

Diluted non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing ogiéons, net of tax, per share is calculated as®@AAP income (loss) from
continuing operations, net of tax, divided by tliletéd weighted average number of shares outstgrdlining the period.

These non-GAAP measures have limitations as analythols, and you should not consider them irgitsoh or as substitutes for analysis
of our financial results as reported under GAAPm8®f these limitations are:

» although depreciation and amortization are oash charges, the assets being depreciated antdzadonay have to be replaced in
future, and adjusted EBITDA from continuing opesat does not reflect cash capital expenditure reménts for such replacements
or for new capital expenditures;

* non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP income (losshircontinuing operations, net of tax, and adju&B&trDA from continuing
operations do not reflect the potentially dilutimgpact of equity-based compensation;

» adjusted EBITDA does not reflect tax paymentd thistorically have represented a reduction i @&ilable to us or tax benefits that
may arise as a result of generating net losses; and

» other companies, including companies in our &gy may calculate adjusted EBITDA or similarlifetd measures differently, which
reduces its usefulness as a comparative measure.

Because of these and other limitations, you shoaitider non-GAAP gross margin, non-GAAP incomsgjdrom continuing
operations, net of tax, adjusted EBITDA from couiitg operations and diluted non-GAAP income (Idsmn continuing operations, net of
tax, per share alongside other GAARsed financial performance measures, includinguwsaicash flow metrics, net income (loss) and ahen
GAAP financial results.

The following tables present reconciliations ofgganargin to non-GAAP gross margin, income (lossnfcontinuing operations, net of
tax, to non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing at@ns, net of tax, and income (loss) from contigubperations, net of tax, to adjusted
EBITDA from continuing operations for each of theripds indicated:

Automotive Advertising Mobile Navigation Total
Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Fiscal Year Ended June 30, Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013 2015 2014 2013
Gross margin 45% 51% 46% 35% 40% 36 % 73% 74% 76 % 51% 60% 64%
Adjustments:
Capitalized software and developed technol
amortization 1% —% —% 9% 15% (31)% 1% 2% 3)% 2% 2% 1%
Non-GAAP gross margin 46% 51% 46% 44% 55% 5% 74% 76% 73% 53% 62% 65%
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Net income (loss)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Adjustments:

Legal settlement

Changes in valuation allowance on deferred taxtasse

Benefit for income taxes due to changes in tax actiog method and
amended tax returns

Restructuring costs
Capitalized software and developed technology amadion
Stock-based compensation expense:
Cost of revenue
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Total stock-based compensation
Tax effect of adding back adjustments

Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing operationst of tax

Non-GAAP income (loss) from continuing operationst of tax per share
Basic
Diluted

Weighted average shares used in computing non-GAédtne (loss) from
continuing operations, net of tax per share

Basic
Diluted

Net income (loss)
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Adjustments:

Legal settlement

Restructuring costs

Stock-based compensation expense

Depreciation and amortization

Interest and other income, net

Provision (benefit) for income taxes

Adjusted EBITDA from continuing operations
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
(23,069 $ (29,529 $ 13,06
— — 7,48¢
(23,069 (29,529 5,581
— — 1,30(C
(77¢) 7,39¢ —
(4,06 — —
1,15C 4,41 1,671
3,27¢ 3,58¢ 3,68(
98 10C 14¢
5,27¢ 4,49( 3,50¢
2,94: 3,30¢ 2,29(
3,112 3,63¢ 2,69¢
11,42¢ 11,53¢ 8,64
(84C) (4,249) (2,696
(12,889 $ (6,839 $ 18,18:
(0.32) $ (0.16) $ 0.4¢
(032 $ (0.16) $ 0.47
39,99 38,79¢ 40,31(
39,99 38,79¢ 41,91¢
Fiscal Year Ended June 30,
2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)

(23,069 $ (29,529 $ 13,06
— — 7,48¢
(23,069 (29,529 5,581
— — 1,30(C
1,15(C 4,41; 1,671
11,42¢ 11,53¢ 8,64
5,23¢ 6,75¢ 8,40¢
(2,267) (1,28¢) (1,207)
(13,006 (4,01F) 1,09z
(20,519 $ (12,12) $ 25,49:
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Key components of our results of operations

Sources of revenue

We classify our revenue as either product or sesvievenue. Product revenue consists primarilgwdémue we receive from the delivery
of customized software and royalties from the thstion of this customized software in certain amitdive navigation applications. Services
revenue consists primarily of revenue we derivenfaur brought-in automotive navigation servicesjeatising services and mobile navigation
services.

We report operating results in three business setgnautomotive, advertising and mobile navigatioor CEO, the chief operating
decision maker, reviews revenue and gross marfpnnration for each of our reportable segments."SeResults of operations" and Note 1:
the financial statements in this Form 10-K for mimfermation about our business segments.

Revenue from our automotive segment represented, & and 37% of our revenue in fiscal 2015, 2&dd 2013, respectively. Ford
represented 61% , 46% and 36% of our revenuedalfi®15, 2014 and 2013, respectively. Our contréttt Ford expires in December 2017.
The agreement may be renewed for successivadith periods if either party provides notice afawal at least 45 days prior to the expira
of the applicable term, and the other party agressich renewal.

We provide both on-board and brought-in connectadgation solutions to Ford. Our on-board soluttonsists of software, map and
POI data loaded in the vehicle that provides vagjailed turn by turn navigation displayed on theieletscreen. Our brought-in connected
solution enables a mobile device that is pairedth Wit vehicle to activate in-vehicle text-based avide-guided turn by turn navigation. We
recognize revenue from our brought-in connectedtswls monthly based on annual subscriptions, whrehsubject to a maximum annual fee
with Ford. This revenue is classified as serviea®nue and represented less than 5% of overalnatitce navigation solutions revenue. In
January 2015, GM launched the new version of itSt@nRemoteLink® mobile application powered by lmagation-based services platform.
We earn a one-time royalty for each new vehicle @wrho downloads the RemoteLink® application. Weprd the royalty earned as deferred
revenue and recognize this revenue over the estthsarvice period.

Our product revenue is primarily derived from outamnotive on-board solutions as the related custedhsoftware is delivered to, and
accepted by our customers. In addition, we recegruyalties earned from our on-board solutiondassoftware is reproduced for installation
in vehicles. We anticipate that we will continuediepend on Ford for a material portion of our rexgefor the foreseeable future

Revenue from our advertising segment, which indutie delivery of search and display, location-Hass, represented 11% , 8% and
2% of our revenue in fiscal 2015, 2014 and 20iE3pectively. Our advertising revenue is derivednfrad insertion orders contracted with
advertising agencies, direct customers, and chaareiers. Our ad search revenue is earned fromieheery of location-based ad impressions
targeted to end users engaged in a specific séaskhutilizing our mobile navigation solutions. &uad search revenue represented less than
10% of our overall advertising revenue. Our displawenue relates to the advertising business deedlgia our Thinknear acquisition that
delivers targeted location-based impressions touseds of third party developer applications.

We also offer voice-guided, real-time, turn by tumobile navigation service under several brandewimcluding Scout by Telenav and
Telenav GPS as well as under wireless carrier lsrémd‘white label” brands). Revenue from our MelNavigation segment represented 25%
42% and 61% of our revenue in fiscal 2015 , 201dt 2013, respectively. Subscription fee revenue from oobite navigation service declin
from fiscal 2013 through fiscal 2015 , primarilyedto the termination of the fixed fee arrangemeith Bprint in September 2013 and a
substantial decrease in the number of paying sillessrfor navigation services provided through AT&Td others, including T-Mobile USA,
or T-Mobile, U.S. Cellular Corporation, or USCC daBomunicaciones Nextel de Mexico, S.A. de C.\aybsidiary of NIl Holdings, Inc., or
NIl Mexico.

AT&T represented 15% , 24% and 28% of our revenuiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Irdii€015, our agreement with
AT&T was automatically renewed, under its existiagms through March 2016, and provides that we aaifitinue to be the exclusive provider
of white label GPS navigation services to AT&T. AT&s not required to offer our navigation servid@sring fiscal 2016, we anticipate that
we will continue to depend on AT&T for a materiarpon of our revenue; however, we have seen snbigtaleclines in the number of paying
subscribers for our services through AT&T over plast few years and we expect them to continue ¢bindesubstantially

Sprint represented less than 10% of our reveneadh of fiscal 2015 and 2014 , and representeddfG9r revenue in fiscal 2013 .
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We derive services revenue primarily from our waesl carrier customers for their end users' suliggTgpto our mobile navigation
services. Our wireless carrier customers pay usdas several different revenue models, includifjcga(revenue sharing arrangement that ma
include a minimum fee per end user, (2) a monthlgrmual subscription fee per end user, or (3)daseusage. Certain of our contracts
provide our wireless carrier customers with disasirased on the number of end users paying fosemices in a given month. In general, out
wireless carrier customers pay us a lower montdyfer end user if an end user subscribes to obileavigation services as part of a bur
of mobile data or voice services than if an end gabscribes to our mobile navigation services staadalone basis. We also offer our
applications directly to end users through applicastores such as the Apple App Store and the Bdelgy marketplace. Finally, we provide
free versions of our services which can generatemge through advertising supported arrangemendssabscriber upgrades to premium
versions for a fee. We also derive services revémume advertising network services through thedsly of search and display advertising
impressions based on the specific terms of thertidivgy contract. In the future, we may have ottevenue models.

For services that our subscribers purchase througlvireless carriers, our wireless carrier custanage responsible for billing and
collecting the fees they charge their subscrib@rshfe right to use our navigation services. Wéspect to Sprint, through September 30, 2013
we received a guaranteed fixed fee from Sprinhforigation applications provided to subscriberbundles with other Sprint services. We
recognized revenue for the aggregate fees monthly siraight-line basis over the term of the agm#nmWhen we are paid on a revenue
sharing basis with our wireless carrier custonties amount we receive varies depending on sevactdrs, including the revenue share rate
negotiated with the wireless carrier customer piiee charged to the subscriber by the wirelesserazustomer, the specific sales channel of
the wireless carrier customer in which the serigogffered and the features and capability of #nwise. As a result of these factors, the am
we receive for a subscriber may vary considerabtia subject to change over time.

In addition, the amount we are paid per end useuirrevenue sharing arrangements may also vamndiapg upon the metric used to
determine the amount of the payment, includingntivaber of end users at any time during a monthatieeage monthly paying end users, the
number and timing of end user billing cycles and eser activity. Although our wireless carrier ausers generally have sole discretion abou
how to price our mobile navigation services to ttiseibscribers, our revenue sharing arrangementragéninclude monthly minimum fees per
end user. To a much lesser extent, we also sellemices directly to consumers through applicasimnes and marketplaces.

For fiscal 2016, we expect automotive and advedisevenue to represent the growing componentsiofevenue but our expectations
may not be realized. However, while we anticipateagng our overall revenue in fiscal 2016, the lowgeoss margins generally experienced
with automotive and advertising revenue are exgeit@esult in an overall lower gross profit inclid 2016. We expect that services revenue
from wireless carrier customers will continue taldee substantially in fiscal 2016 due to the conéd decline in the number of monthly
recurring subscribers.

In fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , we generated 98484 and 92% of our revenue, respectively, in thadd States. With respect to
revenue we receive from automobile manufactureds@iBMs for sales of vehicles in other countries clessify that revenue as being
generated in the United States, because we pradeiieerables to and receive compensation from taeufacturer's or OEM's United States'
entity.

Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the afghird party content, such as map, POI, traffias price and weather data, and voice
recognition technology that we use in providing navigation solutions. Our cost of revenue alsdtuithes the cost of third party exchange ad
inventory as well as expenses associated with garty hosting services, data center operatiorstpower support, the amortization of
capitalized software, recognition of deferred depeient costs on specific projects, stock-based eosgiion and amortization of developed
technology. The largest components of our coseeémue are the fees we pay to providers of map aR@Ltraffic data, including HERE and
TomTom. We have agreements with HERE and TomTorayaunt to which we pay royalties according to aetsrof different fee schedules,
including on a per use basis, on a per end usanpath basis, and on a per installed vehicle b¥¢ith respect to TomTom, we are required tc
pay certain minimum fees for access to its contgraur mobile navigation customers, as well asagedee. Although we recently began us
OSM for certain of our freemium navigation produete do not anticipate that we will cease to usmmTom and HERE in the nes&sfm on ou
paid navigation solutions.

For our on-board automotive navigation solutionsvfited to Ford, we pay royalties as the softwarepgsoduced for installation in
vehicles to HERE as well as other content providdepending on the geographic distribution of alution with Ford. For our brought-in
automotive navigation solution provided to GM fty OnStar RemoteLink® mobile application, we payatties on a subscription basis to
HERE.
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We classify our cost of revenue as either costodflpct revenue or cost of services revenue. Castaafuct revenue consists primarily of
the cost of third party content we incur in prownigliour on-board automotive navigation solutions eawgnition of deferred development
costs. Cost of services revenue consists primafitiie costs associated with third party contdmntdtparty exchange ad inventory, data center
operations and outsourced hosting services, custeapport, amortization of capitalized softwarecg&tbased compensation and amortization
of developed technology that we incur in providing navigation and advertising network services.

We primarily provide mobile navigation service mmer support through a third party provider to whemprovide training and
assistance with problem resolution. In addition,use outsourced, hosting services and industrylatdrhardware to provide our navigation
services. We generally offer to our wireless carigstomers and generally maintain at least 99.ptne every month, excluding designated
periods of maintenance. Our internal targets forise uptime are even higher. We have in the @ast,may in the future, not achieve our
targets for service availability and may incur gdea for failure to meet contractual service aahility requirements, including loss of a port
of subscriber fees for the month or terminatiomwf wireless carrier customer agreement.

The largest component of cost of revenue as itegl® our advertising business is the cost oftlosebased, third party advertising
inventory which we acquire from advertising exchemgOur search ad inventory is generated from seir base of paid and freemium users of
our Scout and Telenav branded and carrier branddxlemnavigation solutions. Other notable costswfadvertising business are the cost «
delivery via contracted hosted relationships amdcibst of our advertising operations.

While we expect that our services revenue from lea® carrier customers will continue to declinessabtially in fiscal 2016, we do not
expect to be able to reduce our cost of servicemniee at the same rate, if at all, as the dedfireeivices revenue. Although we successfully
transitioned to utilizing OSM content on our freeminavigation applications resulting in notablet@avings, we expect to continue to incur
significant costs, especially related to third paxntent as well as for outsourced hosting sesvi€®st of services revenue related to our
advertising business will be impacted by our aptiit grow advertising revenue, as well as the aostavailability of display ad inventory
sourced from third party exchanges. While our pobdevenue is expected to increase in fiscal 2@6td continued growth in automotive,
much of this growth will be generated from disttibn of our automotive solution with Ford in Chiaad Europe where the underlying content
costs are significantly higher on a per unit baSsnsequently, we expect that our overall totat cbsevenue will increase as a percentage of
revenue as we increase the percentage of our reesm automotive navigation solutions and advierisietwork services, which generally
have higher associated third party content costdland party display ad costs, respectively, tbhanmobile navigation offerings provided
through wireless carriers.

Operating expenses

We classify our operating expenses into three caiteg; research and development, sales and maglaatich general and administrative
addition, in fiscal 2013 and 2014 we incurred ngsttiring costs primarily related to severance agnkfits expense associated with reductions
in workforce and facility exit costs associatedhagbnsolidation of facilities. In fiscal 2015, wecurred restructuring costs primarily related to
a reassessment of our facility impairment costs.@perating expenses consist primarily of persooaosts, which include salaries, bonuses,
advertising sales commissions, payroll taxes, eygaldenefit costs and stock-based compensatiomsep®ther expenses include marketing
program costs, third party contractor and tempostadifing services, facilities-related costs indghgdrent expense, legal, audit and tax
consulting and other professional service feesalldeate stockbased compensation expense resulting from the ematoh of the fair value «
stock-based awards granted, based on the departmehich the award holder works. We allocate oearh such as rent and depreciation, to
each expense category based on headcount. Efféctie first quarter of fiscal 2015, we began sifyéng product management costs as a
component of research and development expenséds due change made effective July 1, 2014 wherbisyftinction no longer reports into t
sales and marketing organization. Previously sashschad been included within sales and marketipgreses. We anticipate continued
investment of resources, including the hiring aditidnal headcount in, or reallocation of employ®esonnel into, our growth areas, which
include automotive and advertising, with a recenpkasis on hiring advertising sales personnel aladed support functions.

Research and developmemesearch and development expenses consist dsirahgersonnel costs for our development and peodu
management employees and costs of outside contsudtad temporary staffing. Product management eostslassified as research and
development expenses commencing July 1, 2014. W foaused our research and development effortisiproving the ease of use and
functionality of our existing services, as welldesseloping new service and product offerings inetisting markets and in new markets. In
addition to our U.S. employee base, a significambber of our research and development employedsaated in our development centers in
China and, as a result, a portion of our reseandhdavelopment expense is subject to changeséigfoexchange rates, notably the Chinese
Renminbi, or RMB. In addition,
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with our January 2014 acquisition of skobbler, vagéha significant number of employees in Romanéhiacur research and development
expenses in the Romanian Leu.

Sales and marketingSales and marketing expenses consist primariecfonnel costs for our sales and marketing staffimissions
earned by our sales personnel and the cost of mregkerograms, advertising and promotional acegtiThrough June 30, 2014, sales and
marketing expenses also included product managetostg, which have been classified as researcevelopment expenses commencing
July 1, 2014. Historically, a majority of our rewenhas been derived from wireless carriers, wharke imuch of the expense of marketing and
promoting our services to their subscribers, as$ agtonsumers acquired through open market apiplicatores. More recently, our
automotive and advertising revenue have represehéchost rapidly growing components of our reveraunel we have recently invested
significantly in building our advertising sales neaOur sales and marketing activities supportingaatomotive navigation solutions include
the costs of our business development efforts.a&Dtomotive manufacturer partners and OEMs alsoigeegerimary marketing for our on-
board and brought-in navigation solutions at theeta vehicle is sold to their end customer.

General and administrativeGeneral and administrative expenses consist pitintd personnel costs for our executive, finanegal,
human resources and administrative personnel;,lagdit and tax consulting; and other professieealices and corporate expenses.

Other income, netOther income, net consists primarily of intenestearn on our cash and cash equivalents and teortinvestments,
gain or loss on investments and foreign curreraydaction gains or losses.

Income from discontinued operations, neicome from discontinued operations, net consiktesults of operations of our enterprise
business, which was sold in April 2013.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®©ur provision (benefit) for income taxes primaigbnsists of corporate income taxes related to
profits earned or losses incurred in the UnitedeStar corporate income tax refunds expected ttebged from losses incurred in the United
States that may be carried back to prior fiscatye@ur effective tax rate could fluctuate sigrafitly from year to year, particularly in those
years in which we incur losses, due to our abitityenefit from the carryback of net operating ésswithin the limited carryback period a
the available amount therein, if any. Furthermorea quarterly basis our tax rates can fluctuatecanild be adversely affected by increases ir
nondeductible stock compensation or other nondéuaaxpenses, as well as changes in our tax rese@ur effective tax rate could also
fluctuate due to a change in our earnings or logggtions, changes in the valuation of our defétex assets or liabilities, or changes in tax
laws, regulations, or accounting principles, ad aglcertain discrete items.

Critical accounting policies and estimates

We prepare our consolidated financial statemenée@ordance with GAAP. In many cases, the accogitteatment of a particular
transaction is specifically dictated by GAAP aneslmot require our judgment in its applicationother cases, our judgment is required in
selecting among available alternative accountingies that allow different accounting treatment $amilar transactions. The preparation of
consolidated financial statements also requirds usake estimates and assumptions that affecefharted amounts of assets, liabilities,
revenue, costs and expenses and related discloBuedsase our estimates on historical experiendevarious other assumptions that we
believe are reasonable under the circumstancesaiy instances, we could reasonably use diffegtdunting estimates, and in some
instances changes in the accounting estimategasemably likely to occur from period to period.cAaingly, actual results could differ
significantly from the estimates made by our manag@. To the extent that there are differences éetvour estimates and actual results, our
future financial statement presentation, financ@ldition, results of operations and cash flows$ el affected. We believe that the accounting
policies discussed below are critical to understagndur historical and future performance, as thEsdizies relate to the more significant areas
involving our judgments and estimates.

Revenue recognitionWe generate revenue primarily from software Ig&) service subscriptions and customized engnefaes. We
also generate revenue from the delivery of seandhdésplay advertising impressions. We recognizemae when persuasive evidence of an
arrangement exists, delivery of the product orisertias occurred, the fee is fixed or determinabke collectability is reasonably assured. We
evaluate whether it is appropriate to recognizemee based on the gross amount billed to our ces®ar the net amount earned as revenue.
When we are primarily obligated in a transactivae latitude in establishing prices, are respda$dy fulfillment of the transaction, have
credit risk, or have several but not all of thas#igators, we record revenue on a gross basis.eéwbihe of the factors individually are
considered presumptive or determinative, in reaghonclusions on gross versus net revenue recognitie place the most weight on the
analysis of whether or not we are the primary alylig the arrangement. We report our automotiveahartising revenue on a gross basis.
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We derive product revenue from the delivery of costzed software and royalties earned from theibigiion of this customized softwe
in certain automotive navigation applications. Waerally recognize customized software revenueyusia completed contract method of
contract accounting under which revenue is recaghigon delivery to, and acceptance by, the autdenotanufacturer of our on-board
navigation solutions. We generally recognize rgyedtvenue as the software is reproduced for iragtall in vehicles, assuming all other
conditions for revenue recognition have been met.ré¢ognize services revenue from our brought-imeoted automotive navigation
solutions monthly based on monthly subscriptiortsictv are subject to a maximum annual fee. Thismageepresented less than 5% of ove
automotive navigation solutions revenue. In Jan@a@dbs, GM launched the new version of its OnStan&eLink® mobile application
powered by our location-based services platform.eaf@ a one-time royalty for each new vehicle owneo downloads the RemoteLink®
application. We record the royalty earned as deferevenue and recognize this service revenuetbgastimated service period.

We derive services revenue from the delivery ofdeand display advertising impressions. We recogrévenue when the related
advertising services are delivered based on thefgpterms of the advertising contract, which aeenmonly based on the number of ad
impressions delivered, or clicks, drives or actibpsisers on mobile advertisements.

We also derive services revenue from subscriptiorEcess our mobile navigation services, whictgareerally provided through our
wireless carrier customers that offer our servioaheir subscribers or through application sto@s: wireless carrier customers pay us based
on several different revenue models, includinga(i¢venue sharing arrangement that may includenarmam fee per end user, (2) a monthly
annual subscription fee per end user, or (3) basatsage. Our end users who subscribe to our ssrthicough application stores pay us a
monthly or annual subscription fee.

We recognize monthly fees related to our mobileigetion services in the month we provide the sevidWe defer amounts received or
billed in advance of the service being provided embgnize the deferred amounts when the monthificgehas been provided. We recognize
revenue for fixed fees for any number of subscslveceiving our services as part of bundles morghlg straight-line basis over the term of
the agreement. Our agreements do not contain deights of refund once the service has been pexlidVe also establish allowances for
estimated credits subsequently issued to end bgeyar wireless carrier customers.

We recognize as services revenue the amount oales# carrier customers report to us as we praxidservices, which are net of any
revenue sharing or other fees earned and dedugtedrlwireless carrier customers. We are not tivcyal provider when selling access to
mobile navigation services through our wirelessieacustomers as the subscribers directly cont@btour wireless carrier customers. In
addition, we may earn a fixed fee or fixed percgetaf fees charged by our wireless carrier custerand our wireless carrier customers have
the sole ability to set the price charged to tealyscribers for our service. Our wireless carriestamers have direct responsibility for billing
and collecting those fees from their subscribetsva@ and our wireless carrier customers may offbssribers a free trial for our service. For
end users who purchase our mobile navigation ses\tlerough application stores, we utilize the agapion store billing process. We provide
tiered pricing to certain of our wireless carriestomers based on the number of paying end usergiwen month, which may result in a
discounted fee per end user depending on the nuofileerd users. Revenue recognized is based ongbeutted fees earned for a given
period.

In certain instances, due to the nature and tirafngonthly revenue and reporting from our customers may be required to make
estimates of the amount of revenue to recogniza fi@ustomer for the current period. For examm@eam of our wireless carrier customers
not provide us with sufficient monthly individuallsscriber billing period details to allow us to qmute the allocation of monthly service fees
to the individual end user’s service period, andunh cases we make estimates of any requireccegyeriod revenue cutoff. In addition, if we
fail to receive an accurate revenue report froniraless carrier customer for the month, we will chém estimate the amount of revenue that
should be recorded for that month. These estimmaggsrequire judgment, and we consider certain fadad information in making these
estimates such as:

» subscriber data supplied by our wireless carristaraers

« customer specific historical subscription and rexereporting trend
* end user subscription data from our internal system

« data from comparable distribution channels of dhepcustomer

If we are unable to reasonably estimate recogrezagienue from a customer for a given period, Werdecognition of revenue to the
period in which we receive and validate the custtsmevenue report and all of our revenue recognitiriteria have been met. If we have
recorded an estimated revenue amount, we recordifiagence between the estimated revenue andlaetwsnue in the period when we
receive the final revenue reports from our customvlich typically occurs within the following montfio date, actual amounts have not
differed materially from our estimates.
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Software development costé/e account for the costs of computer softwarelesxelop for internal use by capitalizing qualifyiogsts,
which are incurred during the application develophsage, and amortizing those costs over the atjiin’s estimated useful life, which
generally ranges from 18 months to 24 months dapgrah the type of application. Costs incurred eagitalized during the application
development stage generally include the costsftivace configuration, coding, installation and begt Such costs primarily include payroll
and payroll related expenses for employees diréntiglved in the application development, as wsltlird party developer fees. We expense
preliminary evaluation costs as they are incurrefbife the application development stage, as wglbas development implementation and
operation costs, such as training, maintenancevandr upgrades. We begin amortizing capitalizedsadien a project is ready for its inten
use, and we periodically reassess the estimatddl lige of a project considering the effects ofsalbescence, technology, competition and @
economic factors which may result in a shorter iemg life.

We capitalized none, none and $0.9 million of safevdevelopment costs during fiscal 2015 , 201428118 , respectively. Amortization
expense related to these costs, which was recandmsbt of revenue, totaled $0.1 million, $1.0 roiland $2.1 million for fiscal 2015 , 2014
and 2013, respectively.

We account for the costs of computer software weldg for customers requiring significant modificat or customization by deferring
qualifying costs under the completed contract metihdl such development costs incurred are defeurgd the related revenue is recognized.
We deferred $0.8 million, $0.9 million and $1.3 lioih of software development costs during fiscal202014 and 2013,
respectively. Development costs expensed to casvenue totaled $1.2 million, $0.9 million and$#illion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013
respectively.

Impairment of long-lived asset®Ve evaluate longjved assets held and used for impairment whenewvents or changes in circumstar
indicate that their net book value may not be recalle. We continually evaluate whether eventscirtdmstances have occurred that indicat
the balance of our property and equipment, longri@vestments and intangible assets with definieslmay not be recoverable. Our
evaluation is significantly impacted by our estiggatnd assumptions of future revenue, costs, grehsgs and other factors. If an event oc
that would cause us to revise our estimates andrgs®ns used in analyzing the value of our prgpand equipment, that revision could re:
in a non-cash impairment charge that could haveimal impact on our financial results. When thietors and circumstances exist, we
compare the projected undiscounted future cashsflasgociated with the related asset or group etsasser their estimated useful lives age
their respective carrying amounts. We base theimmaant, if any, on the excess of the carrying antawer the fair value, based on market
value when available, or discounted expected dastsfof those assets, and record it in the penaghich we make the determination. During
fiscal 2013, we recorded a loss of $0.4 milliorcamnection with impairment in the carrying valuecapitalized software.

Goodwill. Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregateshpse price paid over the fair value of the ssets acquired. Goodwill is
not amortized and is tested for impairment at laastually or whenever events or changes in circamests indicate that the carrying value may
not be recoverable. These tests are based on etatmy segment and reporting unit structure. \Wat fissess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is necessary to perform the two-stemtjtaive goodwill impairment test. We are not riggd to calculate the fair value of our
reporting units unless we determine, based on btafie assessment, that it is more likely thahthat the fair value is less than our carrying
amount. If we determine it is more likely than tiwt the fair value of the reporting unit is lelsan its carrying value, we perform a two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test. The firsggtof the impairment test involves comparing thevalue of the reporting unit to its net book
value, including goodwill. If the net book valuecexeds its fair value, then we would perform theadcstep of the goodwill impairment test to
determine the amount of the impairment loss, if. danyassessing the fair value of our reportingsjnite make assumptions regarding our
estimated future cash flows, long-term growth ratiesing over which the cash flows will occur amanongst other factors, the weighted
average cost of capital. Application of the gootlimilpairment test requires judgment, including idientification of reporting units, assignm:
of assets and liabilities to reporting units antedmination of the fair value of each reportingtuni

We tested goodwill for impairment on April 1, 20a6the reporting unit level using a combinatioraafiscounted cash flow analysis and
market multiples based upon historical and progeéiteancial information. The fair value of our aototive and advertising reporting units was
estimated using the discounted cash flow approBud fair value of our mobile navigation reportingituvas estimated using a combined
discounted cash flow and market multiple approaith aqual weighting given to the two approaches ifarket multiple approach utilized
revenue multiples from guideline public companiperating in similar industries. The revenue muétfplvere applied to the projected financial
information of the mobile navigation reporting utdtdetermine its fair value. We applied our basggment when assessing the reasonablene
of the financial projections used to determinefttievalue of each reporting unit. Based on thelltsf our annual goodwill impairment test
of April 1, 2015, the estimated fair value of ouolsile navigation business exceeded its carryingesaly 22%.

The estimates used to calculate the fair valuereparting unit change from year to year basedperating results, market conditions
other factors. If our estimates or related assuwmptchange in the future, or if our net book valese
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to exceed our market capitalization, we may beirequo record an impairment loss related to owdyall. We have not recognized any
impairment of goodwill in the three year period eddune 30, 2015. As of June 30, 2015, we had gtdad$31.3 million.

Stock-based compensation expensé account for stock-based employee compensatiamgements under the fair value recognition
method, which requires us to measure the stockdoam@pensation costs of share-based compensatemmgaments based on the grant date
fair value, and recognize the costs in the findratetements over the employees’ requisite sepiced. We recognize compensation expenst
for the fair value of these awards with time bagesting on a straight-line basis over an employesisiisite service period of each of these
awards, net of estimated forfeitures.

Our stock-based compensation expense was as follows

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Cost of revenue $ 98 % 10C $ 14¢
Research and development 5,27¢ 4,49( 3,50¢
Selling and marketing 2,94: 3,30¢ 2,29(
General and administrative 3,112 3,63¢ 2,69¢
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 11,42¢ $ 1153 % 8,641

As of June 30, 2015, there was $1.8 million ofemognized stock-based compensation expense rétatenvested stock option awards,
net of estimated forfeitures, that we expect todmgnized over a weighted average period of 2a2syé\t June 30, 2015 , the total
unrecognized stock-based compensation cost relatestricted stock units was $17.9 million , neéstimated forfeitures, and will be
amortized over a weighted average period of 2.5syea

We generally utilize the Black-Scholes option-prgcimodel to determine the fair value of our stopkan awards, which requires a
number of estimates and assumptions. In valuingeshased awards under the fair value accountingadesignificant judgment is required in
determining the expected volatility of our commaewock and the expected term individuals will holdittshare-based awards prior to
exercising. The expected volatility of our stock@&sed on the historical volatility of various caamgible companies, as we do not have
sufficient historical data with regards to the \itiky of our own stock. The expected term of opsogranted represents the period of time that
options granted are expected to be outstandingeXpected term was based on an analysis of ounritiat exercise and cancellation activity.
In the future, as we gain historical data for vititsitin our own stock, the expected volatility ar&pected term may change which could
substantially change the grant date fair valuautifre awards of stock options and ultimately thgegse we record. In addition, the estimation
of stock awards that will ultimately vest requijedgment, and to the extent actual results diffemf our estimates, such amounts will be
recorded as an adjustment in the period estimateesised.

For fiscal 2015, 2014 and 2013, we calculateddlrevalue of options granted to employees with fihllowing weighted average
assumptions:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Expected volatility 54% 62% 72%
Expected term (in years) 4.3¢ 4.4~ 4.7¢
Risk-free interest rate 1.6(% 1.44% 0.67%

Dividend yield — — —

We recognize the estimated stock-based compensaigirof restricted stock units, net of estimatadeitures, over the vesting term. The
estimated stock-based compensation cost is bas#uk dair value of our common stock on the datgraft.

Provision (benefit) for income taxeVe use the liability method of accounting forante taxes. Under this method, income tax expens
(benefit) is recognized for the amount of taxesaidy or refundable for the current year. In additideferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the expected future tax effect ofgerary differences between the financial reportind tax bases of assets and liabilities, anc
for operating losses and tax credit carryforwawlse.must make assumptions, judgments and estinmatistérmine our current provision for
income taxes and also our deferred tax assetdailities and any valuation allowance to be reeardgainst a deferred tax asset.
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Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relatitteetcurrent provision (benefit) for income tatadee into account current tax laws,
our interpretation of current tax laws and posstle&comes of current and future audits conductefbi®ign and domestic tax authorities. We
have established reserves for income taxes to sslg@ential exposures involving tax positions tiwatld be challenged by tax authorities. In
addition, we are subject to the periodic examimatibour income tax returns by the Internal Reve8aevice, or IRS, and other domestic and
foreign tax authorities. Although we believe ouswamptions, judgments and estimates are reasortdialages in tax laws or our interpretation
of tax laws and the resolution of the current amgl fature tax audits could significantly impact ta@ounts provided for income taxes in our
consolidated financial statements.

Our assumptions, judgments and estimates relatitleetvalue of a deferred tax asset take into adqaedictions of the amount and
category of future taxable income, such as incawm foperations or capital gains income and premistiof the amount and category of future
taxable loss that may be carried back for a taxnefIn assessing the realizability of deferreddssets, we consider whether it is more likely
than not that some portion or all of the defergdassets, on a jurisdiction by jurisdiction basid, be realized. Actual operating results and
the underlying amount and category of income inriyears as well as expectations regarding therggan of operating losses could render
our current assumptions, judgments and estimate=cof/erable net deferred taxes inaccurate. Artie@hssumptions, judgments and estim
mentioned above could cause our actual incomelibgations or refunds to differ from our estimatdé®s)s materially impacting our financial
position and results of operations.

Results of operations

The following tables set forth our results of ogienas for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, as wek @&rcentage that each line item
represents of our revenue for those periods. Theg® period comparison of financial results & necessarily indicative of financial results
to be achieved in future periods.

The results of operations of our enterprise businesluding the related gain on sale, have beassified as discontinued operations in
our statement of operations for periods presethtemligh fiscal 2013. The following discussion foauselely on results of continuing
operations.

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

Consolidated Statements of Operations Data 2015 2014 2013
Revenue: (in thousands)
Product $ 100,76¢ $ 72,747 % 69,16
Services 59,47 77,56¢ 122,63
Total revenue 160,23 150,31. 191,80(
Cost of revenue:
Product 55,27( 36,77" 38,16¢
Services 23,51« 24,06¢ 30,94¢
Total cost of revenue 78,78¢ 60,84: 69,11:!
Gross profit 81,45¢ 89,47 122,68
Operating expenses:
Research and development 68,06( 60,57 60,34¢
Sales and marketing 26,97t 33,13¢ 30,43
General and administrative 23,60¢ 26,17¢ 24,76!
Restructuring costs 1,15(C 4,41; 1,671
Total operating expenses 119,79: 124,29¢ 117,22(
Operating income (loss) (38,33¢) (34,82) 5,467
Other income, net 2,261 1,28¢ 1,20
Income (loss) before provision (benefit) for incotages (36,069 (33,539 6,67¢
Provision (benefit) for income taxes (13,00¢) (4,01 1,09:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta (23,067 (29,52 5,581
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 7,48¢
Net income (loss) $ (23,069 % (29,529 $ 13,06’
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Revenue:
Product
Services
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Product
Services
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Restructuring costs
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income, net
Income (loss) before provision for income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income (loss)
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013

2015 2014 2013
(as a percentage of revenue)
63 % 48 % 36%
37% 52% 64%
10C % 10C % 10C%
34% 24% 20%
15% 16 % 16%
49 % 40 % 36%
51% 6Q % 64%
42 % 41% 31%
17 % 22% 16%
15% 17% 13%
1% 3% 1%
5% 83% 61%
24)% 23)% 3%
(
1% 1% —%
(23% (22)% 3%
(9% (2% —%
(14)% (20)% 3%
— % — % 4%
(14)% (20% 7%
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Segments informatioithe information below is organized in accordancénwur three reportable business segments (dafiars
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Revenue
Automotive $ 103,10 % 75,157 % 71,47¢
Advertising 17,94: 11,69¢ 3,93¢
Mobile Navigation 39,19¢ 63,46 116,38¢
Total revenue 160,23¢ 150,31: 191,80(
Cost of revenue
Automotive 56,31¢ 37,13t 38,241
Advertising 11,71( 7,012 2,50¢
Mobile Navigation 10,75¢ 16,69« 28,36(
Total cost of revenue 78,78¢ 60,84 69,11:
Gross profit
Automotive 46,78 38,01¢ 33,22¢
Advertising 6,231 4,68 1,42¢
Mobile Navigation 28,44 46,76 88,02¢
Total gross profit $ 81,45 $ 89,47 $ 122,68
Gross margin
Automotive 45% 51% 46%
Advertising 35% 40% 36%
Mobile Navigation 73% 74% 76%
Total gross margin 51% 60% 64%

Comparison of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2052014
Revenue, cost of revenue and gross profit

Consolidated overviewProduct revenue consists primarily of revenugaeeive from the delivery of customized softward eoyalties
from the distribution of this customized softwanecertain automotive navigation applications. Pataavenue increased 39%%00.8 millior
in fiscal 2015 from $72.7 million in fiscal 2014 he increase in product revenue was due primariBntincrease in royalty revenue from
automotive navigation solutions we provide for automotive customers, primarily Ford, offset bylight decrease in customized software
revenue. Services revenue consists primarily cfmae we derive from our mobile navigation servaed advertising. Services revenue
decreased 23% to $59.5 million in fiscal 2015 fi®17.6 million in fiscal 2014 . The decrease in 8@ revenue was due primarily to lower
subscription fees resulting from decreases in thelrer of paying subscribers for mobile navigatiervices, partially offset by an increase in
advertising revenue.

Our cost of product revenue increased 50% to $&I®n in fiscal 2015 from $36.8 million in fisc&l014 . The increase was due
primarily to an increase in third party contenttsasssociated with the increased royalty revenua frutomotive navigation solutions. Our ¢
of services revenue decreased 2% to $23.5 miltidiscal 2015 from $24.1 million in fiscal 2014 h& decrease was due primarily to a
decrease in cost of mobile navigation revenue gssatwith the decline in such revenue, partiaffget by an increase in cost of advertising
revenue resulting from increases in third partgachange inventory costs and hosting services edsdavith the increased impressions
delivered.

Our gross profit decreased to $81.5 million indis2015 from $89.5 million in fiscal 2014 . Our gesomargin decreased to 51% in fiscal
2015 from 60% in fiscal 2014 . The decrease ingroargin was primarily due to lower services rexeand the increased proportion of
product revenue contributed from our on-board awotira navigation solutions provided to our automettustomers, which generally has
higher associated content costs and resulting lgness margins than our mobile navigation serviwesided through our wireless carrier
customers. We expect our overall gross margin tircoe to decline as the percentage of our revénone automotive offerings increases, and
as a result of increased competition on our offgrin
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of mobile navigation services, especially from otlhleemium offerings. In addition, our gross margiitl continue to be negatively impacted
the future by the amortization of developed techgglacquired as part of our January 2014 acquisifcskobbler.

Revenue concentrationsn fiscal 2015 and 2014 , revenue from Ford repnéed 61% and 46% of our total revenue, respéygtiard
revenue from AT&T represented 15% and 24% of otal t@venue, respectively.

We primarily sell our services in the United Statediscal 2015 and 2014 , revenue derived froi8.ldources represented 96% and 94Y
of our total revenue, respectively. With respeatteenue we receive from automobile manufactuneds@EMSs for sales of vehicles in other
countries, we classify that revenue as being géeetiia the United States because we provide delbles to and receive compensation fron
manufacturer's or OEM's United States' entity.

Segments information.

Automotive Automotive revenue increased 37% to $103.1 millofiscal 2015 from $75.2 million in fiscal 2014 he increase was due
primarily to an increase in production royalty reue of $28.3 million. Automotive revenue includegitomized software and map content
revenue of $4.7 million and $5.1 million in fis@)15 and 2014 , respectively. In addition, durisgdl 2015 , we billed $5.3 million in
royalties earned from new vehicle owner downloddSM's OnStar RemoteLink® mobile application powkby our location-based services
platform. We record the royalties earned as dedemgenue and recognize this revenue over the a®drservice period. Deferred revenue
associated with RemoteLink® as of June 30, 2015%8a3 million. Automotive revenue represented 649 50% of total revenue in fiscal
2015 and 2014, respectively.

Cost of automotive revenue increased 52% to $5@I®min fiscal 2015 from $37.1 million in fisc&014 . The increase was due
primarily to an increase in third party contenttsasf $18.2 million associated with the increaseghfty revenue and mix of revenue from Ford
on vehicles sold in Europe and China and increassattization expense of $0.5 million related toeleped technology acquired.

Automotive gross profit increased 23% to $46.8ionillin fiscal 2015 from $38.0 million in fiscal 201 Automotive gross margin
decreased to 45% in fiscal 2015 from 51% in fig@il4 . The decrease in gross margin was due pitimarihe higher proportion of revenue
from vehicles sold in Europe and China, which gelyghas higher associated content costs.

Advertising. Advertising revenue increased 53% to $17.9 mmilfiscal 2015 from $11.7 million in fiscal 2014 h& increase was due
primarily to an increase in the value of contradtesgrtion orders along with the number of impressidelivered. Advertising revenue
represented 11% and 8% of total revenue in fiseab2and 2014 , respectively.

Cost of advertising revenue increased 67% to $illibn in fiscal 2015 from $7.0 million in fisc&l014 . The increase was due
primarily to increased third party ad exchange mwoey costs of $3.8 million and increased thirdtp&iosting service fees of $0.9 million
associated with the increased impressions deliv&est of advertising revenue increased at a greate than advertising revenue due to
increased effective cost per thousand impressamrsCPM, for display ad inventory sourced fromdhparty exchanges, as well as enhanced
content costs.

Advertising gross profit increased 33% to $6.2 imiillin fiscal 2015 from $4.7 million in fiscal 2014dvertising gross margin decrea:
to 35% in fiscal 2015 from 40% in fiscal 2014 . Tdecrease in gross margin was due primarily toeim®ed eCPM for display ad inventory
sourced from third party exchanges, as well asmrgthcontent costs.

Mobile Navigation Mobile navigation revenue decreased 38% to $88llfn in fiscal 2015 from $63.5 million in fisc&014 . The
decrease was primarily due to lower subscriptiaemeie resulting from decreases in the number ahgasubscribers for mobile navigation
services provided through AT&T, WMobile and USCC, the termination of our fixed fegenue from Sprint for bundled users, and a deerna
mobile navigation revenue internationally. Accoglin in fiscal 2015 , services revenue from AT&Trt, T-Mobile, USCC and internatior
customers decreased by $24.1 million . The decnwaseartially offset by $0.8 million in one-timatch-up revenue reporting from AT&T.
Mobile navigation revenue represented 24% and 4P8tal revenue in fiscal 2015 and 2014 , respetyiv

Cost of mobile navigation revenue decreased 36$408 million in fiscal 2015 from $16.7 million fiscal 2014 . The decrease was dug
primarily to decreases in third party content ca$t$2.0 million, compensation and benefits expesfs&l.0 million, amortization of capitaliz
software and recognition of deferred costs of $0ilion, data center and hosted services costd fillion, and depreciation and
amortization of $0.6 million.

Mobile navigation gross profit decreased 39% to.428illion in fiscal 2015 from $46.8 million in fisl 2014 . Mobile navigation gross
margin was comparable at 73% and 74% in fiscal 2062014 , respectively.
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Research and developmer@ur research and development expenses incred%edol$68.1 million in fiscal 2015 from $60.6 milfi in
fiscal 2014 . The increase was due primarily toitledusion of $10.4 million of product managemeapdrtment costs that are classified in
research and development expense beginning il #6d%. Previously, product management departnrepisrted into our sales and marketing
organization and were included in sales and margetkpense for fiscal 2014. The $10.4 million ims® due to the inclusion of product
management costs was partially offset primarilyal$3.8 million decrease in compensation and benefipense. As a percentage of revenue,
research and development expenses increased tindal 2015 from 41% in fiscal 2014 . The tataimber of research and development
personnel decreased 4% to 413 at June 30, 20154f8drmat June 30, 2014 . A total of 34 product manaant personnel were included in
research and development expense at June 30, 2bik5decrease in total research and developmedtbeat is due primarily to a decrease
resulting from our ongoing cost optimization effgiincluding our restructuring efforts in the seddwalf of fiscal 2014, partially offset by
increased headcount with our acquisition of skabibldanuary 2014 and the inclusion of product ngengent personnel in fiscal 2015. We
believe that as we deliver our contracted custaeguirements for our automotive customers, estabékationships with new automotive
manufacturers and OEMSs, enhance our service offe@nound our OSM capabilities, and develop newises and products for advertisers,
revenue from those investments and development&ffall lag the related research and developmgpérses. .

Sales and marketingOur sales and marketing expenses decreased 19247 @ million in fiscal 2015 from $33.1 million fiscal 2014 .
The decrease was primarily due to a decrease of $iillion related to product management costs ek classified in sales and marketing
expense in fiscal 2014. Beginning in fiscal 20H&ske costs are now included in research and develupexpense. The $10.4 million decreas
related to the classification of product managentests was partially offset primarily by a $4.3 It increase in compensation and benefits
and commissions costs. As a percentage of reveales and marketing expenses decreased to 17%eah 015 from 22% in fiscal 2014 he
total number of sales and marketing personnel dsek23% to 78 at June 30, 2015 from 101 at Jun203@ . A total of 40 product
management personnel were included in sales anketivag expense at June 30, 2014 . We expect thatadeis and marketing expenses will
continue to increase over time in absolute dobarsve add sales personnel to support our advertisiainess. .

General and administrativeOur general and administrative expenses decrdd¥¥do $23.6 million in fiscal 2015 from $26.2 haih in
fiscal 2014 . The decrease was primarily due toadeses in compensation and benefits expense ofidili@n, professional and outside
services of $0.7 million and stock-based compeosakpense of $0.5 million. The total number ofgahand administrative personnel
decreased 5% to 62 at June 30, 2015 from 66 at3riZ014 . As a percentage of revenue, generahdministrative expenses decreased to
15% in fiscal 2015 from 17% in fiscal 2014 . Weieipiate that our general and administrative expgensay vary substantially from period to
period as we incur legal expenses associated wibing intellectual property litigation and requefir indemnification related to intellectual
property litigation proceed.

Restructuring costsWe incurred restructuring costs of $1.2 milliorfiscal 2015 associated with facility lease impgnt in connection
with the consolidation of our Sunnyvale headquartacilities in fiscal 2014. We incurred restruatgrcosts of $4.4 million in fiscal 2014 in
order to further align our resources and consddifiatilities. We initiated a restructuring plan ststing of reductions of approximately 108
full-time positions in the U.S. and China and we reabréstructuring charges of $2.4 million related¢éwerance and benefits for the positi
eliminated. In addition, we closed our Boston affand consolidated our Sunnyvale headquarterstiesiirom two buildings into one and
recorded restructuring charges of $2.0 milliontedao the impairment of our facility leases.

Other income, netOur other income, net was $2.3 million in fis2all5 and $1.3 million in fiscal 2014 . Other incgmet in fiscal 2015
included foreign currency transaction gains of $hiion and interest income of $1.0 million, whigrere partially offset by a $1.3 million lo
from the impairment of long-term equity investmenritse impairment of long-term equity investment$df3 million included $0.8 million
from an investment in connection with the spinafff product line developed by our Shanghai, Chaaan.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®ur benefit for income taxes increased to $13I0omin fiscal 2015 from $4.0 million in fiscal
2014 . Our effective tax rate was 36% in fiscal2@bmpared to 12% in fiscal 2014 . Our effectiverte in fiscal 2015 was attributable
primarily to tax benefits recorded from the antatigd refund of $5.4 million resulting from the gdoack of fiscal 2015 losses, of which $1.3
million was recognized in fiscal 2014; the recogmitof a state income tax refund of $3.0 milliordanrefund of $1.1 million from a change in
tax accounting method, both related to prior yeaud received in fiscal 2015; and the reversalfégserves of $4.2 million due to loss
carryback, expiration of the statute of limitatipaad settlement of our California audit.

Due to the limitations of the two year loss carglbéor federal tax purposes, we do not anticipate r@funds for losses incurred in fiscal
2016 or thereafter.
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The usage of our remaining U.S. federal and st darryforwards at June 30, 2015 of approximéaiél$ million and $10.9 million,
respectively, is substantially limited each fisgaar by Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code.

As of June 30, 2015, our cumulative unrecognizedoenefit was $6.1 million , of which $4.4 millievas netted against deferred tax
assets. Included in the other long-term liabilites unrecognized tax benefits at June 30, 2088 @f million that, if recognized, would affect
the annual effective tax rate.

We believe it is reasonably possible that the gunmsscognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2015dadetrease (whether by payment,
release, or a combination of both) by approxima#dly8 million in the next 12 months. We recognizeeiest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax benefits as part of our provisarincome taxes. We had $0.5 million and $0.6iomillaccrued for the payment of interest
and penalties at June 30, 2015 and 2014 , resphbctiv

All available evidence, both positive and negativas considered to determine whether, based ugoweight of the evidence, a
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is egelh fiscal 2015, we released the valuation adlloge on deferred tax assets, net of liabilitie:
in Germany due to cumulative net income, expeatatiocontinued profits, and continued growth anstaimability of the European business.

In fiscal 2015, we maintained a valuation allowanneour U.S. deferred tax assets, net of liabdjt@nce the assets are not more likely
than not to be realized based upon our assessihalhpositive and negative evidendealization of deferred tax assets is dependent upo
future taxable earnings, the timing of which is erain. Due to losses in fiscal 2014 and 2015,exuected losses in fiscal 2016 and
potentially future years in the U.S., we maintaiaedaluation allowance on deferred tax assetsartls. Due to foreign operating losses in
previous years and continued foreign earnings Nityatve continued to maintain a full valuatioril@ance for our foreign deferred tax assets
in China, Brazil and the United Kingdom. Our valaatallowance increased from the prior fiscal yi@aapproximately $4.7 million , $10.1
million and $0.7 million in fiscal 2015 , 2014 aB@13 , respectively. The $10.1 million increaseun valuation allowance in fiscal 2014
included a $7.4 million valuation allowance agamhsterred tax assets in the U.S.

On December 31, 2014, the research and developreit expired for federal tax purposes. The Taxdase Prevention Act of 2014
extended the research and development credit foyear until December 31, 2014. Although the redeand development credit has been
extended every year since enactment, a tax baragfitot be recorded for the expired period untiéstension has been passed and signed by
the President. If and when an extension is passeédigned with retroactive effect, a retroactive hanefit will be recorded in the period the
extension is passed and signed. We have recortdedognefit for the federal research and developmedit through December 31, 2014.

We file income tax returns with the Internal Rever8ervice, or IRS, California, various states andifin tax jurisdictions in which we
have subsidiaries. The statute of limitations remaipen for fiscal 2012 through fiscal 2014 inth8., for fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2014 in
state jurisdictions, and for fiscal 2010 througdtéil 2014 in foreign jurisdictions. Fiscal yearssale the normal statute of limitations remain
open to audit by tax authorities due to tax attéswgenerated in those early years which have tereied forward and may be audited in
subsequent years when utilized.

Comparison of the fiscal years ended June 30, 2042013
Revenue, cost of revenue and gross profit

Consolidated overviewProduct revenue increased 5% to $72.7 milliofisicel 2014 from $69.2 million in fiscal 2013. Therease was
due primarily to increased royalty revenue fronoauttive navigation solutions we provide for Fordhiates, including the launch of our
solutions in additional Ford and Lincoln models &ndher geographic distribution. Services revedaereased 37% to $77.6 million in fiscal
2014 from $122.6 million in fiscal 2013. The deaean services revenue was due primarily to lowéssription fees resulting from decreases
in the number of paying subscribers for mobile gation services, partially offset by an increasadmertising revenue.

Our cost of product revenue decreased 4% to $38li8mrin fiscal 2014 from $38.2 million in fisc&l013. The decrease was due
primarily to a decrease in amortization of captiedi software and recognition of deferred costgjglgroffset by an increase in third party
content costs associated with the increased royedgnue from automotive navigation solutions. €ast of services revenue decreased 2%
$24.1 million in fiscal 2014 from $30.9 millian fiscal 2013. The decrease was due primarily de@ease in cost of mobile navigation reve
associated with the decline in such revenue, plgrtéset by an increase in amortization expemsanarily related to developed technology
acquired from Thinknear and skobbler.

Our gross profit decreased to $89.5 million indis2014 from $122.7 million in fiscal 2013. Our gsomargin decreased to 60% in fiscal
2014 from 64%n fiscal 2013. The decrease in gross margin wisgsily due to lower services revenue and the iased proportion of prodt
revenue contributed from our on-board automotiwagsion solutions provided to our
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automotive customers, which generally has highso@ated content costs and resulting lower groggimathan our mobile navigation
services provided through our wireless carrier austrs.

Revenue concentrationsn fiscal 2014 and 2013, revenue from Ford regmésd 46%and 36% of our total revenue, respectively, reve
from AT&T represented 24% and 28% of our total rexe respectively, and revenue from Sprint repteskless than 10% and 16% of our
total revenue, respectively.

We primarily sell our services in the United Statediscal 2014 and 2013, revenue derived from. ddbirces represented 94% and 92%
of our total revenue, respectively.

Segments information.

Automotive Automotive revenue increased 5% to $75.2 milliofisnal 2014 from $71.5 million in fiscal 2013. Therease was due
primarily to an increase in production royalty reue of $16.9 million , partially offset by a decsedn customized software revenue and map
content update revenue from Ford of $14.3 millidutomotive revenue in fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2duded $2.8 million and $9.2 million,
respectively, of customized software revenue frardFAutomotive revenue in fiscal 2014 and 2018 ateluded $0.9 million and $8.7
million , respectively, related to a map contendate separately purchased by Ford. Automotive neveepresented 50% and 37% of total
revenue in fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Cost of automotive revenue decreased 3% to $37libmin fiscal 2014 from $38.2 million in fiscaldA3. The decrease was due
primarily to a decrease in amortization of captiedi software and recognition of deferred costs4dd #illion associated with the decrease in
customized software revenue and map content upela¢eue from Ford, partially offset by an increasthird party content costs of $2.6
million associated with the increased royalty raxefrom automotive navigation solutions.

Automotive gross profit increased 14% to $38.0ionillin fiscal 2014 from $33.2 million in fiscal 281Automotive gross margin
increased to 51% in fiscal 2014 from 46% in fis2@13. The increase in gross margin was due priyngrithe lower margin customized
software revenue and map content update revenoeRord in fiscal 2013 that did not recur in fis2all4.

Advertising. Advertising revenue increased 197% to $11.7 anilfiscal 2014 from $3.9 million in fiscal 2013. &mcrease was due
primarily to an increase in the value of contradtesgrtion orders along with the number of impressidelivered. Advertising revenue
represented 8% and 2% of total revenue in fiscaizihd 2013, respectively.

Cost of advertising revenue increased 180% to 8ifllibn in fiscal 2014 from $2.5 milliomn fiscal 2013. The increase was due prime
to increased third party ad exchange inventorysco$2.5 million and increased third party hostiegvice fees of $0.7 million associated witk
the increased impressions delivered, as well asésed amortization of developed technology acduire

Advertising gross profit increased 228% to $4.7iomilin fiscal 2014 from $1.4 milliom fiscal 2013. Advertising gross margin incree
to 40% in fiscal 2014 from 36% fiscal 2013. The increase in gross margin wasghimarily to an increase in the value of con&ddnsertior
orders along with the number of impressions detider

Mobile Navigation Mobile navigation revenue decreased 45% to $68llfn in fiscal 2014 from $116.4 million in fis€2013. Of the
decrease, a decline of $51.8 million was due tdeéhmination of our fixed fee revenue from Spriot bundled users, lower subscription
revenue resulting from decreases in the numbeayihg subscribers for mobile navigation services/gred through AT&T, T-Mobile and
USCC, and a decrease in mobile navigation revemeeniationally. Mobile navigation revenue represdm2% and 61% of total revenue in
fiscal 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Cost of mobile navigation revenue decreased 41$4607 million in fiscal 2014 from $28.4 million fiscal 2013. The decrease was due
primarily to a decrease in third party content sast$7.4 million and decreased network operationstomer support and data center costs of
$2.3 million.

Mobile navigation gross profit decreased 47% to.&4#illion in fiscal 2014 from $88.0 million in fisl 2013. Mobile navigation gross
margin decreased to 74% in fiscal 2014 from 76%sital 2013.

Research and developmer@ur research and development expenses were cabigat $60.6 million in fiscal 2014 and $60.3 raitlin
fiscal 2013. The change was primarily comprisedadreased compensation and benefits costs of $lli@nassociated with decreased
average headcount, primarily in our China offi@dgcrease in amortization and depreciation expafit@.7 million and a decrease in rent
expense of $0.3 million, primarily due to lease &imment restructuring charges recorded separatalysitructuring costs, partially offset by a
decrease in capitalization and deferral of softvesreslopment
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costs of $1.3 million. This net decrease was ofigethe reimbursement of $1.0 million of costs @ameection with a cost recovery contract v
a third party that was included fiscal 2013. Assacpntage of revenue, research and developmemsapacreased to 41% in fiscal 204z
31% in fiscal 2013. The total number of researat @evelopment personnel decreased 7% to 431 at3yrgd14 from 464 at June 30, 2013.

Sales and marketingOur sales and marketing expenses increased $33t@ million in fiscal 2014 from $30.4 million fiscal 2013.
The increase was primarily due to increases in @rsgtion, benefits and commissions of $2.3 miliad contracted services of $0.7 million,
partially offset by a decrease in advertising arahmotion expense of $0.8 million. As a percentageeeenue, sales and marketing expenses
increased to 22% in fiscal 2014 from 16% in fis2@13. The total number of sales and marketing peeldncreased 9% to 101 at June 30,
2014 from 93 at June 30, 2013.

General and administrativeOur general and administrative expenses incre@®etb $26.2 million in fiscal 2014 from $24.8 riot in
fiscal 2013, including $1.1 million in skobbler adsjtion related costs. The increase was primatilg to increased compensation and benefit
of $0.8 million, increased stock compensation espayf $0.9 million and increased professional sexviees of $0.8 million, partially offset
decreased legal costs of $1.4 million. The totahber of general and administrative personnel dsex@% to 66 at June 30, 2014 from 71 at
June 30, 2013. As a percentage of revenue, gesgtadministrative expenses increased to 17%daalf2014 from 13% in fiscal 2013. We
anticipate that our general and administrative agspe may vary substantially from period to perisdva incur legal expenses associated with
ongoing intellectual property litigation and reqgisefor indemnification related to intellectual pesty litigation proceed, as well as one-time
costs related to the acquisition of companies siscskobbler.

Restructuring costsWe incurred restructuring costs of $4.4 milliorfiscal 2014 in order to further align our res@s@nd consolidate
facilities. We initiated a restructuring plan catsig of reductions of approximately 108 full-tippesitions in the U.S. and China and we
recorded restructuring charges of $2.4 milliontedlao severance and benefits for the positiomsiedited. In addition, we closed our Boston
office and consolidated our Sunnyvale headquaféeibties from two buildings into one and recordedtructuring charges of $2.0 million
related to the impairment of our facility leases.

We incurred restructuring costs of $1.7 milliorfistal 2013 in order to better align and focus i@sources around our strategic growth
areas. We initiated a restructuring plan consistihgeductions of approximately 83 full-time posiis in the U.S. and China and we recorded
restructuring charges of $1.5 million related teesance and benefits for the positions eliminakedddition, we consolidated our Shanghai
office facilities and recorded restructuring chargé $0.1 million related to the forfeiture of dease deposit. We also recorded restructuring
charges of $0.1 million related to the write-offagfrtain assets that were no longer useful to ssdapon the changes in our business.

Other income, netOur other income, net was $1.3 million in fis2alLl4 and $1.2 million in fiscal 2013.

Income from discontinued operations, n€ur income from discontinued operations, net $/&8 million in fiscal 2013 and included a
gain of $6.5 million realized on the sale of outezprise business, net of tax. We had no discoetiraperations in fiscal 2014.

Provision (benefit) for income taxe®©ur provision (benefit) for income taxes, exchgldiscontinued operations, decreased to $(4.0)
million in fiscal 2014 from $1.1 million in fisc&013. Our effective tax rate, excluding discontohogerations, was 12% in fiscal 2014
compared to 16% in fiscal 2013. Our effective taberin fiscal 2014 was lower than the tax compatetthe U.S. federal statutory income tax
rate due primarily to the increase to the valuatibowance which resulted in additional federal éaense of $7.0 million.

Liquidity and capital resources

The following table sets forth the major sourced ases of cash and cash equivalents for each qietheds set forth below:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
(in thousands)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities $ (7,696 $ (22,559 $ 42,91
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 16,05 20,13: (185)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,47)) (8,887) (23,87¢)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casbatnts (1,699 51 13
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent $ 4187 $ (11,259 $ 18,86
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At June 30, 2015, we had cash and cash equivaedtshort-term investments of $119.9 million , ethprimarily consisted of money
market mutual funds, asset-backed securities, mpatisecurities and corporate bonds held by welitatized financial institutions.

Our accounts receivable are heavily concentratedsimall number of customers. As of June 30, 2@LB accounts receivable balance
was $36.5 million , of which Ford and AT&T represeth 58% and 14% , respectively.

Our future capital requirements will depend on meagjors, including our ability to stabilize ouvenue and control expenses in fiscal
2016 and beyond, whether we return to profitahilite timing and extent of expenditures to supgextelopment efforts, the expansion of
research and development and sales and marketingies and headcount, the introduction of our reavd enhanced service and product
offerings and the growth in our end user base. @iewe our cash, cash equivalents and short-tevestments will be sufficient to satisfy our
financial obligations through at least the nexini@nths. However, we expect to continue to use rasperating activities in fiscal 2016 and
we may experience greater than expected cash usagerating activities if revenue is lower than avgicipate or we incur greater than
expected cost of revenue or operating expenseste®enue and operating results could be lower Waanticipate if, among other reasons,
customers, two of which we are substantially depahdpon for a large portion of our revenue, werknit or terminate our relationships with
them; we were to fail to successfully compete intughly competitive market, including against catifors who offer their services for free;
our revenue did not grow as expected or we werblaria reduce our costs by using OSM. In the fytwe may acquire businesses or
technologies or license technologies from thirdipar and we may decide to raise additional cafiitalugh debt or equity financing to the
extent we believe this is necessary to succesgfoliyplete these acquisitions or license these tdobies. However, additional financing may
not be available to us on favorable terms, if htalthe time we make such determinations, whialicchave a material adverse effect on our
business, operating results, financial conditiod kouidity and cash position.

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activitibet cash provided by (used in) operating acésitivas $(7.7) million $(22.6) million
and $42.9 million in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2018spectively. Cash provided by (used in) operatictiyvities has historically been affected by
growth in our end user base and increases in aenatipg costs. In fiscal 2015 , cash used in opeyaictivities was driven principally by a net
loss of $23.1 million and a $3.2 million changeir operating assets and liabilities, partiallyseffby non-cash charges for depreciation and
amortization of $5.2 million , stock-based compeéieseof $11.4 million , and write-off of long-termvestments of $1.3 million . In fiscal
2014, cash used in operating activities was drp@mcipally by a net loss of $29.5 million and &382million change in our operating assets
and liabilities, partially offset by non-cash chesdor depreciation and amortization of $6.8 miljistockbased compensation of $11.5 milli
and valuation allowance on deferred tax asset3 gf iillion. In fiscal 2013, cash provided by operg activities was provided principally by
net income of $13.1 million, non-cash charges fprdciation and amortization of $8.4 million, stdzksed compensation of $8.6 million ar
$7.1 million change in our operating assets arllifes.

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activitidgt cash provided by (used in) investing actgtivas $16.1 million , $20.1 million
and $(0.2) million during fiscal 2015, 2014 and.2Q respectively. In fiscal 2015 , cash was pregigrimarily by proceeds from sales and
maturities of short-term investments, net of pusetsa of $19.4 million , partially offset by purckaof property and equipment of $1.2 million
and purchases of long-term investments of $2.5anill In fiscal 2014, cash was provided primarijydyoceeds from sales and maturities of
short-term investments, net of purchases, of $40llon, partially offset by our acquisition of skbler for $19.2 million and purchases of
property and equipment of $1.1 million. In fisc8l13, we used cash primarily for our acquisitiormbinknear of $18.3 million and purchases
of property and equipment of $2.2 million, whichre@ffset by proceeds from sales and maturitieshoft-term investments, net of purchases
of $22.2 million. We expect our capital expendituie future periods to remain in line with fisc&@l15 as we continue to invest in the
infrastructure needed for our strategic growth suaaautomotive and advertising, while also levaergdhe benefits of hosted environments for
which we no longer have to make large upfront eheixpenditure investments.

Net cash used in financing activitieBuring fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , we used @ashr financing activities of $2.5 million , $8.9
million and $23.9 million, respectively. In fisc2015 , 2014 and 2013, these activities reflectéipairchases of our outstanding stock under
our stock repurchase programs and tax withholdgaid related to net share settlements of restrtieck units upon vesting, and were
partially offset by proceeds from the exercise @ians for our common stock.

Contractual obligations, commitments and contingees

We generally do not enter into long term minimunnghase commitments. However, we have agreed tong@ynum annual license fees
to certain of our third party content providers.r@tincipal commitments, in addition to those rethto our third party content providers,
consist of obligations under facility leases fdia# space in Sunnyvale and Culver City, CaliformNarthlake, Washington; Reston, Virginia;
Southfield, Michigan; Boston, Massachusetts; Clogdiginois; New
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York, New York; Atlanta, Georgia; San Franciscolifdania; Berlin, Germany; Tokyo, Japan; Shangl@jna; Xi'an, China; and Cluj,
Romania.

The following table summarizes our outstanding @oreelable contractual obligations as of June 30520

Payments due by period

Less than More than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 3-5 Years 5 Years
(in thousands)
Operating lease obligations(1) $ 23,76¢ % 6,50¢ $ 9581 $ 7,678 $ =
Purchase obligations(2) 2,08¢ 1,81z 271 — —
Total contractual obligations $ 25,85! $ 8,32( $ 9,85¢ $ 7,678 $ —

(1) Consists of contractual obligations for office spander noncancelable operating leases, net oéasibincom
(2) Consists of minimum noncancelable financiahatitments primarily related to fees owed to certhird party content providers,
regardless of usage level.

At June 30, 2015, we had a liability for unrecagui tax benefits and an accrual for the paymergelafed interest totaling $5.4 million .
Due to uncertainties related to these tax mattesare unable to make a reasonably reliable edingfathen cash settlements with the taxing
authority will occur.

Warranties and indemnifications

Our agreements with our customers generally incgttain provisions for indemnifying them againabilities if our navigation service
or products infringe a third party’s intellectuabperty rights or for other specified reasons. Veehin the past received indemnification
requests or notices of their intent to seek indéoation in the future from our customers with respto litigation in which our customers have
been named as defendants. See Part |, Item 3, 'Begeeedings.” As it relates to past indemnificatiequests or notices, in certain situations
we have agreed to defend or indemnify our custofieerthe indemnity demands. For those notices wherdave not agreed to provide
indemnity or defense to date, or future demandifiemnity, we may in the future agree to defend iademnify our customers, irrespective
of whether we believe that we have an obligatioméemnify them or whether we believe our navigaservices and products infringe the
asserted intellectual property rights. Alternatyyele may reject certain of our customers’ indesndigmands, including the outstanding
demands, which may lead to disputes with our custepmegatively impact our relationships with themnesult in litigation against us. Our
customers may also claim that any rejection ofrtimeiemnity demands constitutes a material bredctuoagreements with them, allowing
them to terminate such agreements. If, as a resiritlemnity demands, we make substantial paymentsielationships with our customers
negatively impacted, or any of our customer agregsis terminated, our business, operating reanltsfinancial condition could be materie
harmed. As of June 30, 2015, any costs in cormreetith such indemnity demands which are probabteestimable have been recorded in
our consolidated financial statements.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain lim
while such persons are or were serving at our Eqaesuch capacity. We may terminate the indercatiibn agreements with these persons
upon the termination of their services with us, teaination will not affect claims for indemnifittan related to events occurring prior to the
effective date of termination. The maximum amountatential future indemnification is unlimited. Wiave a director and officer insurance
policy that limits our potential exposure. We bedig¢he fair value of these indemnification agreetaéminimal. We have not recorded any
liabilities for these agreements as of June 305201

Off-balance sheet arrangements

During fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, we did noteéhamy relationships with unconsolidated entitiefr@ancial partnerships, such as
structured finance or special purpose entitiesciwiiould have been established for the purposaaifthting off-balance sheet arrangements
or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.
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Recent accounting pronouncements

In June 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardsr&oor FASB, ratified Emerging Issues Task FoE&) Issue 13-C, “Presentation
of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit When a Net Operdtiogs Carryforward, a Similar Tax Loss, or a Taedir Carryforward Exists” which
concludes an unrecognized tax benefit should beepted as a reduction of a deferred tax asset sdtdament in this manner is available
under the tax law. We adopted this amendmentaritht quarter of fiscal 2015, and the adoptioh bt have a material effect on our
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance related vemae from contracts with customers, which sup@sée revenue recognition
requirements in ASC 60Revenue Recognitiarnder this guidance, revenue is recognized whemjsed goods or services are transferred t
customers in an amount that reflects the consider#tat is expected to be received for those gaod®rvices. The new guidance also reqt
additional disclosure about the nature, amouningnand uncertainty of revenue and cash flowsmgifiom customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgmentsaaséts recognized from costs incurred to obtafalfiit a contract. The updated standard
will replace most existing revenue recognition guide under GAAP when it becomes effective and periné use of either the full
retrospective or cumulative effect transition metharly adoption is not permitted. The updatedadad will be effective for us in the first
quarter of our fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.HAke&e not yet selected a transition method andrevewrrently evaluating the effect that the
updated standard will have on our consolidatedhfired statements and related disclosures.

In February 2015, the FASB, issued new guidanageadlto consolidations. The new standard amendsuidelines for determining
whether certain legal entities should be consadidaind reduces the number of consolidation modiaksnew standard is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal geaeginning after December 15, 2015. Early adogigermitted. We are evaluating
impact, if any, of adopting this new accountingdguice on our financial statements.

ITEM 7A. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARK  ET RISK

Interest rate sensitivityThe primary objectives of our investment actestare to preserve principal, provide liquidity anaximize
income without significantly increasing risk. Byljpy, we do not enter into investments for tradorgspeculative purposes. Some of the
securities we invest in are subject to market fi$ks means that a change in prevailing intera@ssrmay cause the fair value of the investmen
to fluctuate. To minimize this risk, we invest ivariety of securities, which primarily consistrmbney market funds, commercial paper,
municipal securities and other debt securitiesaphestic corporations. Due to the nature of thegesitments and relatively short duration of
underlying securities, we believe that we do natehany material exposure to changes in the fairevaf our investment portfolio as a result of
changes in interest rates. Declines in interessrdtowever, will reduce future interest incomel08 appreciation or depreciation in interest
rates in fiscal 2015 would not have had a matarighct on our interest income or the fair valu®af marketable securities.

Foreign currency risk A substantial majority of our revenue has beamegeated to date from our end users in the UnitateStand, as
such, our revenue has not been substantially eggosuctuations in currency exchange rates. Hawesome of our contracts with our
customers outside of the United States are denaedrna currencies other than the U.S. dollar aedetfore expose us to foreign currency risk.
Should the revenue generated outside of the USitats grow in absolute amounts and as a perceotage revenue, we will increasingly be
exposed to foreign currency exchange risks. Intamdia portion of our operating expenses are imclioutside the United States, are
denominated in foreign currencies and are subjechanges in foreign currency exchange rates cpdatly the Chinese Renminbi, or RMB,
and the Romanian Leu. Additionally, changes inifpreeurrency exchange rates may cause us to remgainsaction gains and losses in our
statement of operations.

To date, we have not used any foreign currencydadveontracts or similar instruments to attemphitigate our exposure to changes in
foreign currency rates.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND SUPPLEMENTARY DATA

The response to this item is submitted as a sepsaeation of this Form 10-K. See Part IV, Item 15.

ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON AC COUNTING AND
FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
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None.

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our management, with the participation of our cleeécutive officer and our chief financial officenaluated the effectiveness of our
disclosure controls and procedures as of June@®® 2The term “disclosure controls and proceduasdefined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-
15(e) under the Exchange Act, means controls dmet @rocedures of a company that are designedsiretthat information required to be
disclosed by a company in the reports that it flesubmits under the Exchange Act is recorded;ge®ed, summarized and reported, within
the time periods specified in the SEC’s rules amthk. Disclosure controls and procedures includtiowt limitation, controls and procedures
designed to ensure that information required tdibelosed by a company in the reports that it fdlesubmits under the Exchange Act is
accumulated and communicated to the company’s neaneugt, including its principal executive and prpatifinancial officers, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required distice. Management recognizes that any controls sowegures, no matter how well designed
and operated, can provide only reasonable assuddiraahieving their objectives and management rezaég applies its judgment in evaluat
the cost-benefit relationship of possible contenis procedures. Based on the evaluation of oulodisie controls and procedures as of
June 30, 2015o0ur chief executive officer and chief financidficer concluded that, as of such date, our disgi@gontrols and procedures w
effective at the reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Finah&eporting

The SEC, as required by Section 404 of the Sarb@mntsy Act, adopted rules requiring every compémat files reports with the SEC to
include a management report on such company’snateontrol over financial reporting in its annueport. In addition, our independent
registered public accounting firm must attest ®effectiveness of our internal control over finahoeporting.

Our management is responsible for establishingnaaidtaining adequate internal control over finah@aorting to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of our finahoégorting and the preparation of financial stagets for external purposes in accordance witt
generally accepted accounting principles.

Management assessed our internal control overdiabreporting as of June 30, 2015 . Managemergd#s assessment on criteria
established in the 2018ternal Control—Integrated Frameworksued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidriee Treadway
Commission. Based on our assessment, managemeeaidsded that our internal control over financggorting was effective as of June 30,
2015 .

Grant Thornton LLP, an independent registered pudacounting firm, has issued a report on our iratlecontrol over financial reporting,
which is included below.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Repogin

There were no changes in our internal control éwamncial reporting that occurred during the thneenths ended June 30, 20that have
materially affected, or are reasonably likely tatenally affect, our internal control over finantiaporting.

Limitations on the Effectiveness of Controls

Control systems, no matter how well conceived goerated, are designed to provide a reasonabl@dbain absolute, level of assurance
that the objectives of the control system are fratther, the design of a control system must reflee fact that there are resource constraints,
and the benefits of controls must be consideretivel to their costs. Because of the inherent étiahs in all control systems, no evaluation of
controls can provide absolute assurance that attalissues and instances of fraud, if any, haaentdetected. Because of the inherent
limitations in any control system, misstatements ttuerror or fraud may occur and not be detected.
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accourfing

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Telenav, Inc.

We have audited the internal control over finanoigdorting of Telenav, Inc. (a Delaware corporatiand subsidiaries (the “Companyd¥ o
June 30, 2015, based on criteria established iR Internal Control— Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponso
Organizations of the Treadway Commission (COSOg Tbmpanys management is responsible for maintaining effedtiternal control o
financial reporting and for its assessment of tffecéveness of internal control over financial oefing, included in the accompany
Management’'s Report on Internal Control Over FimgnReporting. Our responsibility is to express @pinion on the Compang’interna
control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtaasonable assurance about whether effectivenaiteontrol over financial reporting w
maintained in all material respects. Our auditudeld obtaining an understanding of internal coraxar financial reporting, assessing the
that a material weakness exists, testing and etiafuthe design and operating effectiveness ofivalecontrol based on the assessed risk
performing such other procedures as we considezedssary in the circumstances. We believe thaawdit provides a reasonable basis fol
opinion.

A companys internal control over financial reporting is @@ess designed to provide reasonable assuranagiregthe reliability of financi:
reporting and the preparation of financial stateimidor external purposes in accordance with gelyeealcepted accounting principles
companys internal control over financial reporting inclgdidose policies and procedures that (1) pertatheéanaintenance of records tha
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly refleet ttansactions and dispositions of the assetseotdimpany; (2) provide reasonable assui
that transactions are recorded as necessary toitpgraparation of financial statements in accorédamdth generally accepted accoun
principles, and that receipts and expenditureshef dompany are being made only in accordance withoaizations of management
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasanalsksurance regarding prevention or timely deteafounauthorized acquisition, use
disposition of the company’s assets that could lzaneterial effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtver financial reporting may not prevent or @¢taisstatements. Also, projections of
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods atgexct to the risk that controls may become inadégjbecause of changes in conditions, o
the degree of compliance with the policies or pdoces may deteriorate.

In our opinion, the Company maintained, in all materespects, effective internal control over figal reporting as of June 30, 2015, base
criteria established in the 201r&ernal Control-Integrated Framewoiksued by COSO.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the consolidated
financial statements of the Company as of andhferyear ended June 30, 2015, and our report datgdsh 24, 2015 expressed an unqualified
opinion on those financial statements.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
August 24, 2015
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION
Not applicable.

PART III.

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNA NCE

Pursuant to General Instruction G(3) of Form 1GHe€, information required by this Iltem 10 relatiogour executive officers is included
under the caption “Executive Officers of the Reagist” in Part | of this Form 10-K.

The other information required by this Item 10risdrporated by reference to our Proxy Statemerthi2015 Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdltange Commission within 120 days of our June2B@5fiscal year end) under the headi
“Election of Directors,” “Corporate Governance, datSection 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Qdiance.”

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION

The information required by this Item 11 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 852Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities anxdltange Commission within 120 days of our June2B@5fiscal year end) under the headi
“Corporate Governance,” “Executive Compensationdi &Compensation Committee Report.”

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

The information required by this Item 12 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 852Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdliange Commission within 120 days of our June285fiscal year end) under the headi
“Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Ownerslaanagement” and “Equity Compensation Plan Infdroma”

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE

The information required by this Item 13 is incagted by reference to our Proxy Statement for 852Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdliange Commission within 120 days of our June285fiscal year end) under the headi
“Corporate Governance” and “Certain Relationshipd Related Party Transactions.”

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The information required by this Item 14 is incargted by reference to our Proxy Statement for B52Annual Meeting of
Stockholders (to be filed with the Securities axdltange Commission within 120 days of our June28@5 fiscal year end) under the heading
“Ratification of Appointment of Independent Regisig Public Accounting Firm.”
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PART IV.

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS, FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES
(a) 1. Financial Statements

We have filed the consolidated financial statemésiisd in the Index to Consolidated Financial &atnts of Telenav, Inc. on page F-1
as a part of this Form 10-K.

2. Financial Statement Schedule

Schedule Il—Valuation and Qualifying Accounts i$ fegth on page F-36 of this Form X0-All other schedules are omitted because
are not applicable or the required informationhewen in the Consolidated Financial Statements had\btes thereto.

3. Exhibits
See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed herewith or aredarporated by reference to exhibits previouslydfigth the U.S. Securities and
Exchange Commission.

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
2.1 Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreemerd, Apti 16, 2013, by an 10-Q 2.1 5/8/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and FleetCor Technologies&@ipg Company, LLC.
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatmor of TeleNav, Inc. 10-K 3.1 9/24/2010
filed on May 18, 2010.
3.1.1 Certificate of Amendment of Second Amended and &egtCertificate of 8-K 311
: ; 12/3/2012
Incorporation of Telenav, Inc. filed on November 2812.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of TeleNav, Inc. dffecas of May 18, 2010. 10-K 3.2 9/24/2009
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of TeleNav, Inc. S-1/A 4.1 1/5/2010
4.2 Fifth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agremtydated April 14, S-1 4.2
2009, between TeleNav, Inc. and certain holdefBetéNav, Inc.$ capital stocl 10/30/2009
named therein.
10.1 Efc;ir(grgf Indemnification Agreement between Regidteand its directors and S-1 10.1 10/30/2009
10.2# 1999 Stock Option Plan and forms of agreement thneter. S-1 10.2 10/30/2009
10.3# 2002 Executive Stock Option Plan and forms of ages# thereunder. S-1 10.3 10/30/2009
10.4# 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended. 8-K 10.4.1 12/3/2012
10.4.1# Forms of agreement under the 2009 Equity IncerRies. S-1 10.4 10/30/2009
10.5# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 20, 20@8ween TeleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.5 10/30/2009
Douglas Miller.
10.5.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefi@stober 28, 2009, S-1 10.5.1 10/30/2009
between TeleNav, Inc. and Douglas Miller.
10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2009wieen TeleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.6
Loren Hillberg. 10/30/2009
10.6.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefi@stober 28, 2009, S-1 10.6.1 10/30/2009

between TeleNav, Inc. and Loren Hillberg.
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Exhibit
Number

10.7#

10.8#

10.9#

10.10#

10.10.1#

10.11

10.11.1

10.12

10.13t

10.13.1¢t

10.13.2t

10.13.3t

10.13.4t

10.13.5%

10.13.67

10.13.7%

10.13.87

Description

Employment Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, éetwieleNav, Inc. and
Hassan Wabhla.

Employment Agreement, dated October 28, 2009, tiieleNav, Inc. and
H.P. Jin.

Form of Employment Agreement between TeleNav, &mcl each of Y.C. Cha
Salman Dhanani, Robert Rennard and Hassan Wahla.

Severance Agreement and General Release, datédasuary 29, 2009,
between TeleNav, Inc. and William Bettencourt.

Amendment dated July 8, 2009 to the Severance Aggeeand General
Release, dated as of January 29, 2009, betweeNawlénc. and William
Bettencourt.

Industrial/R&D Lease, dated as of October 9, 2@36and between TeleNav,
Inc. and Roeder Family Trust B.

First Amendment dated October 27, 2006 to the Im#R&D Lease, dated as
of October 9, 2006, by and between TeleNav, Ind.Roeder Family Trust B.

Shanghai Real Estate Lease Agreement, dated gariv28, 2009, by and
between TeleNav Shanghai Inc. and Shanghai Dongfiégiing Culture
Development Co.

Sprint Master Application and Services Agreemeated as of January 30,
2009, by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint dritanagement Company.

Amendment No. 1 effective as of July 1, 2009 toSlpeint Master Application
and Services Agreement, dated as of January 3@, B§tand between
TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.

Amendment No. 2 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Manager@amhpany.

Addendum effective as of March 12, 2010 to the i8gviaster Application and
Services Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2§0&nd between TeleNav,
Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.

Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, as amended,
by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Manaent Company,
effective as of September 1, 2010.

Amendment No. 4 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &nddreTeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as afd¥l 29, 2012.

Amendment No. 5 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre TeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asubf 1, 2012.

Amendment No. 6 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre Telenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asaofiary 18, 2013.

Amendment No. 7 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre Telenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asmfil/8, 2013.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
S 10.7 10/30/2009
S-1 10.8 10/30/2009
S-1 10.9 10/30/2009
S-1 1010 10/30/2009
S-1 10.10.1
10/30/2009
S-1 1011 10/30/2009
S-1 10111 40/3012009
S-1/A 10.12
12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.13 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.13.1
2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.13.2
1/5/2010
S-1/A 10.13.3
4/26/2010
10-Q 10.13.4
11/15/2010
10-K 10.13.5
9/7/2012
10-K 10.13.6
9/7/2012
10-K 10.13.7
8/30/2013
10-K 10.13.8
8/30/2013
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Exhibit
Number

10.13.97

10.14%

10.14.1¢t

10.14.2t

10.14.3t

10.14.4t

10.14.5t

10.14.6t

10.14.7t

10.14.8t

10.14.9t

10.14.10%

10.15t

10.15.1¢t

10.15.2¢t

10.15.3t

10.15.4t

10.15.5t

Description

Amendment No. 8 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement,
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre Telenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as@filA5, 2013.

License and Service Agreement, dated as of MarcRA@®8, by and between
TeleNav, Inc. and AT&T Mobility LLC.

First Amendment effective as of November 13, 2@0the License and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Second Amendment effective as of November 20, 20@8e License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niaybetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Fourth Amendment effective as of June 16, 2008¢d fcense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Sixth Amendment effective as of October 13, 200theoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Seventh Amendment effective as of October 27, 26@Be License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niybeetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eighth Amendment effective as of November 16, 2@0he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niybeetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Ninth Amendment effective as of April 13, 2010 e t_icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Tenth Amendment effective as of January 18, 201hed icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and =tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eleventh Amendment effective as of December 6, 20%he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niaybetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Twelfth Amendment effective as of June 17, 201thtoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and =tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

License Agreement effective as of July 1, 2009aig between TeleNav, Inc.
and Tele Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No.1 effective as of March 1, 2010 toltleense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, by and between TeleNwav,dnd Tele Atlas North
America, Inc.

Amendment No. 2 effective as of August 1, 201thlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeeNav, Inc. and Tele
Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 14, 201i0é¢ License Agreemel
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeeNav, Inc. and Tele
Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 4 effective as of November 21, 2@lthé License

Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeahdpetween TeleNav, Inc.

and TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 5 effective as of March 24, 201lhlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betWeeNav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ,
by Reference  From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-K 10.13.9
8/30/2013
SA 10.14 21212010
S-1 10.14.1
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.2
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.3
10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.4
10/30/2009
S-1/A 10.14.5
12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.14.6
1/5/2010
10-K 10.14.7
9/24/2010
10-Q 10.14.8
5/10/2011
10-K 10.14.9
8/30/2013
10-K 10.14.10
8/30/2013
SA 10.15 12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.15.1
4/26/2010
10-Q 10.15.2
11/15/2010
10-K 10.15.3
9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.4
9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.5
9/7/2012
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
10.15.6% Amendment No. 6 effective as of July 1, 2012 toltleense Agreement, dated 10-K 10.15.6
as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betweeMN#&e)énc. and TomTom 9/7/2012
North America, Inc.
10.15.7t Amendment No. 7 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense Agreement, 10-Q 10.15.7
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and bethelenav, Inc. and 2/8/2013
TomTom North America, Inc.
10.15.8% Amendment No. 8 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense Agreement, 10-Q 10.15.8
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and bet®eenav, Inc. and 2/8/2013
TomTom North America, Inc.
10.16t Data License Agreement, dated as of December 2, 230and between S-1/A 10.16
o S . , 2/2/2010
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugtion.
10.16.1% Third Amendment dated December 22, 2004 to the Datnse Agreement, S-1/A 10.16.1
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Belgon, Inc. and NAVTEC 4/26/2010
North America, LLC.
10.16.2% Fourth Amendment dated May 18, 2007 to the Datarise Agreement, dated S-1/A 10.16.2
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North 2/2/2010
America, LLC.
10.16.3t Fifth Amendment dated January 15, 2008 to the Datense Agreement, dated  S-1/A 10.16.3
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North 2/2/2010
America, LLC.
10.16.4% Seventh Amendment dated December 16, 2008 to ttell@ense Agreement, S-1/A 10.16.4
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and among TeldNay,NAVTEQ Europe 4/26/2010
B.V. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.5 Eighth Amendment dated December 15, 2008 to tha Diaense Agreement, S-1 10.16.5
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJéia and NAVTEQ 10/30/2009
North America, LLC.
10.16.6% Territory License No. 1, dated as of December D220y and between S-1/A 10.16.6
oY o . . 4/26/2010
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugtion.
10.16.7t Territory License No. 2, dated as of June 30, 2093nd between S-1/A 10.16.7 4/26/2010
Televigation, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.8t Territory License No. 3, dated as of February D&My and between TeleNe S-1/A 10.16.8 4/26/2010
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.9% Territory License No. 5, dated as of March 6, 2d§6and between TeleNav, S-1/A 10.16.9 4/26/2010
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.10% Territory License No. 6, dated as of May 18, 208)7and between TeleNav, S-1/A 10.16.10 4/26/2010
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.1171 Territory License No. 7, dated as of May 18, 2af7and between TeleNav, S-1/A 10.16.11 4/26/2010
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.
10.16.127F Ninth Amendment dated February 25, 2010 to the Datense Agreement, S-1/A 10.16.12
dated as of December 1, 2002 by and between Te|dhNavand NAVTEQ 4/26/2010
North America, LLC.
10.16.13 Tenth Amendment dated June 1, 2010 to the Datank&dgreement, dated as  10-Q 10.16.13
of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNav, M&VTEQ North America, 5/7/2012
LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
10.16.14% Eleventh Amendment dated September 16, 2010 tDdhe License 10-Q 10.16.14
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by areeeet TeleNav, Inc., 5/7/2012
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
10.16.15% Twelfth Amendment dated September 28, 2010 to i@ Dicense Agreement, 10-Q 10.16.15
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Teldia, NAVTEQ North 5/7/2012
America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
10.16.16% Fourteenth Amendment dated September 30, 201EktDdla License 10-Q 10.16.16
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by areeeet TeleNav, Inc., 5/7/2012

NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.
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Exhibit
Number

10.16.17t

10.16.18%

10.16.19%

10.16.20

10.16.21t

10.16.22t

10.16.23t

10.16.24

10.16.25%

10.16.26%

10.16.27t

10.16.28t

10.16.29%

10.16.30%

10.16.31+

10.17#

Description

Territory License No. 8, dated December 1, 2011ay between TeleNav,
Inc., NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ EurofV.

First Amendment dated February 7, 2012 to Territacgnse No. 8, dated as of
December 1, 2011, by and between TeleNav, Inc., RAY North America,
LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Second Amendment dated October 18, 2012 to Teyrritimense No. 8, dated
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Fifteenth Amendment dated October 30, 2012 to thDicense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Telama, NAVTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Third Amendment dated December 10, 2012 to Teyriticense No. 8, dated
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Seventeenth Amendment dated June 27, 2013 to tlzeliz@nse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HER# Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

Fourth Amendment dated October 2, 2013 to Territocgnse No. 8, dated
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., and Navigafechnologies Corporation
(“NTC"), which was subsequently assigned by NTE®RE North America,
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).

Eighteenth Amendment dated January 28, 2014 tD#ta License Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HER Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

Territory License No. 9, dated February 1, 2014bg between HERE North
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., NAVTEQ Korea Codl &and Telenav, Ini

General License Agreement, dated February 10, BQ®hd between HERE
North America, LLC, and Telenav, Inc.

Nineteenth Amendment dated May 20, 2014 to the Daense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HERE Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

First Amendment, dated June 12, 2014, to Territdcgnse No. 9, dated as of
February 1, 2014, by and between Telenav, Inc.HERE North America,
LLC (f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).”

Amended and Restated Territory License No. 8, dategust 18, 2014, by and
between Telenav, Inc., HERE North America, LLC [@NAVTEQ North
America, LLC), and Here Europe B.V. (flk/a NAVTEQi®pe B.V.)

Patent License Agreement, dated January 1, 201dndypetween Telenav,
Inc., and HERE Global B.V. (f/k/a Navteq B.V.)

Territory License No. 11, dated April 3, 2015 bydretween HERE North
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., and Telenav, Inc.

Employment Offer Letter executed on June 28, 20dM fTeleNav, Inc. to
Dariusz Paczuski.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10-Q 10.16.17 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.18
5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.19
2/8/2013
10-Q 10.16.20
2/8/2013
10-Q 10.16.21
2/8/2013
10-Q/A 10.16.22
2/27/2014
10-Q 10.16.23
11/8/2013
10-Q 10.16.24
2/6/2014
10-Q 10.16.25 5/8/2014
10-Q 10.16.26 5/8/2014
10-K 10.16.27
8/22/2014
10-K 10.16.28
8/22/2014
10-Q 10.16.29 11/6/2014
10-Q 10.16.30 2/5/2015
Filed
herewith
10K 1017 912472010
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Exhibit

Number
10.18#
10.19+
10.20#

10.21#
10.22#

10.23#

10.23.1#

10.24

10.25#
10.26%

10.26.1%

10.26.27

10.26.3t

10.26.4t

10.26.5t

10.26.67

10.26.77

10.26.87

10.26.97

Description
First Year Executive Employment Agreement datece 28y 2010 by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Dariusz Paczuski.
Office Lease, dated as of June 28, 2011 and exe¢toumtdune 30, 2011, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and CA-Sunnyvale Businesgetéimited Partnership.

Employment Offer Letter dated August 10, 2011 frbeteNav, Inc. to Marc
Aronson.

Form of First Year Executive Employment Agreement.

Retention Letter dated March 28, 2012 from TeleNag, to Michael W.
Strambi.

Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2012 betweseNav, Inc. and
Michael W. Strambi.

Amendment No. 1 dated December 20, 2013 to the &mm@nt Agreement
dated March 28, 2012 between TeleNav, Inc. and MitklV. Strambi.

Consulting Agreement effective June 16, 2012 betwiegeNav, Inc. and
Douglas Miller.

Director Offer Letter dated July 30, 2012 betweeteNav, Inc. and Ken Xie.

SYNC Generation 2 On-Board Navigation Agreemened&ctober 12, 2009
by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company

Amendment No. 1 effective August 10, 2010 to theN€&YGeneration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2008rd between TeleNav,
Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 2 effective February 3, 2011 to t&lS Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 3 effective February 3, 2011 to th&l6 Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 4 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 5 effective March 31, 2011 to the &Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 6 effective March 31, 2011 to the £/Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 288%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 7 effective November 15, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2868mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 8 effective January 1, 2012 to th&l&YGeneration 2 On-
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 26868 mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

Amendment No. 9 effective May 11, 2012 to the SYGé&heration 2 On-Board
Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2009, aqdete by and between
TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference )
by RSference F?/om Exhibit Date Filed
From Form Number
10K 1018 9/24/2010
10-K 10.19 9/9/2011
10-Q 10.20 11/7/2011
10-Q 10.21 11/7/2011
10-Q 1022 5/7/2012
10-Q 1023 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.23.1 2/6/2014
10-K 10.24 9/7/2012
10-K 10.25 9/7/2012
10-K 10.26 9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.1
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.2
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.3
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.4
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.5
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.6
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.7
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.8
9/7/2012
10-K 10.26.9
9/7/2012
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
10.26.10% Amendment No. 10 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.10
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and 5/8/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.11% Amendment No. 11 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.11
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and 8/30/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.12% Amendment No. 12 effective February 28, 2013 toSW&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.12
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and 8/30/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.13% Amendment No. 13 effective June 17, 2013 to the SY®é&neration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.13
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and 8/30/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.14%1 Amendment No. 14 effective October 1, 2013 to ti&lS Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.14
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and 11/8/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.15% Amendment No. 15 effective November 18, 2013 toSN&C Generation 2 10-Q 10.26.15
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129266 amended, by and 2/6/2014
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
Amendment No. 16 effective April 17, 2014 to theNBY Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.16
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and 5/8/2014
10.26.161 between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company
10.26.171 Amendment No. 17 effective January 1, 2015 to tHiRS Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.17 5/7/2015
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company
10.27 Consulting Agreement effective August 29, 2012 lestwTeleNav, Inc. and 10-K 10.27
9/7/2012
Marc Aronson.
10.28# Summary of Nonemployee Director Compensation. 8-K 10.28 12/3/2012
10.29# Amended and Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock @ptial Grant Plan. S-8 4.2 10/29/2012
10.30# Employment Offer Letter dated April 8, 2014 fromldi®av, Inc. to Vincent 10-K 10.30 8/22/2014
Uttley
10.31# Vincent Uttley Employment Agreement dated April 2014 by and between 10-K 10.31 8/22/201¢
Telenav, Inc. and Vincent Uttley
10.32# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unither 2009 Equity 10-Q 10.32 2/5/201¢&
Incentive Plan
10.33# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unither Amended and 10-Q 10.33 2/5/201¢&
Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock Option and Geéart
10.34# Separation Agreement, dated November 18, 2014ndyatween Telenav, In 10-Q 10.34 2/5/201%
and Vincent Nakayama
21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant. Filed
herewith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking - Filed
Grant Thornton LLP herewith
23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking - Filed
Ernst & Young LLP herewith
24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature pagiis Form 10-K). Filed
herewith
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference ;
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit Date Filed
Number Description From Form Number
311 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 akClExecutive Officer. herewith
31.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCRinancial Officer. herewith
32.1~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCxecutive Officer.
32.2~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 deChinancial Officer.
101.INS* XBRL Instance Document Filed herewitt
101.SCH* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document Filed herewitt
101.CAL* XBRL Taxonomy Calculation Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.DEF* XBRL Taxonomy Definition Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.LAB* XBRL Taxonomy Label Linkbase Document Filed herewitt
101.PRE* XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Doenin Filed herewitt
# Management contracts or compensation plangangements in which directors or executive offiames eligible to participate.
+ Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punst@a request for confidential treatment filedhathe Securities and Exchange
Commission.
T Portions of the exhibit have been omitted punstman order granted by the Securities and Exgd&@ommission for confidential
treatment.
~ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Redida S-K and SEC Release No. 33-8238 and 34-47986) Rule: Management'’s
Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Repgrémd Certification of Disclosure in Exchange AetiBdic Reports, the
certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 3Be&teto are deemed to accompany this Form 10-K dhdat be deemed “filed” for
purposes of Section 18 of the Exchange Act. Sudifications will not be deemed to be incorporabsdreference into any filings
under the Securities Act or the Exchange Act, extethe extent that the registrant specificallyarporates it by reference.
* XBRL (Extensible Business Reporting Languagépimation is furnished and not filed or a part akgistration statement or

prospectus for purposes of Sections 11 or 12 oS#wirities Act, is deemed not filed for purposeSextion 18 of the Exchange
Act, and otherwise is not subject to liability undeese sections.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of section 13 or 1&f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the regigthas duly caused this report to be
signed on its behalf by the undersigned, theredatyp authorized.

TELENAV, INC.

Dated: August 24, 2015 By: s/ Dr. HP JN
Dr. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President and @ief
Executive Officer

POWER OF ATTORNEY

KNOW ALL PERSONS BY THESE PRESENTS, that each pemsbose sighature appears below constitutes anairgpr. HP Jin
and Michael Strambi, jointly and severally, asdrider true and lawful attorneys-in-fact and agentth full power of substitution and
resubstitution, for him or her and in his or hemea place and stead, in any and all capacitiesigtothis Form 10-K, and to file the same, with
all exhibits thereto, and other documents in cotiaerdherewith, with the Securities and Exchangen@uassion, granting unto said attorneys-
in-fact and agents full power and authority to dd perform each and every act and thing requisiteeoessary to be done in and about the
premises hereby ratifying and confirming all thaidsattorneys-in-fact and agents, or his or thelisitute or substitutes, may lawfully do or
cause to be done by virtue hereof.

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed éydhowing persons on behalf of t
registrant in the capacities and on the dates atelit

Name and Signature Title Date

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ah@&fC

/s/  Dr.HP JN Executive Officer August 24, 2015
Dr. HP Jin (Principal Executive Officer)
/s/ MICHAEL STRAMBI Chief Financial Officer and Treasurer August 24, 2015
Michael Strambi (Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)
/sl SAMUEL CHEN Director August 24, 2015

Samuel Chen

/s/ HON JANE (JASON) CHIU Director August 24, 2015
Hon Jane (Jason) Chiu

/s/  DOUGLAS MILLER Director August 24, 2015
Douglas Miller

/sl KEN XIE Director August 24, 2015
Ken Xie
/sl JOSEPH M. ZAELIT Director August 24, 2015

Joseph M. Zaelit
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors and Stockholders
Telenav, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balgineet of Telenav, Inc. (a Delaware corporatom) subsidiaries (the “Companyd3 o
June 30, 2015, and the related consolidated statsroéoperations, comprehensive loss, stockhdleéepsity, and cash flows for the year en
June 30, 2015. Our audit of the basic consolidéitexhcial statements included the financial stateinsehedule listed in the index appea
under Item 15(a)2. These financial statements @amhdial statement schedule are the responsihilitthe Companys management. C
responsibility is to express an opinion on thesarftial statements and financial statement schéxdisled on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statsdof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ilfq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on altasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disads in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statetaerferred to above present fairly, in all materégpects, the financial position of Teler
Inc. and subsidiaries as of June 30, 2015, andethdts of their operations and their cash flowstlie year ended June 30, 2015 in confor
with accounting principles generally accepted ia tnited States of America. Also in our opinione ttelated financial statement schec
when considered in relation to the basic consadidinancial statements taken as a whole, predairly, in all material respects, t
information set forth therein.

We also have audited, in accordance with the stasd# the Public Company Accounting Oversight Bo@/nited States), the Company’s
internal control over financial reporting as of @80, 2015, based on criteria established in ti& R@ernal Control-Integrated Framework
issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatidrike Treadway Commission (COSO), and our regated August 24, 2015 expressed
an unqualified opinion.

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
August 24, 2015
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Telemaw,

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balaheets of Telenav, Inc. as of June 30, 2014tendelated consolidated statement
operations, comprehensive income (loss), stockingléguity, and cash flows for each of the two yeartheperiod ended June 30, 2014.
audit also included the financial statement scheedisted in the Index at Item 15(a)2. These finahsitatements and schedule are

responsibility of the Company’management. Our responsibility is to expresspnian on these financial statements and schedased o
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the statslof the Public Company Accounting Oversight ifq@nited States). Those stand:
require that we plan and perform the audit to ebta@asonable assurance about whether the finaptaggments are free of mate
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on aldasis, evidence supporting the amounts and disids in the financial statements. An a
also includes assessing the accounting princied and significant estimates made by managenentelhas evaluating the overall finan
statement presentation. We believe that our auditiges a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the financial statements referredibove present fairly, in all material respedis, ¢onsolidated financial position of Teler
Inc. at June 30, 2014, and the consolidated resillits operations and its cash flows for eachhef two years in the period ended Jun¢
2014, in conformity with U.S. generally accepte@¢amting principles. Also, in our opinion, the teld financial statement schedule, w
considered in relation to the basic financial stegats taken as a whole, presents fairly in all meteespects the information set forth therein.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
August 22, 2014

except for Notes 5 and 13, as to which the date is
August 24, 2015
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TELENAYV, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands, except per share amounts)

June 30, June 30,
2015 2014
Assets
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 18,72. $ 14,53«
Short-term investments 101,19! 122,31!
Accounts receivable, net of allowances of $211%2@b at June 30, 2015 and 2014, respectively 36,49: 25,76:
Deferred income taxes, net 327 784
Restricted cash 4,87¢ 5,99t
Income taxes receivable 6,08( 6,93
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 4,28¢ 9,491
Total current assets 171,98. 185,81
Property and equipment, net 7,12¢ 8,81«
Deferred income taxes, net, non-current 443 55C
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 37,52¢ 40,73:
Other assets 6,84: 3,931
Total assets $ 223,92. % 239,84:
Liabilities and stockholders’ equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 83C $ 502
Accrued compensation 9,62¢ 12,87:
Accrued royalties 9,35¢ 3,671
Other accrued expenses 10,91¢ 12,34:
Deferred revenue 2,10¢ 2,381
Income taxes payable 724 804
Total current liabilities 33,56 32,57¢
Deferred rent, non-current 4,85¢ 7,12¢
Deferred revenue, long-term 4,71¢ 55
Other long-term liabilities 4,59t 7,671
Commitments and contingencies
Stockholders’ equity:
Preferred stock, $0.001 par value: 50,000 sharémared; no shares issued or outstanding — —
Common stock, $0.001 par value: 600,000 share®arné; 40,537 shares and 39,462 shares issued
and outstanding at June 30, 2015 and 2014, resphcti 41 40
Additional paid-in capital 140,40t 129,27¢
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) (1,540 57€
Retained earnings 37,27¢ 62,51
Total stockholders’ equity 176,18: 192,40!
Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity $ 223,92 $ 239,84:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Revenue:
Product
Services
Total revenue
Cost of revenue:
Product
Services
Total cost of revenue
Gross profit
Operating expenses:
Research and development
Sales and marketing
General and administrative
Restructuring costs
Total operating expenses
Operating income (loss)
Other income, net
Income (loss) from continuing operations beforevigion (benefit) for income taxes
Provision (benefit) for income taxes
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income (loss)

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Net income (loss)
Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Net income (loss)
Weighted average shares used in computing incamss)(per share:
Basic
Diluted

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,

2015 2014 2013
100,76¢ $ 72,747 $ 69,16:
59,47 77,56¢ 122,63t
160,23¢ 150,31: 191,80(
55,27( 36,77¢ 38,16+
23,51« 24,06¢ 30,94¢
78,78¢ 60,84 69,11
81,45¢ 89,47: 122,68
68,06( 60,57 60,34¢
26,97¢ 33,13¢ 30,43t
23,60¢ 26,17¢ 24,76¢
1,15C 4,41 1,671
119,79: 124,29¢ 117,22(
(38,33 (34,82) 5,467
2,261 1,28¢ 1,207
(36,069 (33,539 6,67
(13,00¢) (4,015) 1,09:
(23,069 (29,529) 5,581
— — 7,48¢
(23,069 $ (29,529 $ 13,06
(0.5¢) $ (0.7 $ 0.14
(0.5¢) $ (0.7 $ 0.32
(0.5¢) $ (0.7 $ 0.17
(056 $ (0.7 $ 0.31
39,99 38,79¢ 40,31(
39,99: 38,79¢ 41,91¢

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LO SS)

(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended

June 30,
2015 2014 2013
Net income (loss) $ (23,069 $ (29,529 $ 13,067
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax (1,699 51 13
Available for sale securities:
Unrealized gain (loss) on available-for-sale seigs; net of tax (15€) 284 74
Reclassification adjustments for loss on availdbtesale securities recognized, net of
tax (262) (132) (84)
Net increase (decrease) from available-for-salar#tézs, net of tax (41¢) 152 (20
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (2,11¢) 202 3
Comprehensive income (loss) $ (25,179 ¢ (29,32) $ 13,07(

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financa¢®ents.

F-6




Table of Contents

Common Stock Additional Other
Paid-in Comprehensive Retained Total Stockholders'
Shares Amount Capital Income (Loss) Earnings Equity
Balance at June 30, 2012 4135 $ 42 $ 11885 $ 37¢ 97,25 % 216,51t
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkmpt
and release of restricted stock units 1,117 1 2,74( — — 2,741
Issuance of restricted common stock in connectiitin w
acquisition 587 1 @ — — =
Repurchases of common stock (3,719 ) (11,84¢) — (14,460 (26,31()
Stock-based compensation expense — — 8,647 — — 8,647
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options — _ (202) — — (202)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax — — — 13 _ 13
Unrealized net loss on available-for-sale sectiret of
tax — _ — (10) — (10)
Net income — - — — 13,067 13,067
Balance at June 30, 2013 39,34 $ 4 $ 11819 $ 372 95,85¢ $ 214,46
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodk g 217 _ 89¢€ — — 89¢
Release of restricted stock units A4C _ (1,570 — — (1,570
Issuance of common stock in connection with actjarsi 732 1 4,60¢ — — 4,61(
Repurchases of common stock (1,269 6] (4,075 — (3,829 (7,899
Stock-based compensation expense _ _ 11,53¢ — — 11,53¢
Excess tax benefit from employee stock options — _ (310 _ _ (310)
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax — — — 51 _ 51
Unrealized net gain on available-for-sale secitieet of
tax — — — 152 — 152
Net loss — — — — (29,524 (29,524
Balance at June 30, 2014 39,46 $ a  $ 12927t $ 57€ 62,51: $ 192,40
Issuance of common stock upon exercise of stodkrmugp 88¢ 1 4,411 _ — 4,41
Release of restricted stock units 682 _ (3,109 — — (3,109
Repurchases of common stock (497) _ (1,60¢) _ (2,179 (3,780
Stock-based compensation expense — — 11,42¢ — — 11,42¢
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax — _ — (1,69¢) — (1,699
Unrealized net loss on available-for-sale secwitieet of
tax — — — (418 — (419)
Net loss — — — — (23,069) (23,06%)
Balance at June 30, 2015 40,537 $ 41 $ 140,40t $ (1,540 37,27¢  $ 176,18:

TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
(in thousands)

Accumulated

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAV, INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Operating activities
Net income (loss) $ (23,069 $ (29,529 $ 13,06°
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to reshcprovided by (used in) operatit
activities:
Depreciation and amortization 5,23¢ 6,75¢ 8,40¢
Accretion of premium, net on short-term investments 1,31¢ 3,50( 4,42¢
Stock-based compensation expense 11,42¢ 11,53¢ 8,641
Valuation allowance on deferred tax assets (77¢) 7,39¢ —
Bad debt expense 33 13z —
Write-off of long-term investments 1,30z 25C 33t
Write-off due to impairment of capitalized software — — 43¢
Loss on disposal of property and equipment 73 112 17z
Excess tax benefits from employee stock options — 31C 30t
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable (10,769 2,477 (2,559
Deferred income taxes 1,34z (4,09%) (1,807)
Restricted cash 1,115 (3,32%) (2,429
Income taxes receivable 852 — —
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 5,20z (5,24¢) 2,97¢
Other assets (2,16)) (649) (730)
Accounts payable 32¢ (1,33)) (1,227
Accrued compensation (3,24¢) 3,612 (261)
Accrued royalties 5,68 (6,167) 5,43¢
Accrued expenses and other liabilities (4,699 (2,64%) 10,15:
Income taxes payable (80) 39¢ (1,456
Deferred rent (1,219 (1,359 1,29t
Deferred revenue 4,392 (4,707 (2,290
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (7,696 (22,557 42,91
Investing activities
Purchases of property and equipment (1,209 (1,059 (2,24%)
Additions to capitalized software — — (94¢)
Purchases of short-term investments (113,149 (66,350 (124,70
Purchases of long-term investments (2,500 (600 (950
Proceeds from sales of long-term investments 37€ 79t —
Proceeds from sales and maturities of short-texmsiments 132,52¢ 106,58! 146,92.
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired — (19,245 (18,259
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 16,05: 20,13: (18%)
Financing activities
Proceeds from exercise of stock options 4,41 89¢ 2,79:
Repurchase of common stock (3,780 (7,899 (26,310
Tax withholdings related to net share settlemehtesiricted stock units (3,109 (1,570 (51)
Excess tax benefits from employee stock options — (310) (30%)
Net cash used in financing activities (2,477 (8,889 (23,879
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and casiatents (1,69¢) 51 13
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equisalent 4,18 (11,257 18,86

Cash and cash equivalents, at beginning of period 14,53¢ 25,781 6,92(




Cash and cash equivalents, at end of period $ 18,72: % 1453: $ 25,78:

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Income taxes paid (received), net $ (10,759 $ 1,00z $ 2,89:

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financaé®ents.
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TELENAYV, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

1. Summary of business and significant accounting palies
Description of business

Telenav, Inc., also referred to in this reportag,” “our” or “us,” was incorporated in Septemb@&99 in the State of Delaware. We are &
leading provider of location-based platform sergicEhese services consist of our automotive andlenavigation platform and our
advertising delivery platform. Our auto and molmigesigation platform allows Telenav to deliver enteahlocation-based services to auto
manufacturers, developers, and end users througdugadistribution channels, including wirelessrigas. Our advertising delivery platform
delivers highly targeted advertising services lagarg our location expertise. Through June 30, 2@d4perated in one business segment.
Commencing July 1, 2014, we operate in three besisegments: automotive, advertising and mobileggatien. Our fiscal year ends on
June 30 and in this report we refer to the fisearg ended June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013 as2BtAl, fiscal 2014 and fiscal 2013,
respectively.

Basis of presentation

The consolidated financial statements and acconipgmptes have been prepared in accordance withdérgrally accepted accounting
principles, or GAAP. The consolidated financiakstaents include the accounts of Telenav, Inc. amdunolly owned subsidiaries. All
significant intercompany balances and transacti@ve been eliminated in consolidation. Certainrmy&ar balances have been reclassified to
conform to the current year presentation.

Our consolidated financial statements also incth@dfinancial results of Shanghai Jitu Software €epment Ltd., or Jitu, located in
China. Based on our contractual arrangements Wilshareholders of Jitu, we have determined thatsla variable interest entity, or VIE, for
which we are the primary beneficiary and are regfito consolidate in accordance with Accountingi&sads Codification, or ASC, subtopic
810-10, or ASC 810-1@;onsolidation: Overall The results of Jitu did not have a material iniacour overall operating results for fiscal
2015 , fiscal 2014 or fiscal 2013 .

On April 16, 2013, we completed the sale of ouegrise business to FleetCor Technologies Oper&omgpany, LLC, or FleetCor.
The results of operations of our enterprise businghich were previously presented as a comporfemiraconsolidated operating results, have
been classified as discontinued operations in onsalidated statements of operations for fiscaB2@&l information in the following notes to
the consolidated financial statements includes ogsults from continuing operations for all perigntesented, unless otherwise noted. See
11 Sale of enterprise business.

Use of estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith GAAP requires us to make estimates andragsions that affect the amounts
reported in the consolidated financial statementsaccompanying notes. Significant estimates asdnagtions made by us include the
determination of revenue recognition and deferesgnue, the recoverability of accounts receivahke determination of acquired intangibles
and an assessment of goodwill impairment, thevigite of stock awards issued, the determinatianadme taxes and the recoverability of
deferred tax assets. Actual results could diffenfithose estimates.

Revenue recognition

We generate revenue primarily from software licanservice subscriptions and customized engineéeig We also generate revenue
from the delivery of search and display advertismgressions. We recognize revenue when persuasidence of an arrangement exists,
delivery of the product or service has occurred,fée is fixed or determinable, and collectabiktyeasonably assured. We evaluate whether i
is appropriate to recognize revenue based on ties@mount billed to our customers or the net ameaimed as revenue. When we are
primarily obligated in a transaction, have latitudestablishing prices, are responsible for finifént of the transaction, have credit risk, or
several but not all of these indicators, we reaexgnue on a gross basis. While none of the fagtdigidually are considered presumptive or
determinative, in reaching conclusions on grossug&net revenue recognition, we place the mosthweig the analysis of whether or not we
are the primary obligor in the arrangement. We repor automotive and advertising revenue on agjbasis.

We derive product revenue from the delivery of onsized software and royalties earned from theibigtion of this customized softwe
in certain automotive navigation applications. Waerally recognize customized software revenuegusia completed contract method of
contract accounting under which revenue is recaghigon delivery to, and acceptance by, the autdenotanufacturer of our on-board
navigation solutions. We generally recognize rgyedtvenue as the software is reproduced for irzdtail in vehicles, assuming all other
conditions for revenue recognition have been met.ré¢ognize
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TELENAYV, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contirad)

services revenue from our broughteonnected automotive navigation solutions mgntfaised on monthly subscriptions, which are sulifea
maximum annual fee. This revenue represented hess3% of overall automotive navigation solutioegenue. In January 2015 General
Motors Corporation, or GM, launched the new versibits OnStar RemoteLink® mobile application poeaiby our location-based services
platform. We earn a one-time royalty for each n@higle owner who downloads the RemoteLink@plication. We record the royalty earne
deferred revenue and recognize this service reveneiethe estimated service period.

We derive services revenue from the delivery ofdeand display advertising impressions. We recogrévenue when the related
advertising services are delivered based on thafgpterms of the advertising contract, which asenmonly based on the number of ad
impressions delivered, or clicks, drives or actibpsisers on mobile advertisements.

We also derive services revenue from subscriptiomEcess our mobile navigation services, whichgarerally provided through our
wireless carrier customers that offer our servtoabeir subscribers or through application sto@s: wireless carrier customers pay us based
on several different revenue models, includinga(i¢venue sharing arrangement that may includenarmam fee per end user, (2) a monthly
annual subscription fee per end user, or (3) basatsage. Our end users who subscribe to our ssrthicough application stores pay us a
monthly or annual subscription fee.

We recognize monthly fees related to our mobileigetion services in the month we provide the sewidVe defer amounts received or
billed in advance of the service being provided eswbgnize the deferred amounts when the montiigcgehas been provided. We recognize
revenue for fixed fees for any number of subscslveceiving our services as part of bundles morthlp straight-line basis over the term of
the agreement. Our agreements do not contain daights of refund once the service has been pexidVe also establish allowances for
estimated credits subsequently issued to end bgerar wireless carrier customers.

We recognize as services revenue the amount ogles# carrier customers report to us as we praddservices, which are net of any
revenue sharing or other fees earned and dedugtedriwireless carrier customers. We are not tivecfal provider when selling access to
mobile navigation services through our wirelessieacustomers as the subscribers directly contwéét our wireless carrier customers. In
addition, we may earn a fixed fee or fixed percgetaf fees charged by our wireless carrier custerard our wireless carrier customers have
the sole ability to set the price charged to tealyscribers for our service. Our wireless carnisst@mers have direct responsibility for billing
and collecting those fees from their subscribetsvaa and our wireless carrier customers may ofibseribers a free trial for our service. For
end users who purchase our mobile navigation ses\tlrough application stores, we utilize the ayapion store billing process. We provide
tiered pricing to certain of our wireless carriestomers based on the number of paying end useargiiren month, which may result in a
discounted fee per end user depending on the nuofileerd users. Revenue recognized is based ongbeutted fees earned for a given
period.

In certain instances, due to the nature and tirafngonthly revenue and reporting from our customers may be required to make
estimates of the amount of revenue to recogniza fi@ustomer for the current period. Estimatesdeenue include our consideration of
certain factors and information, including subseritiata, historical subscription and revenue r@mpttends, end user subscription data from
our internal systems, and data from comparableildigton channels of our other customers. We reemydifferences between estimated
revenue and actual revenue in the reporting pevioeh we determine the actual amounts. To dateabatoounts have not differed materially
from our estimates.

Cost of revenue

Our cost of revenue consists primarily of the afghird party royalty based data, such as mamtpaf interest, or POI, traffic, gas pr
and weather data, and voice recognition technalbgt/we use in providing our personalized navigaservices. Our cost of revenue also
includes the cost of third party exchange ad inmgnas well as expenses associated with third freo$ying services, data center operations,
customer support, the amortization of capitalizeftigare, recognition of deferred development costspecific projects, stock-based
compensation and amortization of developed teclyyolo

In connection with our usage of licensed third padntent, our contracts with certain licensordude minimum guaranteed royalty
payments, which are payable regardless of the alémolume of revenue derived from the number gfrgrend users. These contracts con
obligations for the licensor to provide ongoingvsegs and, accordingly, we record any minimum gogred royalty payments as an asset v
paid and amortize the amount to cost of revenue thveeapplicable period. Any additional royaltiagechased on actual usage are expensed
monthly as incurred.
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Foreign currency

The functional currency of our foreign subsidiaii®the local currency. Adjustments resulting frisemslating foreign functional
currency financial statements into U.S. dollarsraorded as part of a separate component of cdvapséve income in stockholders’ equity.
Foreign currency transaction gains and lossesnaheded in our net income for each year. All asaatsliabilities denominated in a foreign
currency are translated into U.S. dollars at theharge rate on the balance sheet date. Revenwexpedses are translated at the average
monthly exchange rates during the year. Equitysaations are translated using historical exchaatgsr Foreign currency transaction gains
(losses) were $1.6 million , $(203,000) and $(26@)0n fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectivEhe foreign currency transaction gains of
$1.6 million in fiscal 2015 were primarily drivery Imark-to-market adjustment of intercompany balance

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss), ofetax

The components of accumulated other comprehensoarie (loss), net of related taxes, were as follgavthousands):

Unrealized
Gains (Losses) on
Foreign
Currency Available-
Translation for-Sale
Adjustments Securities Total
Balance, net of tax as of June 30, 2013 $ 27C $ 10 S 37%
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifins, net of tax 51 284 33¢
Amount reclassified from accumulated other compneh& income (loss), net of tax — (132) (132)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax 51 15z 20¢
Balance, net of tax as of June 30, 2014 $ 321 $ PIST 57€
Other comprehensive income (loss) before reclassifins, net of tax (1,699 (15€) (1,859
Amount reclassified from accumulated other compneh& income (loss), net of tax — (262) (262)
Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax (1,69¢) (41¢) (2,116
Balance, net of tax as of June 30, 2015 $ (1377 $ (163) $ (1,540

The amount reclassified from accumulated other ceimmsive income (loss), net of tax, was determirsiag the specific identification
method and the amount was included in other incorag for fiscal 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The amount of income tax benefit allocated to eamhponent of accumulated other comprehensive ingtoss) was not material for
fiscal 2015 and 2014.

Cash equivalents and short-term investments

Cash equivalents consist of highly liquid fixedénte investments with original maturities of threenths or less at the time of purchase
including money market funds. Short-term investraensist of readily marketable securities witkemaining maturity of more than three
months from time of purchase. We classify all of cash equivalents and short-term investments zsl&dble-for-sale,” as these investments
are free of trading restrictions. We may or mayhat securities with stated maturities greatentha months until maturity. After
consideration of our risk versus reward objectiasswell as our liquidity requirements, we may Hedlse securities prior to their stated
maturities. As we view these securities as avalabisupport current operations, we classify sdegrwith maturities beyond 12 months as
current assets under the caption shemt investments in the accompanying consolidagdarze sheets. These marketable securities aied
at fair value, with the unrealized gains and loseesof tax, reported as accumulated other congm®ie income and included as a separate
component of stockholders’ equity. Gains and lossesecognized when realized. When we have detedhthat an other-than-temporary
decline in fair value has occurred, the amounhefdecline that is related to a credit loss isgaeced in earnings. Gains and losses are
determined using the specific identification methOdr net realized gains were $236,000 , $164,0@0$452,000 in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and
2013, respectively.
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TELENAYV, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contirad)

Concentrations of risk and significant customers

Financial instruments that subject us to signifiamcentrations of credit risk primarily consistcash, cash equivalents, short-term
investments and accounts receivable. We maintaigash, cash equivalents and short-term investnvattisvell-capitalized financial
institutions. Cash equivalents consist primarilymafney-market accounts. Our primary customers @edegs carriers, automobile
manufacturers and original equipment manufactuer®EMs, and we do not require collateral for agite receivable. To manage the credit
risk associated with accounts receivable, we etaliee creditworthiness of our customers. We evaloar accounts receivable on an ongoing
basis to determine those amounts not collectibbeddte, we are not aware of circumstances thatimpgir a specific customer’s ability to
meet its financial obligations to us, other thamstihcustomers for which an allowance for doubtfgbants has been established.

Revenue related to products and services providedigh Ford Motor Company, or Ford, comprised 614%% and 36% of revenue for
fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, respectively. Red#@sdue from Ford were 58% and 47% of total actorateivable at June 30, 2015 and
2014 , respectively. Revenue related to servicegiged through AT&T Mobility LLC., or AT&T, compried 15% , 24% and 28% of revenue
for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, respectively.dRegbles due from AT&T were 14% and 19% of total@amts receivable at June 30, 2@l
2014 , respectively. Revenue related to servicegiged through Sprint Nextel Corporation, or Sproumprised less than 10% of revenue for
fiscal 2015 and 2014 , and 16% of revenue for fi2643. No other customer represented 10% of our revend€®% of our receivables for a
period presented.

Our licensed map, POI and traffic data have beewiged principally through TomTom North Americaclnor TomTom, and HERE
North America, LLC, a Nokia company, or HERE, iad&l2015 , 2014 and 2013 . To date, we are not awacg@fmstances that may impair
either party’s intent or ability to continue proirig such services to us.

Restricted cash

As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , we had restrictst 06$4.9 million and $6.0 million, respectivebn our consolidated balance sheets.
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , restricted cashrigpcised primarily of an overpayment from a custothat will either be refunded or be
applied to future amounts owed to us.

Fair value of financial instruments
The estimated fair market value of financial instants, including cash, accounts receivable andusmts@ayable, approximates the
carrying values of those instruments due to thedatively short maturities.

We measure certain other financial instrumentsiatflue on a recurring basis. We have establishi@iérarchy, which consists of three
levels, for disclosure of the inputs used to deteenthe fair value of our financial instruments.

Level 1 valuations are based on quoted pricestimeamarkets for identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 valuations are based on inputs that arerghble, either directly or indirectly, other thgmoted prices included within Level 1.
Such inputs used in determining fair value for Ue¥galuations include quoted prices in active netskor similar assets or liabilities, quoted
prices for identical or similar assets or liabdgiin markets that are not active, or other inthasare observable or can be corroborated by
observable market data for substantially the friirt of the assets or liabilities.

Level 3 valuations are based on information thamigbservable and significant to the overall failue measurement.
As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , we did not havelawgl 3 financial instruments.

Property and equipment

Property and equipment are stated at cost, lessradated depreciation and amortization. Depreaiaacomputed using the straighte
method over the estimated useful lives of the rethpmassets. Computers, software, automobilesegngment have useful lives of three year:
and fixtures and furniture have useful lives okfigears. Leasehold improvements are amortized tisengtraight-line method over the shorter
of the estimated useful lives of the assets oteha of the related lease.

Long-term investments

Our long-term investments consist of privately-hielestments, and are included in other assetaricansolidated balance sheets. As o
June 30, 2015, the carrying value of our totalaigly-held investments was $2.5 million . Of this

F-12




Table of Contents

TELENAYV, INC.
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements—(Contirad)

amount, a total of $1.8 million are accounted ®rast-basis investments, as we own less than 288¢ eoting securities and do not have the
ability to exercise significant influence over ogimg and financial policies of the entities. Ouvestments are in entities that are not publicly
traded and, therefore, no established market ®s#turities exists. Our cost-method investmerteamied at historical cost in our
consolidated balance sheets and measured at fa@ @a a nonrecurring basis when indicators of inmpant exist. If we believe that the
carrying value of the cost basis investments &xitess of estimated fair value, our policy is word an impairment charge to adjust the
carrying value to estimated fair value, when thpammment is deemed other-than-temporary. We relyutanaluate the carrying value of these
cost-method investments for impairment. We recealized gains or losses on the sale or impairmiecdst method investments in other
income, net.

In addition to these cost-basis investments, inl&W15, we entered into an agreement to spin @ifoaluct line developed by our
Shanghai, China team, including certain assetdemithology as well as the transfer of seven empgl®yand we agreed to invest $1.0 million
the form of a convertible note. We are the prinmiarestor; however, we do not have significant iafiae over the operations of the business.
Accordingly, we record the monthly net change ieraping results against the carrying value of threvertible note recorded in long-term
investments on our consolidated balance sheetalR26d4.5 includes three months of operating regaitthe investee entity. The entity's succ
is contingent upon its ability to generate reveane raise additional capital. Based upon the esiglge of this company, its lack of success to
date in each of these endeavors, and China's renéatorable macroeconomic conditions making th&rg of additional capital difficult, we
recorded an impairment charge of $820,000 to vddten the carrying value of the convertible note¢eo as of June 30, 2015.

In June 2015, we also entered into an agreemesptinooff a product line developed by our Xian, Ghteam, including certain assets and
technology as well as the transfer of 12 employaed,we agreed to invest $800,000 in the form adravertible note. We are the primary
investor; however, we do not have significant ieflae over the operations of the business. Accadiag record the monthly net change in
operating results against the carrying value ofcthrevertible note recorded in long-term investmem®ur consolidated balance sheet. Fiscal
2015 includes one month of operating results ferittvestee entity. The entity's success is contingpon its ability to generate revenue and
raise additional capital. As of June 30, 2015,inuestment balance was $744,000 .

Including the impairment in the Shanghai, Chinangdf above, we recorded impairment charges of $illlon , $250,000 and $335,000
on certain non-marketable equity investments icafi2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

Also included in other income, net in fiscal 20%4i $795,000 gain from the sale in December 2048 investment in a privately-held
company.

Long-lived assets

We evaluate our long-lived assets, including inillegassets, for impairment whenever events or ghsin circumstances indicate the
carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverRaeoverability of these assets is measured bympadson of the carrying amounts to the
future undiscounted cash flows the assets are teghéw generate. If long-lived assets are consibigrde impaired, the impairment to be
recognized equals the amount by which the carryaige of the asset exceeds its fair value.

Goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the aggregathpse price paid over the fair value of the ne¢tasscquired. Goodwill is not
amortized and is tested for impairment at leastialtiyior whenever events or changes in circumstirgicate that the carrying value may not
be recoverable. These tests are based on our igesagment and reporting unit structure. We fistess qualitative factors to determine
whether it is necessary to perform the two-stemtjtzdive goodwill impairment test. We are not reqd to calculate the fair value of our
reporting units unless we determine, based on btafise assessment, that it is more-likely-thart-iat the fair value is less than our carrying
amount. If we determine it is more likely than tmat the fair value of the reporting unit is lelsan its carrying value, we perform a two-step
guantitative goodwill impairment test. The firs¢tof the impairment test involves comparing thievialue of the reporting unit to its net book
value, including goodwill. If the net book valuecexds its fair value, then we would perform theoadcstep of the goodwill impairment test to
determine the amount of the impairment loss, if. damyassessing the fair value of our reportingsinite make assumptions regarding our
estimated future cash flows, long-term growth ratiesing over which the cash flows will occur amanongst other factors, the weighted
average cost of capital. If our estimates or relagsumptions change in the future, or if our wekbvalue were to exceed our market
capitalization, we may be required to record impaint loss related to our goodwill. We have not geiped any impairment of goodwill in the
three year period ended June 30, 2015 . As of 30n2015 , we had goodwill of $31.3 million.
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Leases

We lease our office facilities under operating éeagreements. Office facilities subject to an ojiegdease and the related lease
payments are not recorded on our consolidated balsimeet. The terms of certain lease agreementslprior rental payments on a graduated
basis; however, we recognize rent expense on iglstiline basis over the lease period in accordavitie authoritative accounting guidance.
Any lease incentives or contracted sublease incam@eecognized as reductions of rental expensestmaight-line basis over the term of the
lease. The lease term begins on the date we belegaiéy obligated for the rent payments or whentalkee possession of the office space,
whichever is earlier. As of June 30, 2015 and 204¢ had a total of $5.5 million and $7.5 milliorespectively, in deferred rent related to
tenant improvement lease incentives and graduatgdpayments recorded as liabilities on our balahests. In addition, as of June 30, 2015
and 2014, we had a total of $2.6 million and $2ilfion , respectively, in accrued facility exit dsgelating to our operating lease
arrangements. See Note 12 for a discussion ofesfiructuring actions.

Stock-based compensation

We account for stock-based employee compensatianggments under the fair value recognition methdich requires us to measure
the stock-based compensation costs of share-basggensation arrangements based on the grant-ditalize, and recognize the costs in the
financial statements over the employees’ requssteice period. We recognize compensation expendéd fair value of these awards with
time-based vesting on a straight-line basis overtihployee’s requisite service period of each e§¢éhawards, net of estimated forfeitures.

Equity instruments issued to nonemployees are decoat their fair value on the measurement dateaemdubject to periodic adjustment
as the underlying equity instruments vest.

Income taxes

We utilize the liability method of accounting farciome taxes, whereby deferred tax asset or liglaititount balances are calculated a
balance sheet date using current tax laws and iratffect for the year in which the differences axpected to affect taxable income. Valua
allowances are provided when necessary to reddeeree tax assets to the amount that will moreyikiean not be realized.

Research and software development costs

We expense research and development costs asddcMyvie account for the costs of computer softwaralavelop for internal use by
capitalizing qualifying costs, which are incurragridg the application development stage, and amiogithose costs over the application’s
estimated useful life, which generally ranges frtrto 24 months depending on the type of applioatde capitalized none , none and
$948,000 of software development costs during fi2g0a5 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively. Amortizagapense related to these costs, which
has been recorded in cost of revenue, totaled $97,81.0 million and $2.1 million for fiscal 2012014 and 2013 , respectively. In addition,
we wrote off none , none , and $112,000 of capgialisoftware development costs in fiscal 2015 4201d 2013 , respectively, due to
impairment. As of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , unazextcapitalized software development costs, whietevincluded in other assets, warne
and $97,000 , respectively.

We also account for the costs of computer softwmagelevelop for customers requiring significant nfigdtion or customization by
deferring qualifying costs under the completed c@sitmethod. All such development costs incurreddaferred until the related revenue is
recognized. We deferred $802,000 , $943,000 arirfillion of software development costs during &is2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respectively.
Development costs expensed to cost of revenuestb$dl.2 million , $922,000 and $4.9 million in B6@015 , 2014 and 201 3espectively. A
of June 30, 2015 and 2014 , deferred capitalizéitvace development costs, which were included pripan prepaid expenses and other
current assets, were $44,000 and $500,000 , resggct

Advertising expense

Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Adsingiexpense was $1.1 million , $2.0 million andl$&illion in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and
2013, respectively.

Recent accounting pronouncements
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In June 2013, the Financial Accounting Standardasr&cor FASB, ratified Emerging Issues Task Foote& I TF, Issue 13-C,
“Presentation of an Unrecognized Tax Benefit WhéieaOperating Loss Carryforward, a Similar Tax $,0@ a Tax Credit Carryforward
Exists” which concludes an unrecognized tax bemséfituld be presented as a reduction of a defesredsset when settlement in this manner i
available under the tax law. We adopted this anmemd in the first quarter of fiscal 2015, and thlegtion did not have a material effect on
consolidated financial statements.

In May 2014, the FASB issued guidance related vemae from contracts with customers, which sup@&sée revenue recognition
requirements in ASC 60Revenue Recognitiarinder this guidance, revenue is recognized whemjsed goods or services are transferred t
customers in an amount that reflects the consider#tat is expected to be received for those gaod®rvices. The new guidance also reqt
additional disclosure about the nature, amouningnand uncertainty of revenue and cash flowsmgifiom customer contracts, including
significant judgments and changes in judgmentsaaseéts recognized from costs incurred to obtafalfit a contract. The updated standard
will replace most existing revenue recognition guide under GAAP when it becomes effective and periné use of either the full
retrospective or cumulative effect transition metharly adoption is not permitted. The updatedadad will be effective for us in the first
quarter of our fiscal year ending June 30, 2019.HAk&= not yet selected a transition method andrevewarently evaluating the effect that the
updated standard will have on our consolidatedhfifed statements and related disclosures.

In February 2015, the FASB, issued new guidanageadlto consolidations. The new standard amendsuidelines for determining
whether certain legal entities should be consadidaind reduces the number of consolidation modiaksnew standard is effective for fiscal
years, and interim periods within those fiscal geaeginning after December 15, 2015. Early adogigermitted. We are evaluating |
impact, if any, of adopting this new accountingdguice on our financial statements.

2. Netincome (loss) per shai

Basic net income (loss) per share is calculatediliging net income (loss) by the weighted averagmber of common shares
outstanding for the period. Diluted net income g)aser share is computed by dividing net incomss{ldy the weighted average number of
common shares outstanding for the period, inclugioigntial dilutive common shares assuming thetidéueffect of outstanding stock options,
restricted stock, and restricted stock units usiiregtreasury-stock method.

F-15




Table of Contents

The following table presents the calculation ofibasid diluted net income (loss) per share (in samals, except per share amounts):

Income (loss) from continuing operations, net af ta
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax
Net income (loss)

Shares used in computing income (loss) per share:
Basic:
Weighted average shares used in computing basicnedloss) per share
Diluted:
Weighted average shares used in computing basicniegloss) per share
Add weighted average effect of dilutive securities:
Stock options
Restricted common stock and restricted stock units

Weighted average shares used in computing dilumeahie (loss) per

share

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income (loss) from continuing operations
Income from discontinued operations
Net income (loss)

The following outstanding shares subject to optioestricted common stock and restricted stocksumére excluded from the

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
$ (2306) $ (29529 $ 5,581
— — 7,48¢
$ (2306) $ (29529 $ 13,06
39,99: 38,79¢ 40,31(
39,99: 38,79¢ 40,31(
— — 1,517
— — 92
39,99: 38,79¢ 41,91¢
$ (056 $ (0.76 $ 0.1<
— — 0.1€
$ (05§ $ (0.76 $ 0.3:
$ (05§ $ (0.76 $ 0.1¢
— — 0.1€
$ (05§ $ (0.76 $ 0.31

computation of diluted net income (loss) per comrabare for the periods presented because incldlderg would have had an antidilutive

effect (in thousands):

Stock options
Restricted common stock and restricted stock units
Total
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3. Cash, cash equivalents and shotierm investments

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmentsisted of the following as of June 30, 2015 lfiousands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash $ 10,80¢ $ — 3 — 9 10,80¢
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds 7,91 — — 7,91¢
Total cash equivalents 7,91 — — 7,91¢
Total cash and cash equivalents 18,72: — — 18,72:
Short-term securities:
Asset-backed securities 16,971 9 (©)] 16,98:
Municipal securities 10,01¢ 8 (9 10,017
Commercial paper 1,99¢ 2 — 1,99¢
Agency bonds 7,642 6 2 7,64¢
Corporate bonds 64,58’ 39 (75) 64,55
Total short-term investments 101,22( 64 (89 101,19!
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 119,94 $ 64 $ 89 ¢ 119,91¢

Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investmentsisted of the following as of June 30, 2014 lfioutsands):

Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated
Cost Gains Losses Fair Value
Cash $ 12,91 $ — $ — % 12,91:
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds 622 — — 622
Commercial paper 1,00(¢ 1,00(¢
Total cash equivalents 1,622 — — 1,622
Total cash and cash equivalents 14,53¢ — — 14,53¢
Short-term investments:
Municipal securities 96,52: 33C 4) 96,84¢
Commercial paper 997 2 — 99¢
Corporate bonds 24,40: 68 2 24,46¢
Total short-term investments 121,92: 40C (6) 122,31!
Cash, cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 136,45! $ 40C $ 6) $ 136,84¢

The following table summarizes the cost and estihé&ir value of short-term fixed income securitésssified as shoterm investment
based on stated maturities as of June 30, 201bdirsands):

Amortized Estimated

Cost Fair Value
Due within one year $ 4253. $ 42,52¢
Due between one and two years 41,18¢ 41,17
Due after two years 17,50« 17,50(
Total $ 101,22 $ 101,19

Declines in fair value judged to be other-than-terapy on securities available for sale are includge@ component of other income, net.
In order to determine whether a decline in valuetier-than-temporary, we evaluate, among othéoffsicthe duration and extent to which the
fair value has been less than the carrying valaeoam intent and ability to retain the investmentd period of time sufficient to allow for any
anticipated recovery in fair market value. As ofid80, 2015 and 2014 , we did not consider anypfrovestments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired.
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4. Fair value of financial instruments
We measure certain financial instruments at fawe/@n a recurring basis. We have establishedrarietey, which consists of three levt
for disclosure of the inputs used to determineféiirevalue of our financial instruments.

All of our cash equivalents and short-term investtaare classified within Level 1 or Level 2. Tlar fvalues of these financial
instruments were determined using the followinguispat June 30, 2015 (in thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2015 Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds $ 7,91t % 7,918 % — $ =
Total cash equivalents 7,91t 7,91 — —
Short-term investments:
Asset-backed securities 16,98: — 16,98: —
Municipal securities 10,017 — 10,017 —
Commercial paper 1,99¢ — 1,99¢ —
Agency bonds 7,64¢ — 7,64¢ —
Corporate bonds 64,55 — 64,55 —
Total short-term investments 101,19! — 101,19! —
Cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 109,11( $ 791 % 101,19¢ $ —

The fair values of our financial instruments weeteimined using the following inputs at June 3d,£2(0n thousands):

Fair Value Measurements at June 30, 2014 Using
Quoted Prices

in Active Significant
Markets for Other Significant
Identical Observable Unobservable
Assets Inputs Inputs
Total (Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
Description
Cash equivalents:
Money market mutual funds $ 62z $ 62z $ — 3 =
Commercial paper 1,00¢ — 1,00¢ —
Total cash equivalents 1,62 622 1,00( —
Short-term investments:
Municipal securities 96,84¢ — 96,84¢ —
Commercial paper 99¢ — 99¢ —
Corporate bonds 24,46¢ — 24,46¢ —
Total short-term investments 122,31! — 122,31! —
Cash equivalents and short-term investments $ 123,93° $ 62z $ 123,31! $ =

Accretion of premium, net of discounts, on shortriégnvestments totaled $1.3 million and $3.5 miilio fiscal 2015 and 2014 ,
respectively.

Where applicable, we use quoted prices in activekets for identical assets to determine fair valbert-term investments. If quoted
prices in active markets for identical assets ateamailable to determine fair value, we use quatéces for similar assets and liabilities or
inputs that are observable either directly or iedlity. If quoted prices for identical or similarsass are not available, we use third-party
valuations utilizing underlying assets assumptions.
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There were no transfers between Level 1 and Lefiebacial instruments in the fiscal 2015 and 20tdspectively.
We did not have any financial liabilities measuatdair value on a recurring basis as of June 8052r 2014 .

5. Balance sheet information
Property and equipment, net

Property and equipment consist of the followingtfiausands):

June 30,
2015 2014

Computers and equipment $ 14,16¢ $ 16,77:
Computer software 2,39 2,11¢
Furniture and fixtures 2,45¢ 2,51(
Automobiles 48¢ 56€
Leasehold improvements 8,24¢ 8,28¢

27,75 30,25¢
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization (20,625 (21,447
Property and equipment, net $ 7,12¢  $ 8,81

Depreciation and amortization expense relatedapenty and equipment was $2.8 million , $4.0 millemd $5.6 million for fiscal 2015
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Goodwill and intangible assets, net

Intangible assets consist of the following (in thands):

June 30,
2015 2014
Acquired developed technology $ 13,87 $ 13,90:
Less accumulated amortization (7,675 (4,499
Intangible assets, net $ 6,20 $ 9,40t

Acquired developed technology is amortized on aigitt-line basis over the expected useful life. Atiaation expense related to
intangibles was $3.2 million , $2.6 million and &illion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , respesy.

As of June 30, 2015 , amortization expense fonigitale assets by fiscal year is as follows: $1.Bioni in fiscal 2016, $1.0 million in
fiscal 2017, $1.0 million in fiscal 2018, $1.0 ol in fiscal 2019, $1.0 million in fiscal 2020 a#a.7 million thereafter.

Goodwill by reportable segment and activity focfis2015 and 2014 was as follows (in thousands):

June 30, 2013 Acquisitions June 30, 2014 Acquisitions June 30, 2015
Automotive $ — % 14,32( $ 14,32( $ — 3 14,32(
Advertising 14,34 — 14,34 — 14,34
Mobile Navigation 78 2,58 2,66¢ — 2,66
Goodwill $ 14,42.  $ 16,907 $ 31,326 % — % 31,32¢

Goodwill impairment

Commencing July 1, 2014, we began to report regulisree business segments. As of July 1, 201ddgdl and intangible assets were
allocated to the new reporting unit structure basedpecific identification method, and any resldua
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balances were allocated based on relative fairegahi the related reporting units. We also testesigill for impairment as of July 1, 2014 ¢
did not recognize any impairment.

We tested goodwill for impairment on April 1, 20a6the reporting unit level using a combinatioraafiscounted cash flow analysis and
market multiples based upon historical and propkéiteancial information. The fair value of the amtotive and advertising reporting units was
estimated using the discounted cash flow approBod.estimated fair value of our mobile navigatieparting unit was determined using a
combined discounted cash flow and market multiplereach with equal weighting given to the two agjoftes. The market multiple approach
utilized revenue multiples from guideline publicngpanies operating in similar industries. The reemultiples were applied to the projected
financial information of the mobile navigation repog unit to determine its fair value. We appligar best judgment when assessing the
reasonableness of the financial projections useltermine the fair value of each reporting unés&d on the results of our annual goodwiill
impairment test as of April 1, 2015, the estimdtgdvalue of our mobile navigation business exeekits carrying value by 22% .

Other accrued expenses

Other accrued expenses consist of the followingh@usands):

June 30,
2015 2014
Overpayments from customers $ 497¢ $ 6,50¢
Other 5,94 5,83t
Other accrued expenses $ 10,91¢ $ 12,34:

The overpayment from customers will either be rdahor be applied to future amounts owed to us.

6. Commitments and contingencies

Our primary facilities located in Sunnyvale and vaulCity, California, Shanghai and Xi'an, Chinada®luj, Romania, as well as certain
other facilities in various locations in the UnitBthtes, Germany and Brazil, are leased under noatable operating lease arrangements. ,
June 30, 2015, future minimum operating lease @aysy net of sublease income, by fiscal year werfellows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year:

2016 $ 6,50¢
2017 4,66
2018 4,91¢
2019 5,41(
2020 2,26t
Total minimum lease payments $ 23,76«

As of June 30, 2015 , the total minimum subleaserime to be received in the next three years wadséBlion , which is comprised of
$1.4 million to be received in fiscal 2016 , $1.4lion to be received in fiscal 2017 and $659,00Mé received in fiscal 2018 .

Rent expense was $3.8 million , $4.1 million andB$aillion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , redpey. Facility exit costs included in
restructuring costs in fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2@&8e $1.2 million , $2.0 million and $124,000 ,pestively.

Purchase obligations

As of June 30, 2015, in addition to our leasegatlons, we had an aggregate of $2.1 million aifeiminimum noncancelable financial
commitments primarily related to license fees duedrtain of our third party content providers otrex next two fiscal years. The aggregate of
$2.1 million of future minimum commitments is congad of $1.8 million due in fiscal 2016 and $27D@We in fiscal 2017 . The above
commitment amounts exclude amounts already recardete consolidated balance sheet.
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Contingencies

From time to time, we may become involved in lggaiceedings, claims and litigation arising in tihdimary course of business. When
we believe a loss or a cost of indemnificationrisbable and can be reasonably estimated, we attwestimated loss or cost of
indemnification in our consolidated financial staents. Where the outcome of these matters is rietrdmable, we do not make a provision in
our financial statements until the loss or coghdemnification, if any, is probable and can besogbly estimated or the outcome becomes
known. We expense legal fees related to these raattethey are incurred.

On December 31, 2009, Vehicle IP, LLC, or Vehidte filed a patent infringement lawsuit againstruthie U.S. District Court for the
District of Delaware, seeking monetary damages &l expenses and other relief. Verizon Wirel@s¥grizon, was named as a defendan
in the Vehicle IP litigation based on the VZ Navmaproduct and has demanded that we indemnifydafehnd Verizon against Vehicle IP. At
this time, we have not agreed to defend or indeyrwidrizon. AT&T was also named as a co-defendattiénVehicle IP litigation based on the
AT&T Navigator and Telenav Track products. AT&T hHasdered the defense of the litigation to us aadive defending the case on behalf of
AT&T. After the district court issued its claim cstnuction ruling the parties agreed to focus otyearmmary judgment motions, the
defendants filed motions for summary judgment afinfsingement. On April 10, 2013 the district cogranted AT&T and our motion for
summary judgment of noninfringement. Plaintiff apleel the district court's claim construction anchgwary judgment rulings to the U.S. Cc
of Appeals for the Federal Circuit. On November2@14, the U.S. Court of Appeals for the Federat @i reversed the district court's claim
construction and overturned the district courtangiof summary judgment of noninfringement. Theedass been sent back to the U.S. District
Court for the District of Delaware and trial is remtly scheduled for February 2017. Due to the tagdies related to litigation, we are unable
to evaluate the likelihood of either a favorablainfavorable outcome. We believe that it is reabbnpossible that we will incur a loss;
however, we cannot currently estimate a range piassible losses we may experience in connectitinthis case. Accordingly, we are
unable at this time to estimate the effects of ligsuit on our financial condition, results of ogt#ons, or cash flows.

On April 30, 2010, Traffic Information, LLC, or Tific Information, filed a patent infringement lawsagainst us in the U.S. District
Court for the Eastern District of Texas, seekingetary damages, fees and expenses, and other Télepatent at issue was subject to
reexamination by the U.S. Patent and Trademarlc®fir PTO, and the reexamined claims were foundithvPlaintiff appealed this finding
and on May 30, 2013, the Patent Trial and AppearBoor PTAB, confirmed the invalidity of theseiota. Plaintiff filed a request for
reconsideration of this decision with the PTAB, elhivas denied on January 13, 2014. Traffic Inforomefiled an appeal with the U.S.
Appeals Court for the Federal Circuit, and on Jan@f, 2015, the court affirmed the PTO's findifgnvalidity. On April 28, 2015, Traffic
Information filed a dismissal of all claims against On May 6, 2015, the District Court entereddisenissal.

On February 6, 2015, Location Services IP, LLCdfiliecomplaint against AT&T, Inc. and Telenav, limcthe U.S. District Court for the
Eastern District of Texas, alleging that the AT&&Wgator, Telenav GPS Plus, and Telenav Scout Magblications infringe 4 U.S. patents.
On April 16, 2015, Location Services IP LLC disngidsall claims against AT&T, Inc. and Telenav, land filed a new complaint against
AT&T Mobility, AT&T Services, Inc. and Telenav, Inn the same court, alleging that the AT&T NavarafTelenav GPS Plus, Telenav GPS
Navigator, and Telenav Scout Mobile applicationsval§ as AT&T Store Locator and the myAT&T Mobilepplication infringe the samrr4
U.S. patents. The complaint seeks unspecified nraoneamages, fees and expenses and injunctivé ®li&T has requested that we defend
and indemnify them in this matter as it relateth® AT&T Navigator product and we have agreed tsaoDue to the preliminary status of the
lawsuit and uncertainties related to litigation, ave unable to evaluate the likelihood of eithéerable or unfavorable outcome. We believe
that it is reasonably possible that we will incloss; however, we cannot currently estimate agarigny possible losses we may experience
in connection with this case. Accordingly, we anabile at this time to estimate the effects of tisiplaint on our financial condition, result:
operations or cash flows.

In addition, we have received, and expect to comtito receive, demands for indemnification from customers, which demands can be
very expensive to settle or defend, and we havedpast offered to contribute to settlement am®antl incurred legal fees in connection witf
certain of these indemnity demands. A number adgtiedemnity demands, including demands relatingetading litigation, remain
outstanding and unresolved as of the date of tislFA.0-K. Furthermore, in response to these demaedsay be required to assume control
of and bear all costs associated with the defehearacustomers in compliance with our contract@hmitments. At this time, we are not a
party to the following cases; however our custonhenge requested that we indemnify them in conneatiibh such cases:

In 2008, Alltel, AT&T, Sprint and T-Mobile USA, of-Mobile, each demanded that we indemnify and difem against patent
infringement lawsuits brought by patent holding pamies EMSAT Advanced Geo-Location Technology LLC
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and Location Based Services LLC (collectively, EM3An the U.S. District Court for the Northern Dist of Ohio. In March 2011, EMSAT
and AT&T settled their claims. The PTO reexamingd of the patents in suit, confirming the validdf/only two of the asserted claims from
those patents. All patent claims that EMSAT alletiete infringed by the Telenav GPS Navigator pobdvere cancelled during
reexamination. In the suits against T-Mobile, Alkad Sprint, EMSAT amended its allegations to reenallegations of infringement of the
patent claims that were cancelled during reexamnaEMSAT and TMobile stipulated to a dismissal and their case dississed on Janua
28, 2015. On March 20, 2015, the Court dismissebicémsed the Alltel case and on April 10, 2015@wairt dismissed and closed the Sprint
case. We have not yet determined the extent oinol@mnification obligations to AT&T. We believe thais reasonably possible that we will
incur additional loss; however, we cannot curreaitimate a range of other possible losses we xgrience in connection with this case.
Accordingly, we are unable at this time to estintagzoverall effects of this matter on our finahciandition, results of operations, or cash
flows.

In March 2009, AT&T demanded that we indemnify aledlend them against a patent infringement lawsoidht by Tendler Cellular of
Texas LLC, or Tendler, in the U.S. District Couwt the Eastern District of Texas. In June 2010, AT&ettled its claims with Tendler and we
came to an agreement with AT&T as to the extemtusfcontribution towards AT&T's settlement and #meount of our contribution was not
material; however, there continues to be a disagee¢ as to whether any additional amounts are dwéd &T for legal fees and expenses
related to the defense of the matter. We belieatittis reasonably possible that we will incur diddal loss; however, we cannot currently
estimate a range of other possible losses we nyagriexce in connection with this case. Accordinglg,are unable at this time to estimate the
overall effects on our financial condition, reswdfsoperations, or cash flows.

7. Guarantees and indemnifications

Our agreements with our customers generally inctgttain provisions for indemnifying them againabllities if our products and
services infringe a third party’s intellectual peoty rights or for other specified matters. We hawvthe past received indemnification requests
or notices of their intent to seek indemnificatiarthe future from our customers with respect tecsfic litigation claims in which our
customers have been named as defendants.

We have agreed to indemnify our directors, officard certain other employees for certain eventeourrences, subject to certain lim
while such persons are or were serving at our gquoesuch capacity. We may terminate the indercatiibn agreements with these persons
upon the termination of their services with us, teminination will not affect claims for indemnifittan related to events occurring prior to the
effective date of termination. The maximum amoumtatential future indemnification is unlimited. Wxave a directors and officers insurance
policy that limits our potential exposure. We bedighat any financial exposure related to thesermdfication agreements is not material.
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8. Stockholders’ equity

Undesignated preferred stock

We are authorized to issue 50,000,000 shares afsigmhted preferred stock, par value $0.001 peesfihie undesignated preferred
stock may be issued from time to time at the dismneof our board of directors. As of June 30, 2@b8 2014 , no shares of undesignated
preferred stock were issued or outstanding.

Common stock

We are authorized to issue 600,000,000 shares.00$®ar value stock. The holders of each shacemimon stock have the right to one
vote.

Stock repurchase program

On October 23, 2012, March 18, 2013 and Augus2@&4, our board of directors authorized repurclpasgrams for the repurchase of
up to $20.0 million , $10.0 million and $10.0 nulfi , respectively, of our shares of common stoosuph open market purchases.

Under the October 23, 2012 program, which we cotagle the quarter ended March 31, 2013, we utllig20.0 million of cash to
repurchase 2,625,415 shares of our common stauk aterage purchase price of $7.62 per share. Whelédarch 18, 2013 program, which
we completed in the quarter ended March 31, 20®&4ytilized $10.0 million of cash to repurchase 4,684 shares of our common stock at ar
average purchase price of $5.97 per share.

Under the current repurchase program, which exjpir€&eptember 2015, we utilized $3.8 million ebh to repurchase 497,314 shares
of our common stock at an average purchase prick/dd0 per share during fiscal 2015. As of Juhe2B15, the remaining authorized amoun
of stock repurchases that may be made under thisglease program was $6.2 million .

The repurchased shares are retired and desigrmatadieorized but unissued shares. The timing armiatrof repurchase transactions
under our stock repurchase programs depends oretr@amkditions and other considerations. We us@aineralue method of accounting for our
stock repurchases. Under the par value method, constock is first charged with the par value ofshares involved. The excess of the cost
of shares acquired over the par value is alloctediditional paid-in capital, or APIC, based oreatimated average sales price per issued
share with the excess amounts charged to retaaraihgs. As a result of our stock repurchases duistal 2015, we reduced common stock
and APIC by an aggregate of $1.6 million and chau$@ 2 million to retained earnings. As a resulbof stock repurchases during fiscal 2014
we reduced common stock and APIC by an aggregatd.afmillion and charged $3.8 million to retaireatnings. As a result of our stock
repurchases during fiscal 2013, we reduced comrumk &nd APIC by an aggregate of $11.8 million ahdrged $14.5 million to retained
earnings.

Stock plans

Under our 1999 Stock Option Plan, or 1999 Plan2ZBRecutive Stock Option Plan, or 2002 Plan, 20qQity Incentive Plan, or 2009
Plan, and 2011 Stock Option and Grant Plan, or Z0af, eligible employees, directors, and constdtare able to participate in our future
performance through awards of nonqualified stodioog, incentive stock options and restricted stacits, or RSUs, through the receipt of
such awards as authorized by our board of directiocgntive stock options may be granted only tpleyees to purchase our common stock ¢
prices equal to or greater than the fair marketevaln the date of grant. Nonqualified stock optimngurchase our common stock may be
granted at prices not less than 85% of the faiketaralue on the date of grant. Options generalst wver a four -year period beginning from
the date of grant and generally expire 10 years fitee date of grant. RSUs generally vest annualéy a four -year period beginning from the
date of grant. Prior to our IPO, we granted optioatside of our stock option plans with terms sabsally similar to the terms of options
granted under our plans.

On the first day of each fiscal year, the numbestafres available and reserved for issuance uhd&009 Plan will be annually
increased by an amount equal to the lesser of §66&hares of common stock; 4% of the outstanstiages of our common stock as of the
last day of our immediately preceding fiscal yearan amount determined by our board of directors.

The information below regarding stock option andJR&tivity, stock options and RSUs outstanding stodk compensation expense
includes both continuing and discontinued operation
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A summary of our stock option activity is as folle\iin thousands except per share and contractaariounts):

Weighted
Weighted average
average remaining
Number of exercise price contractual Aggregate
shares per share life (years) intrinsic value
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2014 5691 $ 5.5¢
Granted 587 5.6t
Exercised (890 4.9¢
Canceled (613) 8.01
Options outstanding as of June 30, 2015 4,781 $ 5.4C 458 $ 13,96(
As of June 30, 2015:
Options vested and expected to vest 4,62( $ 5.34 452 $ 13,757
Options exercisab|e 3,70E $ 5.02 4.00 $ 12,45(

During fiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013, the total aasieived from the exercise of stock options wag #illion , $896,000 and $2.8
million , respectively, and the total intrinsic ualof stock options exercised was $2.4 milliong %800 and $5.0 million , respectively.

A summary of our RSU activity is as follows (in tismands except contractual life amounts):

Weighted
average
remaining
Number of contractual Aggregate
Shares life (years) intrinsic value
RSUs outstanding as of June 30, 2014 4,71(
Granted 1,891
Vested (1,099
Canceled (1,219
RSUs outstanding as of June 30, 2015 4,29( 151 $ 34,53¢
As of June 30, 2015:
RSUs expected to vest 3,61t 139 ¢ 29,09°

Canceled shares in the table above include appeigign409,000 shares surrendered for tax withhgklielated to net share settlements
of vested RSUs.

Performance-based RSUs

On May 5, 2015, our board of directors approved2®&5 Performance Share Program, or 2015 Prograntuding the award calculati
methodology, under the terms of our 2009 Equityeitive Plan. Under the 2015 Program, RSUs and&it banuses may be earned base
the achievement of specified performance conditimessured over periods ranging from approximatélyol21 months. Participants in t
2015 Program generally have the ability to rec@¥%eto 100%of the target number of restricted stock units ashcbonus originally grante
The expense associated with performabased RSU grants is recorded when the performamditon is determined to be probable. F
vested restricted stock units and or cash bonuaklsenawarded upon management’s certificationhef level of achievement.

As of June 30, 2015, we had granted 106,000 RSderuthe 2015 Program and no RSUs had been earmvashceled. At June 30, 2015,
based upon our closing stock price the total urgeized stock-based compensation cost related tosR&lled in connection with the 2015
program was $853,000 .
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A summary of our shares available for grant agtiistas follows (in thousands):

Number of
Shares
Shares available for grant as of June 30, 2013 852
Additional shares authorized pursuant to annuakie provisions of 2009 Equity Incentive Plan 1,57¢
Additional shares authorized outside of plans innetion with acquisition of skobbler 63=
Granted (3,929
RSUs withheld for taxes in net share settlements 27C
Canceled 1,19
Shares available for grant as of June 30, 2014 60%
Additional shares authorized pursuant to annuakie provisions of 2009 Equity Incentive Plan 1,57¢
Granted (2,47%)
RSUs withheld for taxes in net share settlements 40¢
Canceled 1,83:
Shares available for grant as of June 30, 2015 1,94

The following table summarizes the stock-based @rsation expense recorded for stock options, R&@dsestricted common stock
issued to employees and nonemployees (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Cost of revenue $ 98 $ 10C % 14¢
Research and development 5,27¢ 4,49( 3,50¢
Selling and marketing 2,94: 3,30¢ 2,29(
General and administrative 3,112 3,63¢ 2,69¢
Total stock-based compensation expense $ 11,42¢ $ 11,53t % 8,641

The following table summarizes the stock-based @rsation expense recorded for stock options, R8dsestricted common stock
issued to employees and nonemployees (in thousands)

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Stock option awards $ 2,071 $ 3,93C $ 5,837
RSU awards 8,851 5,781 1,491
Restricted common stock 50€ 1,82¢ 1,31¢

Total stock-based compensation expense $ 11,42¢  $ 11,53t % 8,64

We generally use the Black-Scholes option-priciraglel to determine the fair value of stock optioraeds. The determination of the fair
value of stock option awards on the date of greuaffiected by the stock price as well as assumgtiegarding a number of complex and
subjective variables. These variables include ebgoestock price volatility over the term of the ads actual and projected employee stock
option exercise behaviors, risk-free interest ratas expected dividends. The weighted average g used to value stock options grante:
were as follows:

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Expected volatility 54% 62% 72%
Expected term (in years) 4.3¢ 4.4k 4.7¢

Risk-free interest rate 1.6(% 1.44% 0.67%

Dividend yield — — —
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Expected volatility Due to the limited historical public market tragidata for our common stock, the expected vaiatised is based on
the historical volatility of our common stock aslhas the common stock of various comparable congsain evaluating similarity, we
considered factors such as industry, stage of gpaagis life cycle, revenue and market capitalizatio

Expected term The expected term represents the period thastouk-based awards are expected to be outstaritiegexpected term
was based on an analysis of our historical exesniskecancellation activity.

Risk-free interest rateThe risk-free rate is based on U.S. Treasury zeupon issues with remaining terms similar todkpected term
on the options.

Dividend yield. We have never declared or paid any cash dividendsur common stock and do not plan to pay cagdetids in the
foreseeable future and, therefore, use an expdoteiend yield of zero in the valuation model.

We recognize the estimated stock-based compensaigirof RSUs and restricted common stock, nestifnated forfeitures, over the
vesting term. The estimated stock-based compemsedist is based on the fair value of our commookstm the date of grant.

At June 30, 2015, the total unrecognized stocletb@®mpensation cost related to employee optiossdia million , net of estimated
forfeitures, and will be amortized over a weightegrage period of 2.2 years. The total fair valugtack options that vested during fiscal
2015, 2014 and 2013 was $1.8 million , $4.1 milland $4.9 million , respectively. At June 30, 201%e total unrecognized stock-based
compensation cost related to RSUs was $17.9 milliwet of estimated forfeitures, and will be amzati over a weighted average period of 2.5
years. The total fair value of RSUs that vestedngufiscal2015 , 2014 and 2013 was $8.2 million , $4.1 milland $298,000 , respectively.

Shares reserved for future issuance

Common stock reserved for future issuance as @ 30n2015 was as follows (in thousands):

Stock options outstanding 4,781
RSUs outstanding 4,29(
Available for future grants 1,94
Total common shares reserved for future issuance 11,01¢

9. Income taxe:

The domestic and foreign components of income Ylbsfore provision (benefit) for income taxes wasefollows (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
United States $ (37,589 $ (34,549 $ 4,72¢
Foreign 1,51¢ 1,01(C 1,95(
Income (loss) from continuing operations (36,069 (33,539 6,67
Income from discontinued operations — — 11,71:
Total income (loss) before provision (benefit) imcome taxes $ (36,069 $ (33,539 $ 18,38¢

The provision (benefit) for income taxes consigtthe following (in thousands):
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013

Current income taxes:

Federal $ (10,219 $ (7,50¢) $ 2,82:

State (3,679 (397) 17€

Foreign 21¢ 55& 487
Total current income taxes (13,669 (7,349 3,48¢
Deferred income taxes:

Federal 1,33¢ 3,20¢ (2,31%)

State — 12¢ (78)

Foreign (677) — —
Total deferred income taxes 663 3,33¢ (2,399
Provision (benefit) for income taxes from contirgimperations (13,00¢) (4,015 1,09t
Provision for income taxes from discontinued ogeres — — 4,22¢
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (13,006 $ (4,015 $ 5,31¢

The provision (benefit) for income taxes differsrfr the amount computed by applying the statutoderfa income tax rate as follows (in
thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Tax at federal statutory tax rate $ (12,629 $ (11,739 $ 6,43t
State taxes—net of federal benefit (893) (269) 14¢€
Non-deductible expenses 68 49t 522
Research and development credits (2,679 (989) (1,200
Section 199 deduction (907) 42F (561)
Foreign income taxed at different rates (27€) (119 (195)
Stock-based compensation expense 1,011 1,36¢ 1,291
Transfer pricing adjustment — — (1,009
Tax exempt income (844) (26%) (364)
Change in valuation allowance - federal 6,13¢ 6,95¢ —
Change in tax accounting method (1,129 — —
FIN 48 release (827) — —
Other (53 112 247
Total provision (benefit) for income taxes $ (13,000 $ (4,015 $ 5,31¢

Our benefit for income taxes, excluding discontshogerations, was $13.0 million in fiscal 2015 cemgal to $4.0 million in fiscal 2014 .
Our effective tax rate, excluding discontinued agiens, was 36% in fiscal 2015 compared to 12%sicaef 2014 . Our effective tax rate in
fiscal 2015 was attributable primarily to tax betsefecorded from the refund of $5.4 million regudtfrom the carryback of fiscal 2015 losses,
of which $1.3 million was recognized in fiscal 2Q1de recognition of a state income tax refund203nillion and a refund of $1.1 million
from a change in tax accounting method, both rdltdeprior years and received in fiscal 2015; drereversal of tax reserves of $4.2 million
due to loss carryback, expiration of the statutlinotations, and settlement of our California au@ur effective tax rate in fiscal 2014 was
lower than the tax computed at the U.S. federaligiey income tax rate due primarily to the inceeasthe valuation allowance which resulted
in additional federal tax expense of $7.0 millid@ur provision for income taxes was $1.1 milliorfistal 2013 . Our effective tax rate,
excluding discontinued operations, was 16% in fi2€4.3 .

We received a $3.0 million income tax refund inukany 2015 from the state of California as a restthe filing and subsequent audit of
our California amended returns for fiscal 2009 aad0. We amended our fiscal 2009 and 2010 retwagala favorable tax ruling we recei
with respect to an alternative apportionment metfite state refund was not previously
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recognized due to uncertainties with respect tartterpretation of the tax ruling, the outcomelo# tiwdit of the amended returns, and the
method in which the overpayment would ultimatelyse#led.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effettermporary differences between the carrying anmohassets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the amounts ugethfome tax purposes. Significant componentsuofn@t deferred tax assets were as
follows (in thousands):

June 30,
2015 2014

Deferred tax assets:

Federal, state and foreign net operating losses $ 500: $ 4,32¢

Federal and state tax credits 5,53( 2,32

Stock-based compensation 4,57( 3,861

Accrued expenses and reserves 5,331 5,82¢

Foreign tax credits — 32C

Capitalized expense 33¢ 413

Unrealized losses on investments 30€ 54

Acquired intangible assets 23¢ —
Total deferred tax assets: 21,30¢ 17,13
Deferred tax liabilities:

Property and equipment (1,327 (1,809

Capitalized software (2,150 (284)

Acquired intangible assets — (73€)

Unrealized gains on investments (393 —
Total deferred tax liabilities: (2,869 (2,829¢)
Deferred tax assets, net of liabilities: 18,44: 14,30:
Valuation allowance - worldwide (17,679 (12,969
Net deferred tax assets: $ 77C % 1,33¢

All available evidence, both positive and negativas considered to determine whether, based ugoweight of the evidence, a
valuation allowance for deferred tax assets is eeehh fiscal 2015, we released the valuation aloge of $0.8 million on deferred tax assets,
net of liabilities, in Germany due to cumulative meome, expectation of continued profits, andtoared growth and sustainability of the
European business.

In fiscal 2015, we recorded a valuation allowaneeh® majority of our deferred tax assets, netadiilities, since the assets are not more
likely than not to be realized based upon our assest of all positive and negative evidence. Ratibn of deferred tax assets is dependent
upon future taxable earnings and losses, the timinghich is uncertain. Due to losses in fiscal 2@hd 2015, and expected losses in fiscal
2016 and potentially future years in the U.S., warm@ained a full valuation allowance on deferreddasets in the U.S. Due to foreign
operating losses in previous years and continuezigio earnings volatility, we continued to maintaifull valuation allowance for our foreign
deferred tax assets in China, Brazil and the Urtagjdom. Our valuation allowance increased from phior year by approximately $4.7
million , $10.1 million , and $699,000 in fiscal 2B, 2014 and 2013 , respectively.

We provide for U.S. income taxes on the earningsm@ign subsidiaries unless the subsidiaries'iegsrare permanently reinvested
outside the U.S. To the extent that the foreigmiegs previously treated as permanently reinveatedepatriated, the related U.S. liability r
be reduced by any foreign income taxes paid oreteasiings. As of June 30, 2015 , the cumulativeusrnof earnings upon which U.S.
income taxes have not been provided was approxiynddel million . The net unrecognized deferred ltakility for these earnings was
approximately $560,000 .

As of June 30, 2015 , we had federal and Califoneigoperating loss carryforwards for income tasppses of $7.5 million and $10.9
million , respectively. These loss carryforwardd twegin to expire in fiscal 2020 for federal puges and fiscal 2016 for California purposes.
In addition, we had federal and California reseaneti development tax credit carryforwards of $3illion and $5.6 million , respectively, as
of June 30, 2015 . The federal research creditdedin to
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expire in fiscal 2023 and the California reseandits can be carried forward indefinitely. Theslasirryforwards and certain credits are sul
to annual limitation under Internal Revenue CodetiSe 382.

As of June 30, 2015, we also had foreign net dmerdoss carryforwards of $8.5 million , which liego expire in fiscal 2019. Due to
uncertainty regarding our ability to utilize thed@n net operating loss carryforwards in certansgictions, we have placed a valuation
allowance of $913,000 on these deferred tax assets.

The following is a tabular reconciliation of theabamounts of unrecognized tax benefits (in thads

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Unrecognized tax benefit—beginning of period $ 6,931 $ 6,34C $ 4,431
Increase in tax positions taken during the curpeniod 562 623 2,157
Increase in tax positions taken during the priaiqoe 17C 55E 21¢
Decrease in tax positions taken during the prioiople — (267) (467)
Decrease in tax positions due to settlements (600) — —
Lapse of statute of limitations (949 (326€) —
Unrecognized tax benefit—end of period $ 6,11 $ 6,931 $ 6,34(

At June 30, 2015, 2014 and 2013, there were®illion , $5.5 million and $4.8 million of unrecoged tax benefits that if recognized
would affect the annual effective tax rate.

We file income tax returns in the U.S. federalgdiction, California, various states, and foreigx jurisdictions in which we have
subsidiaries. During fiscal 2012, the IRS concluidgdudit of our fiscal 2009 through fiscal 2088 teturns, which resulted in no adjustments
having a material impact on our financial stateraehhe statute of limitations remains open fordis2012 through fiscal 2014 in the U.S., for
fiscal 2011 through fiscal 2014 in state jurisdios, and for fiscal 2010 through 2014 in foreigrisdictions. Fiscal years outside the normal
statute of limitation remain open to audit by tarerities due to tax attributes generated in thezsty years which have been carried forward
and may be audited in subsequent years when dtilize

We believe it is reasonably possible that the gunosecognized tax benefits as of June 30, 2015adetrease (whether by payment,
release, or a combination of both) by approxima#dly8 million in the next 12 months. We recognizeeiest and penalties related to
unrecognized tax positions as part of our provisavrfederal, state and foreign income taxes. Oyfiscal 2015 , 2014 and 2013 , we
recognized approximately $134,000 , $278,000 afs®PDO in interest and penalties. We had accrué8,$80 and $603,000 for the payment
of interest and penalties at June 30, 2015 and 284sbectively.

On December 31, 2014, the research and develomregit expired for federal tax purposes. The Taxdase Prevention Act of 2014
extended the research and development credit ®year until December 31, 2014. Although the redeand development credit has been
extended every year since enactment, a tax beragfitot be recorded for the expired period untiéxtension has been passed and signed by
the President. If and when an extension is passeédigned with retroactive effect, a retroactivehanefit will be recorded in the period the
extension is passed and signed. We have recortdedoenefit for the federal research and developmedit through December 31, 2014.

10. Acquisitions

skobbler GmbH

On January 29, 2014, we completed our acquisitiail ®f the shares of privately held skobbler Gmlokiskobbler, a navigation
company based in Germany. We acquired skobblerdiosideration of approximately $23.8 million , cisting of approximately $19.2 million
in cash and $4.6 million in shares of our restdatemmon stock. We believe the acquisition of skebwill enable us to combine its OSM-
based GPS navigation technology with our existimipiie navigation solutions. The transaction hastsounted for under the acquisition
method of accounting. We recorded the assets azhaird liabilities assumed at their estimatedviaiue, with the difference between the fair
value of the net assets acquired and the purclenstderation reflected as goodwiill.

The total fair value of acquisition consideratidr$83.8 million was comprised of $19.2 million iagh and 731,623 shares of our
common stock valued at $4.6 million . The 731,628res of our common stock are held in escrow atidwi
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released at the rate of 50% per year on each asaiyedate of closing. These shares are releasaddscrow solely with the passage of time
and do not contain a service or performance reméng. In addition to the total purchase considenative issued 634,920 inducement RSUs t
the founders of skobbler. The fair value of the, 820 RSUs issued in connection with the acquisitias $4.0 million , which has been
accounted for as post-combination stock-based cosgpen and is being amortized over a weightedameeperiod of 2.0 years .

The fair value of our common stock issued in cotinaavith the acquisition was determined to be 3G 8r share, the closing price of
common stock on the acquisition measurement ddtiehws the date the acquisition closed.

The following table reflects the values of the é&ssequired and liabilities assumed as of the adipn date (in thousands):

Cash $ 10C
Accounts receivable 177
Other assets 20¢
Customer relationships 40C
Developed technology 7,10C
Goodwill 16,90°
Liabilities assumed (1,139

Total value of assets acquired and liabiliiesumed $ 23,75t

We determined the fair value of developed technokmgd customer relationships to be $7.1 million &@di million , respectively. The
fair value of the developed technology and customl@tionships is being amortized using the strigligie method over the estimated lifead
yearsand 18 months, respectively. Developed technologlycaistomer relationships are included in goodawill intangible assets, net of
amortization on the consolidated balance sheets.

Goodwill of $16.9 million was recorded as the excekthe fair value of the acquisition considenatiwer the fair value of the net assets
acquired. This asset is attributed to buyer-spewdiue resulting from synergies that are not idetliin the fair value of assets. No goodwill
was deemed to be deductible for income tax purposes

Included in the acquisition consideration is $3illiom in cash that was paid by us and deposited third party escrow account to satisfy
potential indemnification claims.

For fiscal 2014, we recognized $1.1 million in asifion related costs that were included in genaral administrative expenses. The
amounts of revenue and income from skobbler f@afi2014 were not material.

Thinknear

On October 10, 2012, we completed our acquisitigoriwately held Local Merchant Services, Inc.,Tdinknear, a California-based
hyper-local mobile advertising company. We acquit8@% of the outstanding stock of Thinknear forsidaration of approximately $22.5
million , consisting of approximately $18.4 milliom cash, plus restricted shares of our commorksiad assumed stock options. The
acquisition of Thinknear enabled us to combinéoitsition ad targeting technology with our existadyertising solution to create a new mobile
local advertising platform. The transaction hasib@ecounted for under the acquisition method obanting.

We recorded the assets acquired and liabilitiesnasd at their estimated fair value, with the diéfece between the fair value of the net
assets acquired and the purchase considerati@tted| as goodwill.

The fair value of total acquisition consideratidr$®8.4 million was comprised of cash. In addittorcash, we issued 586,580 shares of
restricted common stock, and assumed options toirec@4,491 shares (on an as-converted basis)rafauamon stock. The fair value of the
restricted shares and assumed options issued recton with the acquisition was $4.1 million , whihas been accounted for as post-
combination stock-based compensation. The $3.6omifhir value of the restricted shares and the7$3@ fair value of the assumed options
will be amortized over a weighted average periodl.@8 years and 2.82 years, respectively.

The fair value of our common stock issued in cotinaavith the acquisition was determined to be 3Ge&r share, the closing price of
common stock on the acquisition measurement ddtiehws the date the acquisition closed. The wedtaverage fair value of the assumed
stock options to purchase 74,491 shares of our acamstock was $6.13 per share based on the Blac#t&fair value on the acquisition
measurement date.
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The following table reflects the values of the é&ssequired and liabilities assumed as of the adipn date (in thousands):

Cash $ 181
Accounts receivable 41C
Other assets 25¢
Developed technology 5,10(
Goodwill 14,34
Liabilities assumed (1,85¢)

Total value of assets acquired and liabiliissumed $ 18,43

We determined the fair value of developed technotoge $5.1 million , which is being amortizedngthe straightine method over th
estimated life of three years . Developed technolsgncluded in goodwill and intangible assetd, afeamortization on the consolidated
balance sheet. Goodwill of $14.3 million was reeaf@s the excess of the fair value of the purcbassideration over the fair value of the net
assets acquired. This asset is attributed to bspecific value resulting from synergies that areinduded in the fair value of tangible and
identified intangible assets. No goodwill was dedrteebe deductible for income tax purposes.

Included in the purchase consideration of $18.4ignilvas $2.7 million in cash that was withheld afgposited in escrow to satisfy
potential indemnification claims. In January 20thg $2.7 million held in escrow was paid to Thinknstockholders.

11. Sale of enterprise business

On April 16, 2013, we completed the sale of ouegmise business to FleetCor for $10.0 millionastt. In connection with the
completion of the transaction, 50 of our employleesame employees of FleetCor.

We entered into an asset purchase agreement weigtiFdr on March 12, 2013, which was amended anateelson April 16, 2013. The
amended and restated asset purchase agreemdm,Agreement, included customary representatioaganties and covenants, including a
license permitting FleetCor to utilize certain off antellectual property. Upon closing, $1.3 mitliof the purchase price was held back by
FleetCor and was maintained for a period of twahanths to satisfy any amounts owed by us to Flegp@suant to our obligations under the
Agreement, including indemnification provisions. éfsJune 30, 2013, $1.3 milliomas recorded in prepaid expenses and other classsts il
our balance sheet. We received payment of ther§illidn in May 2014.

In connection with the sale, we entered into aditaon services agreement, pursuant to which weimoed to support certain aspects of
the enterprise business while that business wasiti@ned to FleetCor, and a noncompetition agrednpairsuant to which we agreed not to
compete with FleetCor in certain business areasawlto the enterprise business for three years .

Our continuing involvement through the transiti@mices agreement with FleetCor was determinec tim&ignificant. Accordingly, the
results of operations of our enterprise business baen classified as discontinued operations iirstaiement of operations for all periods
presented.

We recorded a gain of $6.5 million on the salewfenterprise business, net of tax, in fiscal 201®& gain is included in discontinued
operations in our statement of operations.

12. Restructuring costs

In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2014, in order twther align our resources and consolidate fagdljtive initiated a restructuring plan
consisting of the elimination of 108 full-time ptishs in the U.S. and China and we recorded restring charges of $2.4 million related to
severance and benefits for the positions elimindedlier in fiscal 2014, we commenced our consiah of our Sunnyvale, California
headquarters facilities from two buildings into grad during the fourth quarter we closed our 8oskMassachusetts office. As a result, we
recorded restructuring charges of $2.0 milliontedao the impairment of the facility leases. Rasturing expenses of $1.2 million incurred in
fiscal 2015 were associated with facility lease amment in connection with the consolidation of @umnyvale headquarters facilities in fiscal
2014. In the fourth quarter of fiscal 2013, in arttebetter align and focus our resources aroumdwategic growth areas, we initiated a
restructuring plan consisting of the eliminatior88ffull-time positions in the U.S. and China anelmecorded restructuring

F-31




Table of Contents

charges of $1.5 million related to severance ametfiis for the positions eliminated. In additiore wonsolidated our Shanghai office facilities
and recorded restructuring charges of $124,000att® the forfeiture of our lease deposit. We atsmrded restructuring charges of $99,000
related to the write-off of certain assets thatevso longer useful to us based upon the changmsribusiness. Total restructuring charges
related to this plan were $1.7 million .

The activity related to the restructuring liab@siestablished during fiscal 2014 and 235resented in the following table (in thousan

Facility Exit
Severance and Costs and Asset
Benefits Impairment Total
Balance at June 30, 2013 $ 617 $ 224 % 841
Restructuring expenses 2,45¢ 1,95¢ 4,41;
Cash payments (94%) (729) (1,679
Other — 1,29( 1,29(
Balance at June 30, 2014 $ 2,12¢ $ 2,74 3 4,86¢
Restructuring expenses — 1,15( 1,15(
Cash payments (2,129 (1,640 (3,769)
Other 3 391 38¢
Balance at June 30, 2015 $ — % 2,64, % 2,64¢

Of the $2.6 million in total restructuring liabiss, $1.2 million was recorded in other accruedeases and $1.4 million was recorded in
other long-term liabilities on our consolidateddrale sheet as of June 30, 2015 .
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13. Industry segment and geographic information

We report segment information based on the “managé&mpproach. The management approach designategengaireporting used t
management for making decisions and assessingrpenfize as the source of our reportable segments.

Our CEO, the chief operating decision maker, regiesvenue and gross margin information for eaabuofreportable segments. In
addition, with the exception of goodwill and intélslg assets, we do not identify or allocate ouetsby the reportable segments.

Commencing July 1, 2014, we began to report regulisree business segments:

Automotive- Our automotive segment provides our map and @a#ieig platform to auto manufacturers and origirgplipment
manufacturers, or OEMs, for distribution with the@hicles. Our automotive solutions are typicalge#-contained solution including
software and related services and content withérctr, or on-board, and are often enhanced throoghection to data services for
additional real time capabilities such as maps, BOtraffic. We also provide a mobile phone-basadigation solution utilizing wireless
connectivity, or brought-in, that allows OEMs tmjarct the phone’s screen to an in-car display unit.

Advertising- Our advertising segment provides interactive nechdvertisements on behalf of our advertisingntti¢o consumers based
specifically on the location of the user and otbahisticated targeting capabilities. Our custormasiside advertising agencies, direct
advertisers and channel partners.

Mobile Navigation- Our mobile navigation segment provides our mapraavigation platform to end users through mobdeicks. We
distribute our services through our wireless capatners, and directly to consumers through neddgilplication stores and marketplaces

Prior to July 1, 2014, we operated in a single sagmocationbased platform services. We have conformed outessggment results fi
fiscal 2014 and 2013 to the current period presgiamdor comparative purposes.

Our segment results were as follows (dollars iuglamds):
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Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Revenue
Automotive $ 103,100 % 75,15: % 71,47¢
Advertising 17,94: 11,69¢ 3,93¢
Mobile Navigation 39,19¢ 63,46 116,38¢
Total revenue 160,23¢ 150,31: 191,80(
Cost of revenue
Automotive 56,31¢ 37,13t 38,241
Advertising 11,71( 7,01z 2,50¢
Mobile Navigation 10,75¢ 16,69¢ 28,36(
Total cost of revenue 78,78¢ 60,84 69,11
Gross profit
Automotive 46,78: 38,01¢ 33,22¢
Advertising 6,231 4,68 1,42¢
Mobile Navigation 28,44 46,76" 88,02¢
Total gross profit $ 81,45 % 8947: $ 122,68
Gross margin
Automotive 45% 51% 46%
Advertising 35% 40% 36%
Mobile Navigation 73% 74% 76%
Total gross margin 51% 60% 64%

Revenue by geographic region is based on the gpifloidress of our customers. The following tabls &m&th revenue and property and
equipment by geographic region (in thousands):

Fiscal Year Ended June 30,

2015 2014 2013
Revenue
United States $ 153,37 $ 141,13! $ 177,39(
International 6,86¢ 9,17¢ 14,41(
Total revenue $ 160,23¢ $ 150,31 $ 191,80(
June 30,
Property and equipment, net 2015 2014
United States $ 6,31¢ $ 8,12¢
International 807 68€
Total property and equipment, net $ 7,12¢  $ 8,81«

14. Employee savings and retirement plan

We sponsor a defined contribution plan under Ir@teRevenue Code Section 401(k), or the 401(k) Most of our U.S. employees are
eligible to participate following the start of the@mployment. Employees may contribute up to teede of 100% of their current compensation
to the 401(k) Plan or an amount up to a statutgrigscribed annual limit. We pay the direct expsrafehe 401(k) Plan and beginning in July
2006, we began to match employee contribution® ¥4 of an employee’s salary. Contributions madesgre subject to certain vesting
provisions. We made matching contributions and neet expense of $1.3 million , $1.6 million and3bdnillion for fiscal 2015 , 2014 and
2013, respectively.

F-34




Table of Contents

15. Quarterly financial data (unaudited)

Summarized quarterly financial information for 2015 and 2014 is as follows (in thousands, expepshare data):

Consolidated statements of
operations data (in thousands)

Revenue
Gross profit
Net income (loss)

Net income (loss) per share:

Basic
Diluted

Three Months Ended

Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30, Sept. 30, Dec. 31, Mar. 31, June 30,
2013 2013 2014 2014 2014 2014 2015 2015
(unaudited)
$ 4429¢ $ 37,16. $ 34471 $ 34,38 $ 3498° $ 39,78 $ 42,28t $ 43,18¢
28,24, 21,98° 20,23: 19,00¢ 19,027 20,24% 21,44, 20,73¢
$ 9 $ (399) $ (7,555 $ (17,98) $ (7.93) $ (2,729 $ (4761 $ (7,636
$ 00C $ (010 $ (019 $ (046 $ (020 $ (00) $ (012 $ (0.19
$ 00 $ (010 $ (019 $ (046 $ (020 $ (007 $ (012 $ (0.19
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SCHEDULE Il

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

Trade Receivable Allowances:
Year Ended June 30, 2013
Year Ended June 30, 2014
Year Ended June 30, 2015

Valuation Allowance for Deferred Tax Assets:

Year Ended June 30, 2013
Year Ended June 30, 2014
Year Ended June 30, 2015

(in thousands)

Beginning Chargeback Chargeback Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
314 $ 2,93 $ (3,009 $ 241
241 $ 1,81z $ (1,847 $ 20€
20€ $ 1,07¢ $ (1,079 $ 211
Beginning Ending
Balance Additions Reductions Balance
1,39C $ 1,99¢ $ (475 $ 2,91¢
291: $ 10,05¢ $ 3 $ 12,96¢
12,96¢ $ 6,35¢ $ (1,659 $ 17,67:
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INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number Date Filed
2.1 Amended and Restated Asset Purchase Agreemend, Aptié 16, 2013, by an 10-Q 2.1 5/8/2013
between Telenav, Inc. and FleetCor Technologies&@ipg Company, LLC.
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incatmor of TeleNav, Inc. 10-K 3.1 9/24/2010
filed on May 18, 2010.
3.11 Certificate of Amendment of Second Amended and &edtCertificate of 8-K 3.11 12/3/2012
Incorporation of Telenav, Inc. filed on November 2012.
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of TeleNav, Inc. dffeas of May 18, 2010. 10-K 3.2 9/24/2009
4.1 Specimen Common Stock Certificate of TeleNav, Inc. S-1/A 4.1 1/5/2010
4.2 Fifth Amended and Restated Investors’ Rights Agretydated April 14, S-1 4.2 10/30/2009
2009, between TeleNav, Inc. and certain holdefetéNav, Inc.5 capital stocl
named therein.
10.1 Form of Indemnification Agreement between Regigteard its directors and S-1 10.1 10/30/2009
officers.
10.2# 1999 Stock Option Plan and forms of agreement timefer. S-1 10.2 10/30/2009
10.3# 2002 Executive Stock Option Plan and forms of ages# thereunder. S-1 10.3 10/30/2009
10.4# 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, as amended. 8-K 10.4.1 12/3/2012
10.4.1# Forms of agreement under the 2009 Equity IncerRiaa. S-1 10.4 10/30/2009
10.5# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 20, 20@ween TeleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.5 10/30/2009
Douglas Miller.
10.5.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefil@stober 28, 2009, S-1 10.5.1 10/30/2009
between TeleNav, Inc. and Douglas Miller.
10.6# Employment Agreement, dated as of April 7, 2009wkeen TeleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.6 10/30/2009
Loren Hillberg.
10.6.1# Amended and Restated Employment Agreement, datefi@stober 28, 2009, S-1 10.6.1 10/30/2009
between TeleNav, Inc. and Loren Hillberg.
10.7# Employment Agreement, dated as of May 4, 2005, éetwieleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.7 10/30/2009
Hassan Wabhla.
10.8# Employment Agreement, dated October 28, 2009, =tiieleNav, Inc. and S-1 10.8 10/30/2009
H.P. Jin.
10.9# Form of Employment Agreement between TeleNav, &mcl each of Y.C. Cha S-1 10.9 10/30/2009
Salman Dhanani, Robert Rennard and Hassan Wahla.
10.10# Severance Agreement and General Release, datédasuary 29, 2009, S-1 10.10 10/30/2009
between TeleNav, Inc. and William Bettencourt.
10.10.1# Amendment dated July 8, 2009 to the Severance Aggreeand General S-1 10.10.1 10/30/2009
Release, dated as of January 29, 2009, betweeNawlénc. and William
Bettencourt.
10.11 Industrial/R&D Lease, dated as of October 9, 2@¥6and between TeleNav, S-1 10.11 10/30/2009

Inc. and Roeder Family Trust B.
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Exhibit
Number

10.11.1

10.12

10.13%

10.13.1%

10.13.2%

10.13.3%

10.13.4t

10.13.5t

10.13.6t

10.13.7t

10.13.8t

10.13.97

10.14t

10.14.1¢t

10.14.2t

Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
by Reference From Exhibit
Description From Form Number Date Filed
First Amendment dated October 27, 2006 to the lim@d4R&D Lease, dated as S-1 10.11.1 10/30/2009
of October 9, 2006, by and between TeleNav, Ind.Roeder Family Trust B.
Shanghai Real Estate Lease Agreement, dated ggrivf2&, 2009, by and S-1/A 10.12 12/8/2009
between TeleNav Shanghai Inc. and Shanghai Dongfiégiging Culture
Development Co.
Sprint Master Application and Services Agreemeated as of January 30, S-1/A 10.13 2/2/2010
2009, by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint dnitanagement Company.
Amendment No. 1 effective as of July 1, 2009 toSpeint Master Application S-1/A 10.13.1 2/2/2010
and Services Agreement, dated as of January 3@, B§tand between
TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.
Amendment No. 2 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master S-1/A 10.13.2 1/5/2010
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United Manager@amhpany.
Addendum effective as of March 12, 2010 to the i8gviaster Application and S-1/A 10.13.3 4/26/2010
Services Agreement, dated as of January 30, 2§0&nd between TeleNav,
Inc. and Sprint United Management Company.
Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 16, 2008¢ Sprint Master 10-Q 10.13.4 11/15/2010
Application and Services Agreement, dated as afidan30, 2009, as amended,
by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Sprint United M@naent Company,
effective as of September 1, 2010.
Amendment No. 4 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement, 10-K 10.13.5 9/7/2012
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by anddre TeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as afd 29, 2012.
Amendment No. 5 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement, 10-K 10.13.6 9/7/2012
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &nddeTeleNav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asubf 1, 2012.
Amendment No. 6 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement, 10-K 10.13.7 8/30/2013
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &anddeTelenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective asaotidry 18, 2013.
Amendment No. 7 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement, 10-K 10.13.8 8/30/2013
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &anddeTelenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as mfil8, 2013.
Amendment No. 8 to the Sprint Master Application &ervices Agreement, 10-K 10.13.9 8/30/2013
dated as of January 30, 2009, as amended, by &anddeTelenav, Inc. and
Sprint United Management Company, effective as@filA5, 2013.
License and Service Agreement, dated as of MarcRQ®8, by and between S-1/A 10.14 2/2/2010
TeleNav, Inc. and AT&T Mobility LLC.
First Amendment effective as of November 13, 2@8he License and Service S-1 10.14.1 10/30/2009
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.
Second Amendment effective as of November 20, 20@8e License and S-1 10.14.2 10/30/2009

Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niaybetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.
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Exhibit
Number

10.14.3t

10.14.4t

10.14.5¢t

10.14.6t

10.14.7t

10.14.8t

10.14.9t

10.14.10%

10.15%

10.15.1¢t

10.15.2t

10.15.3t

10.15.4t

10.15.5t

10.15.6t

10.15.7t

10.15.8t

10.161

Description

Fourth Amendment effective as of June 16, 2008¢d.fcense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Sixth Amendment effective as of October 13, 2008heoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Seventh Amendment effective as of October 27, 26@Be License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niaybetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eighth Amendment effective as of November 16, 2@0he License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niaybetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Ninth Amendment effective as of April 13, 2010 be t_icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and =tWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Tenth Amendment effective as of January 18, 20thed. icense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

Eleventh Amendment effective as of December 6, 20%te License and
Service Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008 niybeetween TeleNav, Inc.
and AT&T Mobility LLC.

Twelfth Amendment effective as of June 17, 201thtoLicense and Service
Agreement, dated as of March 19, 2008, by and mtWweleNav, Inc. and
AT&T Mobility LLC.

License Agreement effective as of July 1, 2009aihg between TeleNav, Inc.
and Tele Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No.1 effective as of March 1, 2010 toltleense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, by and between TeleNev,dnd Tele Atlas North
America, Inc.

Amendment No. 2 effective as of August 1, 201thlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeeNav, Inc. and Tele
Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 3 effective as of December 14, 201be License Agreemel
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeeNav, Inc. and Tele
Atlas North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 4 effective as of November 21, 2@lthé License

Agreement, dated as of July 1, 2009, as amendeandpetween TeleNav, Inc.

and TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 5 effective as of March 24, 201lhmlticense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betheleNav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 6 effective as of July 1, 2012 toltleense Agreement, dated
as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betweeN#&e)énc. and TomTom
North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 7 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeenav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.

Amendment No. 8 effective as of November 1, 201théoLicense Agreement,
dated as of July 1, 2009, as amended, by and betfeenav, Inc. and
TomTom North America, Inc.

Data License Agreement, dated as of December 2, 230and between
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugtion.

3

Incorporated
by Reference  From Exhibit
From Form Number Date Filed
S-1 10.14.3 10/30/2009
S-1 10.14.4 10/30/2009
S-1/A 10.14.5 12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.14.6 1/5/2010
10-K 10.14.7 9/24/2010
10-Q 10.14.8 5/10/2011
10-K 10.14.9 8/30/2013
10-K 10.14.10 8/30/2013
S-1/A 10.15 12/8/2009
S-1/A 10.15.1 4/26/2010
10-Q 10.15.2 11/15/2010
10-K 10.15.3 9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.4 9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.5 9/7/2012
10-K 10.15.6 9/7/2012
10-Q 10.15.7 2/8/2013
10-Q 10.15.8 2/8/2013
S-1/A 10.16 2/2/2010




Table of Contents

Exhibit
Number

10.16.1%

10.16.2t

10.16.3t

10.16.4t

10.16.5

10.16.67

10.16.7%

10.16.8t

10.16.9t

10.16.10t

10.16.11t

10.16.12%

10.16.13

10.16.14t

10.16.15t

10.16.16%

10.16.17t

10.16.18%

10.16.19%

Description

Third Amendment dated December 22, 2004 to the Diatnse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Belgon, Inc. and NAVTEC
North America, LLC.

Fourth Amendment dated May 18, 2007 to the Datarnse Agreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North
America, LLC.

Fifth Amendment dated January 15, 2008 to the Datense Agreement, dated
as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNavahat NAVTEQ North
America, LLC.

Seventh Amendment dated December 16, 2008 to tteelll@ense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and among TeldNay NAVTEQ Europe
B.V. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Eighth Amendment dated December 15, 2008 to tha Diaense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between TeJéia and NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 1, dated as of December D220y and between
Televigation, Inc. and Navigation Technologies Qugpion.

Territory License No. 2, dated as of June 30, 20693nd between
Televigation, Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 3, dated as of February &®y and between TeleNe
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 5, dated as of March 6, 20§6and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 6, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Territory License No. 7, dated as of May 18, 2087and between TeleNav,
Inc. and NAVTEQ North America, LLC.

Ninth Amendment dated February 25, 2010 to the Diatanse Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002 by and between Te|dhNavand NAVTEQ
North America, LLC.

Tenth Amendment dated June 1, 2010 to the Datank&dgreement, dated as
of December 1, 2002, by and between TeleNav, M&VTEQ North America,
LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Eleventh Amendment dated September 16, 2010 tDalte License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by areeeet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Twelfth Amendment dated September 28, 2010 to tim Dicense Agreement,
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Teldia, NAVTEQ North
America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Fourteenth Amendment dated September 30, 201ktDdla License
Agreement, dated as of December 1, 2002, by aneeleet TeleNav, Inc.,
NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Territory License No. 8, dated December 1, 2011ay between TeleNav,
Inc., NAVTEQ North America, LLC, and NAVTEQ EurofeV.

First Amendment dated February 7, 2012 to Territacgnse No. 8, dated as
December 1, 2011, by and between TeleNav, Inc., RAY North America,
LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Second Amendment dated October 18, 2012 to Teyritimense No. 8, dated
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddst of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

Incorporated

Incorporated by Reference

by Reference From Exhibit

From Form Number Date Filed
S-1/A 10.16.1 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.2 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.3 2/2/2010
S-1/A 10.16.4 4/26/2010

S-1 10.16.5 10/30/2009

S-1/A 10.16.6 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.7 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.8 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.9 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.10 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.11 4/26/2010
S-1/A 10.16.12 4/26/2010
10-Q 10.16.13 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.14 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.15 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.16 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.17 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.18 5/7/2012
10-Q 10.16.19 2/8/2013
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number

Date Filed

10.16.20 Fifteenth Amendment dated October 30, 2012 to tataDicense Agreement, 10-Q 10.16.20
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between Twelama, NAVTEQ North
America, LLC and NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

10.16.21% Third Amendment dated December 10, 2012 to Teyitacense No. 8, dated 10-Q 10.16.21
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddat of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., NAVTEQ Northekita, LLC and
NAVTEQ Europe B.V.

10.16.22% Seventeenth Amendment dated June 27, 2013 to tlzelliz@nse Agreement, 10-Q/A 10.16.22
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HERE Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

10.16.23% Fourth Amendment dated October 2, 2013 to Territdcgnse No. 8, dated 10-Q 10.16.23
December 1, 2011 to the Data License Agreemergddat of December 1,
2002, by and between Telenav, Inc., and Navigakiechnologies Corporation
(“NTC"), which was subsequently assigned by NTE®RE North America,
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).

10.16.24 Eighteenth Amendment dated January 28, 2014 tD#ta License Agreement, 10-Q 10.16.24
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HERE Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

10.16.25% Territory License No. 9, dated February 1, 2014bg between HERE North 10-Q 10.16.25
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., NAVTEQ Korea Codl&and Telenav, Ini

10.16.261 General License Agreement, dated February 10, B9Bhd between HERE 10-Q 10.16.26
North America, LLC, and Telenav, Inc.

10.16.271 Nineteenth Amendment dated May 20, 2014 to the Diatense Agreement, 10-K 10.16.27
dated as of December 1, 2002, by and between HER Mmerica, LLC
(f/k/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC) (formerly Navigain Technologies
Corporation) and Telenav, Inc.

10.16.2871 First Amendment, dated June 12, 2014, to Territdcgnse No. 9, dated as of 10-K 10.16.28
February 1, 2014, by and between Telenav, Inc. HEERE North America,
LLC (f/lk/a NAVTEQ North America, LLC).”

10.16.291 Amended and Restated Territory License No. 8, dategust 18, 2014, by and 10-Q 10.16.29
between Telenav, Inc., HERE North America, LLC [&NAVTEQ North
America, LLC), and Here Europe B.V. (f/lk/a NAVTEQu®pe B.V.)

10.16.3071 Patent License Agreement, dated January 1, 201dnthpetween Telenav, 10-Q 10.16.30
Inc., and HERE Global B.V. (f/k/a Navteq B.V.)

10.16.31+ Territory License No. 11, dated April 3, 2015 bydretween HERE North Filed
America, LLC, HERE Europe B.V., and Telenav, Inc. herewith

10.17# Employment Offer Letter executed on June 28, 204t fTeleNav, Inc. to 10-K 10.17
Dariusz Paczuski.

10.18# First Year Executive Employment Agreement datece 8y 2010 by and 10-K 10.18
between TeleNav, Inc. and Dariusz Paczuski.

10.19+ Office Lease, dated as of June 28, 2011 and ex¢outdune 30, 2011, by and 10-K 10.19
between TeleNav, Inc. and CA-Sunnyvale BusinesgeCdimited Partnership.

10.20# Employment Offer Letter dated August 10, 2011 frbefeNav, Inc. to Marc 10-Q 10.20
Aronson.

10.21# Form of First Year Executive Employment Agreement. 10-Q 10.21
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2/8/2013

2/8/2013

2/27/2014

11/8/2013

2/6/2014

5/8/2014

5/8/2014

8/22/2014

8/22/2014

11/6/2014

2/5/2015

9/24/2010

9/24/2010

9/9/2011

11/7/2011

11/7/2011
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number Date Filed
10.22# Retention Letter dated March 28, 2012 from TeleNaw, to Michael W. 10-Q 10.22 5/7/2012
Strambi.
10.23# Employment Agreement dated March 28, 2012 betwedeNav, Inc. and 10-Q 10.23 5/7/2012
Michael W. Strambi.
10.23.1# Amendment No. 1 dated December 20, 2013 to the &mpnt Agreement 10-Q 10.23.1 2/6/2014
dated March 28, 2012 between TeleNav, Inc. and &tkV. Strambi.
10.24 Consulting Agreement effective June 16, 2012 betwiegteNav, Inc. and 10-K 10.24 9/7/2012
Douglas Miller.
10.25# Director Offer Letter dated July 30, 2012 betweeteNav, Inc. and Ken Xie. 10-K 10.25 9/7/2012
10.26t SYNC Generation 2 On-Board Navigation Agreementedi®ctober 12, 2009, 10-K 10.26 9/7/2012
by and between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company
10.26.1t Amendment No. 1 effective August 10, 2010 to theNEYGeneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.1 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@08rd between TeleNav,
Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.2% Amendment No. 2 effective February 3, 2011 to th&lS Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.2 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.3t Amendment No. 3 effective February 3, 2011 to th&lS Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.3 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.4% Amendment No. 4 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.4 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.5% Amendment No. 5 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.5 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.6% Amendment No. 6 effective March 31, 2011 to the &G@eneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.6 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.7t Amendment No. 7 effective November 15, 2011 toSK&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.7 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.8t Amendment No. 8 effective January 1, 2012 to th&lS&YGeneration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.8 9/7/2012
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.9% Amendment No. 9 effective May 11, 2012 to the SYGé&heration 2 OmBoard 10-K 10.26.9 9/7/2012
Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2009, asdets by and between
TeleNav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.101 Amendment No. 10 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.10 5/8/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
10.26.11% Amendment No. 11 effective February 3, 2011 toSN&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.11 8/30/2013

Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.
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Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number Date Filed
10.26.12F Amendment No. 12 effective February 28, 2013 toSKW&C Generation 2 On- 10-K 10.26.12 8/30/2013

Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

10.26.13% Amendment No. 13 effective June 17, 2013 to the S\X®é&neration 2 On- 10-K 10.26.13 8/30/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

10.26.1471 Amendment No. 14 effective October 1, 2013 to t&l6 Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.14 11/8/2013
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

10.26.1571 Amendment No. 15 effective November 18, 2013 toSN&C Generation 2 10-Q 10.26.15 2/6/2014
On-Board Navigation Agreement dated October 129288 amended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company.

10.26.1671 Amendment No. 16 effective April 17, 2014 to theNBY Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.16 5/8/2014
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 2@86%mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company

10.26.171 Amendment No. 17 effective January 1, 2015 to tHiBS Generation 2 On- 10-Q 10.26.17 5/7/2015
Board Navigation Agreement dated October 12, 266&mended, by and
between Telenav, Inc. and Ford Motor Company

10.27 Consulting Agreement effective August 29, 2012 lestwTeleNav, Inc. and 10-K 10.27 9/7/2012
Marc Aronson.
10.28# Summary of Nonemployee Director Compensation. 8-K 10.28 12/3/2012
10.29# Amended and Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock @ptial Grant Plan. S-8 4.2 10/29/2012
10.30# Employment Offer Letter dated April 8, 2014 fromldav, Inc. to Vincent 10-K 10.30 8/22/2014
Uttley
10.31# Vincent Uttley Employment Agreement dated April 2014 by and between 10-K 10.31 8/22/201¢
Telenav, Inc. and Vincent Uttley
10.32# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unither 2009 Equity 10-Q 10.32 2/5/201¢t
Incentive Plan
10.33# Form of Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement unither Amended and 10-Q 10.33 2/5/201¢&
Restated Telenav, Inc. 2011 Stock Option and GPéart
10.34# Separation Agreement, dated November 18, 2014nbdyatween Telenav, In 10-Q 10.34 2/5/201¢&
and Vincent Nakayama
21.1 Subsidiaries of the registrant. Filed
herewith
23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking - Filed
Grant Thornton LLP herewith
23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accourking - Filed
Ernst & Young LLP herewith
24.1 Power of Attorney (contained in the signature pagiis Form 10-K). Filed
herewith
31.1 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 deCExecutive Officer. herewith
31.2 Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed
Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 deChinancial Officer. herewith
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Incorporated
Incorporated by Reference
Exhibit by Reference From Exhibit
Number Description From Form Number Date Filed
32.1~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 aeCBxecutive Officer.
32.2~ Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350Adopted Pursuant to Filed herewitt
Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 deChinancial Officer.
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EX 10.16.31

TERRITORY LICENSE NO. 11

Quick Reference Title][****] Route Guidance Applications (for [*****])

Pursuant to the Data License Agreement between H&ERECIlient dated as of the effective date idesdifiherein an
reiterated below (‘Agreement”), HERE and Client hereby agree to the following dddal terms and conditions. F
purposes of this TL, “HEREShall be deemed to also include HERE Europe B.Miclhvagrees by signing below to
bound by the terms and conditions contained inAbgeeement. This TL shall additionally consist ofyagxhibits an(
schedules attached hereto. Capitalized terms hetwise defined in the Agreement or in this TL [irding any exhibitg
schedules or attachments hereto) shall have thaingsaset forth in Section VII below.

Client: Telenav, Inc.
Effective Date of Data License December 1, 2002
Agreement:

Effective Date of Territory License: | Date of lagjnature below

Territory License Term

The term of this TL shall commence on the Effecbate of this TL and continue for a period of féte(15) years frof
the Effective Date, unless terminated as providedthe Agreement (“TL Term ")  provided, however th
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the égment, in the event the TL Term conflicts with them of thg
Agreement, the TL Term shall control, but only wittspect to this specific TL, and the term of thgreement shg
continue for the duration of this TL Term. At thené that [*****] ceases production of [*****], thelicense rights s
forth herein shall be limited, for the durationtb& TL Term, to (i) compiling updated versions loé Data made availak
by HERE and (ii) distributing such updated Compil@dta in the form of update Copies or a master aafpypdate
Compiled Data to the applicable party to which appiate rights have been granted to distribute tgpd@pies (Updatg
License Rights”)Notwithstanding the foregoing, if [*****] exercisegs option to renew the agreement between C
and [*****] for one or more additional [*****], Client shall provide written notice to HERE and alltloé license righ
set forth in this TL shall continue to apply forchuy*****] until such time that [*****] no longer exercises such option.
such event, the Update License Rights shall auioallgtextend for a period of ten (10) years follog/the time at whic
[*****] ceases production of the last [*****] for which [*****] has exercised its option to renew.

Both parties have executed this Agreement by thdir authorized officers as of the Effective Date.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheegp the omitted portions.
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HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC
By: /s/ Jeannie Lee Newman
Name: Jeannie Lee Newman
Title: Senior Legal Counsel
Date: 4/1/15

HERE NORTH AMERICA, LLC
By: /s/ Lori Bellows

Name: Lori Bellows

Title: Director

Date: 4/1/15

HERE EUROPE B.V.

By: /s/ P.W.A.M. van Hutzen
Name: P.W.A.M. van Hutzen
Title: Sr. Mgr. Product Release
Date: 2 APR 2015

HERE EUROPE B.V.

By: /s/ F.M. van Haaren

Name: F.M. van Haaren

Title: Managing Director

2 APR 2015

Telenav, Inc.
By: /s/ Michael Strambi
Name: Michael Strambi
Title: Chief Financ@ficer

Date: 4/3/15

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Biéesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

TERMS AND CONDITIONS

I. Territories

North America Territory (consisting of the Uniteth&s, Canada and Mexico)

Central and South America Territory (consistingM#xico, Brazil, Argentina, Chile, Venezuela, ColamiPert
Uruguay, Martinique, Guadeloupe, French Guiana,n@ay Islands, The Bahamas, Jamaica, Dominican Repait
Ecuador)

Europe Territory (consisting of Eastern Europe ¥rebtern Europe as further defined below)

Middle East Territory (consisting of Oman, Qatamdan, Bahrain, Saudi Arabia, Kuwait, United AratmiEates
Lebanon and Egypt)

Australia/New Zealand Territory (consisting of Auadia and New Zealand)

Turkey Territory

As of the Effective Date of this TL, “Eastern EueSpmeans the following countries: Albania, Belarus,siia &
Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Cyprus, Czech Rbpulkstonia, Hungary, Latvia, Lithuania, MacedgnMoldova
Montenegro, Poland, Romania, Russia, Serbia, Slay8kovenia, Turkey, and Ukraine.

As of the Effective Date of this TL, “Western Eusdpmeans the following countries: Andorra, Austria,lgdem,
Denmark, Eire (Republic of Ireland), Faroe Islan@s|and, France, Germany, Gibraltar, Greece, Gageh Guernse
Iceland, Italy/Vatican City, Jersey, Liechtensteimxembourg, Malta, Man, Monaco, Norway, Portugggn Marinc
Spain, Sweden, Switzerland, The Netherlands, antttdKingdom.

During the TL Term, if HERE releases a HERE Map dommercial use for one or more additional coustite Europ
(i.e., countries that are not identified above)] #me standard pricing made available by HERE ohesusuch addition
country(ies) in the same pricing bundle as the peirmountries identified above, then such additiaoaintry(ies) shall k
deemed to be included in the Europe Territory famppses of this TL for no additional fee. Upon tmenmercial relea:
of Data for any such additional country in EuropERE shall notify Client about whether the Data $oich country
included in the scope of this TL in accordance wiite foregoing and, if so, whether there are amppker requiremen
associated with such Data (e.g., supplier copyngtices). For purposes of the foregoing, “HERE Mageans the non-
navigable or navigable geographic map data relebgddERE for all or any portion of a country for iwh HERE ha
completed its specification and verification proaess.

II. Data Conter

The Data for each Territory consists of (i) BasepM2ata and (ii) any Additional Content, and (iiildékOns, each
further described below. HERE shall make availabl€lient the Data for those countries in the Teryi that have bes
generally released by HERE as of the Effective 4tiis TL as well as updated versions of the Dagale available |
HERE during the TL Term for use in the type of Apations authorized hereunder. Data for certaiioregor areas of
Territory may not be completed and/or may not lmelpced within the TL Term, and will only be avaiabereunder upc
general release by HERE following completion. Qliemay request that HERE deliver Data to Client &alditiona
countries in the Territory that are generally retsh by HERE during the TL Term and HERE shall go@fient if
additional terms and conditions apply to such DBtausing the Data after receipt of any such nofioen HERE, Clier
shall be deemed to be bound by such terms and tmrsjiwhich are hereby incorporated by referencbet part of thi
TL.

A. Base Map Data “ Base Map Data” means, as it relates to any particular country,staedard geographic nr
data (i.e., not including Additional Content) aglamhen generally released for commercial use by HER sucl
country or portion thereof and which is referred(émd further described) in the applicable standanatiuc




documentation provided by HERE as the “Base MaptHat country or portion thereof.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiesp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

For purposes of determining which features andbatis are deemed to be “Base Map Datad covered by tl
License Fees in_Exhibit Aa description of such features and attributesetsforth in the theurrent Attribut
Overview and Usage Guide (or equivalent documertjaravailable to Client as part of the Customethiiea
Reference Guide. HERE may update the list of featand attributes included in “Base Map Ddiat shall nc
reclassify any “Base” attributes as “Premiurm’the event that HERE violates the foregoing, @lighall have tt
right to continue using such attribute as partef‘Base Map Datalicensed hereunder and shall not be oblic
to pay any incremental amount associated with sgeffor the duration of the TL Term.

B. Additional Content “ Additional Content " means Data licensed under this TL in addition &n8ard Data (:
defined above) as such Data is further described atthe URL
http://corporate.navteq.com/additional_content dpsans.html. Additional Content shall be subject to the te
and conditions in such URL and the applicable tdescribed in Section V(A) below. HERE reservesrighbt tc
discontinue Additional Content upon reasonableceoto Client; provided, however, that the lastaste of an
discontinued Additional Content may be includedaity Copies distributed thereafter. Additional Contis no
available on a standalone basis and may be licaarsdsed in conjunction with Data only.

C. Add-Ons. “ Add-Ons " means additional content generally released by HE®R time to time for which HER
does not charge, in its sole discretion, additidicainse fees. HERE shall be under no obligatioretease suc
additional content.

lll. Applicatior

Applications licensed under this T8hall consist solely of Route Guidance Applicatiamsl shall not include any Excluc
Applications.

For the purposes of the foregoing, the followin§irdgons apply:

A. “ Route Guidance Application” means an Embedded Application that uses Data stegbyovide and/or produ
information solely in connection with one or moretioe functions of (a) navigation, (b) routing @ute guidanc:
and (c) positioning. ‘Embedded Application ” means norserver computer devices developed by or for C
(including, without limitation, proprietary computhardware platforms developed by or for Client/andompute
software programs developed by or for Client) dhstied to EndJsers for their own internal business and per:
use and which use resident Copies, consisting ¢& Balely for a Territory and on physical storagedra that i
included in a [*****] solely to provide informatiorto End-Users. For purposes of clarity, “internasiness useshal
be deemed to include, but not be limited to, usesbyal car companies and their rental car custemer

B. “ [****] Route Guidance Application” means a Route Guidance Application developed bBgro€lient and sold ¢
otherwise distributed to [*****] (“[*****]") for installation in [*****] sold in countries in te Territories license
under this TL, which (i) uses the Data and Addiib@ontent set forth under Exhibit A in accordamgth [*****] of
this TL; and (ii) is capable of determining [***nd/or enabling [*****] or [*****] functionality.

C. "Excluded Applications" means any use of the Data in a manner not expragthorized under this TL or otherw
mutually agreed upon between the parties, inclubungnot limited to use of the Data (i) for serbased applicatiol
or with server-based applications (other than sdvased applications which are accessed to delivditiaohl conter
to the device for use in the Route Guidance Appboy; (i) for or with fleet management, dispatoh similal
applications; (iii) for or with geomarketing apg@itons (i.e., an application that analyzes andlayspgeographi
demographic, census and behavioral data to agsist/gers in understanding and modeling relevant basidata ar
making business decisions, including, without lahdn: (a) marketing analysis and segmentation, c{ligtome
prospecting and analysis, (c) sales territory asislgnd definition or (d) distribution network s#election); (iv) for, ¢
in connection with, any systems or functions fotoaatic or autonomous control of vehicle behavincjuding, fol
example, systems or functions for the control ofiigle speed, braking, suspension, fuel, emissibtesdlights
stability, drive train management, visibility enltement and steering; or (v) for or with a softwareplicatior
involving a predefined set of rules and goals

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislkatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.

PAGE 4 OF «






EX 10.16.31

built for End-User participation, focused primardy competition and/or amusement (“Gamétipt uses Data in t
operation of the Game.

In addition, to the extent that Client has anofflelunder which Client is licensed for applicatigt®ther Applications)
that would otherwise fall within the definition éfpplications under this TL, such Other Applicatiostsall be exclude
from the license granted under this TL.

IV. Licensed Us

The pricing and associated terms set forth in Thisshall apply only with respect to the use andrifigtion of Copies ¢
Compiled Data to [*****] or a third party designaleby [*****] to be further distributed for use in &ute Guidanc
Applications to be installed in [*****] by [*****] or its subsidiaries (“[*****]") with [*****] and any subsequent [*****] for
which [*****] has exercised its option to renew @ccordance with the “Territory License Terprovision on page 1 of tt
TL, subject to the terms and conditions of thisarid the Agreement. Such use of the Data by Clieait be limited to

A. Compiling any portion of the Data (“Compiled 2§ into Client's own proprietary data format (which shall
include third party or public domain formats, uslegherwise mutually agreed upon between the gardied, usin
the most current version of Data delivered by HEBE lient (except as otherwise required by [****&hd Clients
development schedule), making copies of the Comiflata for any portion of a single Territory eithstored o
physical storage media or in the form of electrdiilies suitable for transmission to an Edder and on physic
storage media that is included in [*****] (collesttly, “Copies”); and

B. Distributing such Copies of Compiled Data to [**%br a third party designated by [*****] for furthedistribution tc
End-Users (in the case of electronic files by transgngtiind storing the same directly onto physicalase media th
is included in [*****]), solely for the End-Usersbwn internal business and personal use with thdiégimn. Clien
shall use commercially reasonable efforts to erftine terms and conditions of its distribution agnent with [*****]
and/or a third party designated by [*****], whichhall include the obligation for [*****] and/or a tid party
designated by [*****] to comply with the applicabléerms and conditions set forth herein. Notwithdiag the
foregoing, the Compiled Data may not be distributedny HERE competitor, including [*****]. For sakof clarity
the foregoing restriction shall not restrict em@eg of a HERE competitor, including [*****], formaing the Data i
a Permitted Application licensed to such employeesheir personal use.

V. Fees to HERE

A. License Fees License fees hereunder consist of the base kcéemss applicable to the Base Map Data fol
applicable Territory (“Base License Feeslpmbined with the amounts due for any Additionahteat that is mac
accessible for use in the Application (“Addition@bntent Fees”)For the avoidance of doubt, the pricing for ¢
Territory in the tables in_Exhibit Aeflects the total amount due to HERE for each Ceafer combining the Ba
License Fees and the applicable Additional Conkergs (collectively, the “License FeesThe pricing set forth |
Exhibit A is expressly conditioned on compliance with theunsgnents set forth in Section VII(A) and VII(B) dfis
TL (i.e., Copy Protection and [*****]).

B. License Fee Reports & Due Datdsicense Fee reports for Copies distributed irhezaendar month are due by
[*****] day of the following calendar month (e.gthe fee report for [*****] is due by [*****]). Foll owing receipt ¢
such report, HERE shall invoice Client for the amisudue. In addition, Client shall include in iteénse Fee repo
the following information by separate line item§: the number of [*****] distributed in each Terity; (ii) the
Application included in each [*****]; and (iii) theData used in such Application for such [*****] ditbuted in th
applicable Territory. License Fees shall be duegaid by the [*****] day following the end of theatendar month fc
which the License Fee report is provided (e.genge fees for [*****] are due by [*****]).

In the event Client is unable to provide the Liaefige reports by the [*****] day of the applicaldalendar month fi
which such report is due because [*****] has nobyided information to Client in order for Client pyovide suc
License Fee report, Client shall be granted antiaddi [*****] days to provide such License Fee mp provided the
Client uses good faith efforts to procure suchrm@tion from [*****]. In the event

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislkatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

that the reporting has not been procured from [*¥y the payment due date, Client shall use reablEnmethods
estimate the License Fee report and provide HERE suich calculations. Any differences betweenh@ éstimate
amounts reported and paid and (ii) the actual atsowiil be reconciled and invoiced/refunded witffitt**] days of
receipt of the actual reported amounts.

Client shall use commercially reasonable effortpriavide HERE with norinding forecasts for [*****], but only t
the extent that Client receives such forecasts froti].

C. Currency License Fees hereunder shall be paid in U.Sax

VI. EndUser Terms Attached as Exhibit B Except as otherwise agreed by the parties, imsihnces where the Applicat
uses, accesses, reflects or relies upon any pasfitime Data to deliver information to End-Userdieft shall provide End-
Users with a copy of the End-User Terms and shallige conspicuous notice to Ettbers prior to their use of, or acces:
any portion of the Data that their use thereofuisject to the EndJser Terms. Notwithstanding any termination or exqgor
of the Agreement or this TL, an End-Useright to use a Copy of the Compiled Data with &@plication under tr
Agreement and this TL shall continue so long as dtied-Users use of the Application is in compliance with t@tms an
conditions of Client’s then current end user lieeagreement for the Application.

VII. Additional Provisions

A. Copy Protection Each Copy must include a state of the art saiufo either (a) preventing copying of content od
Copy, whether by Entllsers, Distributors or otherwise, onto physicatage media or via transfer over the Intern
other electronic communication means, or (b) préagruse of the Copy other than by a specificalltharized End-
User or Enddser device (e.g., using lock/unlock keys). Priodistributing Copies, Client shall provide to HEREct
information as reasonably requested by HERE touaalthe efficacy of the copy protection solution.

B. [****]. Client has been informed by HERE thdlhe pricing included in HERE’ quotation to [*****] was express
subject to a condition under which HERE would leated [*****] for use in [****]. HERE acknowledges that it ha
agreed to [*****] such condition from this TL basesblely on the fact that [*****] agreed to [*****]such requireme
in the [*****] provided to HERE.

C. Supplier Terms The Data provided hereunder is subject to suppéiguirements and restrictions, which curre
include those set forth in Exhibit l@reto.

D. HERE Marks & LegendsFor purposes of this TL, Client's obligations enthe Agreement to display HERE Mg
& Legends shall be satisfied as follows: Clientlshclude HERE Marks and the applicable HERE cagiytr notice
(as specified in the HERE Identity Guidelines) dmidd party copyright and similar notices and led®ifas specifie
in the Agreement, the HERE Identity Guidelines andtherwise by HERE) in the Route Guidance Appikcaand/o
owner’s manual, or such other placement of the HERE M&rkegends as may be mutually agreed by the paltiig
in all cases subject to [*****] requirements.

E. No [****]. No licenses or other rights are granted reeinder in connection with any [*****] related to"{**]
("), [*****] shall be granted solely pursuant to a separate [*****] between the parties.

F. [*****] and_[*****]. Client may [*****] to [*****] and when suc h a [*****] is determined, Client may suppleme
the [*****] with [*****]; provided that in all cases, Client will not [*****] any existing value or dtibute of a [*****)
when such attribute contains any value. Such [*}*rfay include [*****] not available from [*****] or a [*****] to
acquire [*****], For the avoidance of doubt, whef*f**] and [*****] have attributes, Client will always use tt
[*****] of the [*****]. If a [*****] is null, then  Client may [*****] if the [*****] contains [*****]  for the attribute.
[*****] does not [*****] to any [*****] then Client may [*****] the [*****]. In addition, subject to Section IV
(“Licensed Use”) of this TL, Client may [*****] ugig the Data for [*****] and [*****] (e.g. [*****]).

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

VIII.  Definitions

A.

“ [*****] " means functionality that enables a [*****] Route @ance Application for, or in connection with,
systems or functions for [*****] of [*****], including, for example, systems or functions for the [*§*of
[*****] and [*****] .

“ Customer Technical Reference Guidé means the technical product specifications and meotation the
make up the Customer technical Reference Guide ithabade available to Client through the HERE
Download Center.

“HERE B2B Download Center” means the ofine data delivery service made available to CllsnHERE on
24x7 basis (except for downtime due to system ramance) and through which HERE makes Data andec
documentation available for download by Client.

“ ] " means a [*****] method and system for [*****] the*}***] and other [*****], based on [*****], of
[****] on the [*****] for some [*****] (typically  [*****]) and [*****] of [*****] and other [*****] o  f interes
such as [****] and others.

“ [****] " means functionality that enables a [*****] Route {@ance Application to provide [*****] regardin
[*****] to the End User such as [*****], but whichdoes not provide [*****] functionality.

“ Multi-Year Annual Copy Subscription ” means that in addition to the distribution of thi&ial Copy distribute
to an End-User with an Application (the “Initial @@), Client obligates itself to provide Update Copiesthe
same End-User on an annual basis beginning in-tie] annual period following distribution to theend-User o
the Initial Copy and continuing for up to [*****] anual periods (i.e., “[*****]") thereafter. MultiYear Annug
Copy Subscriptions are automatically included ia #pplication price, and thus automatically proddevith
respect to all units of a product line of an Apation, and for which the End-User cannot opt out.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

I. License Fees per Copy for Route Guidanceliéatons.

Client shall pay HERE the License Fee per Copyimection with Route Guidance Applications setifantthe applicable table
below for each Copy of the Data distributed herewmdntaining all or any portion of the Data idéatl in the Content Bundle in
the table below. The applicable License Fee foh &mpy shall be determined based on the TerritbBata contained in such
Copy. For sake of clarity, Route Guidance Applimasi may not use all or any portion of the Datafified in a Content Bundle
(including[*****] _and[*****] ) for enabling*****] _or [*****] _unless the License Fees per Copy under Sectigr pad by
Client to HERE.

1. License Fees for North America Territary

NORTH AMERICA TERRITORY LICENSE FEE

CONTENT BUNDLE A PER COPY

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

2D Junction Visuals

Core POls

Supplemental Listings
Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

| kkkkk |

Extended Navigation

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
HERE Voice for Traffic
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Signs, Signals and Warnings
World Map

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

NORTH AMERICA TERRITORY LICENSE FEE

CONTENT BUNDLE B PER COPY

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns [
Voice Phonetic Transcriptions

HERE Voice for Traffic

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Signs, Signals and Warnings
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****]  Venues
World Map

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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NORTH AMERICA TERRITORY LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
HERE Voice for Traffic

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Signs, Signals and Warnings

| *kkkk |

2D Junction Visuals
Point Addressing
Extended Navigation

[*****] _ Venues
World Map

ADDITIONAL

NORTH AMERICA TERRITORY LICENSE EEE

Additional Content Fee PER COPY

Truck Attributes i

*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Fee[tf**] will be applied to the per Copy License Feeset fortl
above for use of Truck Attributes Additional Cortténa Route Guidance Application.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheegp the omitted portions.
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2.

License Fees for Central and South America Tewritor

CENTRAL AND SOUTH AMERICA
TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE A

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

2D Junction Visuals
Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

HERE Traffic Patterns

HERE Voice for Traffic

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| *kkkk |

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiesp the omitted portions.
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CENTRAL AND SOUTH AMERICA
TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE B

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

HERE Traffic Patterns

HERE Voice for Traffic

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****] _ Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| *kkkk |

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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CENTRAL AND SOUTH AMERICA
TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

HERE Traffic Patterns

HERE Voice for Traffic

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****]  Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| kkkkk |

CENTRAL AND SOUTH AMERICA
TERRITORY

Additional Content Fee
Truck Attributes

ADDITIONAL
LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

$ | *kkkk I *

EX 10.16.31

*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Fee['df**] will be applied to the per Copy License Fseset forth above for u
of Truck Attributes Additional Content in a Routei@ance Application.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

3. License Fees for Middle East Territary

MIDDLE EAST TERRITORY LICENSE FEE

CONTENT BUNDLE A PER COPY

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings [
Core POls

Supplemental Listings

2D Junction Visuals

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
World Map

MIDDLE EAST TERRITORY LICENSE FEE

CONTENT BUNDLE B PER COPY

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings ]
Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

Venues




World Map

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.
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*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Fee [6***]

MIDDLE EAST TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****]  Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

| *kkkk |

MIDDLE EAST TERRITORY

Additional Content Fee

Truck Attributes

ADDITIONAL
LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

$ | kkkkk | *

Attributes Additional Content in a Route Guidangephcation.

EX 10.16.31

will be applied to the per Copy License Fees sehfabove for use of Tru

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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4. License Fees for Europe Territory

EUROPE TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE A

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

2D Junction Visuals

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

2D Junction Visuals

HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls

Signs, Signals and Warnings
World Map

Postal Code Points Content for Great Britain
Postal Code Points Content for The Netherlands

LICENSE FEE
PER COPY IN US
DOLLARS**

| *kkkk |

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.
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EUROPE TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE B

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

2D Junction Visuals

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls
Signs, Signals and Warnings
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****] _ Venues
World Map

Postal Code Points Content for Great Britain
Postal Code Points Content for The Netherlands

LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

| kkkkk |

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EUROPE TERRITORY
CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content

2D Junction Visuals

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions

Postal Code Points Content for Great Britain
Postal Code Points Content for The Netherlands

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls
Signs, Signals and Warnings
2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****] _ Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| kkkkk |

EUROPE TERRITORY

Additional Content Fee

Truck Attributes

ADDITIONAL
LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

$ | kkkkk | *

EX 10.16.31

*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Feg['sf**] will be applied to the per Copy License Feeset forth above for u
of Truck Attributes Additional Content in a Routei@ance Application.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskaie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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5. License Fees for Australia/New Zealand.

AUSTRALIA/NEW ZEALAND
TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE A

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content
2D Junction Visuals
3D Landmarks Content
Actual Address Range
Brand Icons

Extended Lanes FC1-5
Extended Listings
Core POls
Supplemental Listings

| kkkkk |

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns

Safety Camera Alerts

Signs, Signals and Warnings

Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content

[*****] _ Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Hook Turns

World Map

[*****]

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.
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AUSTRLIA/NEW ZEALAND TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE B

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content
Actual Address Range
Brand Icons

Extended Lanes FC 1-5
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns
Safety Camera Alerts

Signs, Signals and Warnings
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
[*****]  Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****]  Venues

Hook Turns

World Map

LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

| *kkkk |

[*****]

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheegp the omitted portions.
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AUSTRALIA/NEW ZEALAND
TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

3D Landmarks Content
Actual Address Range
Brand Icons

Extended Lanes FC 1-5
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

HERE Traffic Patterns
Safety Camera Alerts

Signs, Signals and Warnings
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content

2D Junction Visuals
Point Addressing
Extended Navigation
[*****]  Venues
Hook Turns

World Map

[****] _ Voice Phonetic Transcriptions

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| kkkkk |

[*****]

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskatie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.
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6. License Fees for Turkey

AUSTRALIA/NEW ZEALAND

TERRITORY

Additional Content Fee
Truck Attributes

ADDITIONAL
LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

|*****| *

TURKEY TERRITORY

CONTENT BUNDLE A

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

2D Junction Visuals

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

Generalized Junction Visuals
HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls

Signs, Signals and Warnings
World Map

LICENSE FEE
PER COPY IN US
DOLLARS

|*****|

EX 10.16.31

*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Fee['df**] will be applied to the per Copy License Fseset forth above for u
of Truck Attributes Additional Content in a Rout@i@ance Application.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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TURKEY TERRITORY
CONTENT BUNDLE B

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

2D Junction Visuals

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

Generalized Junction Visuals
HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls

Signs, Signals and Warnings
Basic 3D City Models

2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****] _ Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

| kkkkk |

EX 10.16.31

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislkaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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TURKEY TERRITORY
CONTENT BUNDLE C

Base Map Data

2D Footprints Content

2D Junction Visuals

3D Landmarks Content

Brand Icons

Environmental Zones Content
Extended Lanes FC 1-5 Content
Extended Listings

Core POls

Supplemental Listings

Fuel Types

Generalized Junction Visuals
HERE Traffic Patterns

Voice Phonetic Transcriptions
Speed Limits FC 1-5 Content
Taxi Stand Point POls

Signs, Signals and Warnings
2D Junction Visuals

Point Addressing

Extended Navigation

[*****]  Venues
World Map

LICENSE FEE

PER COPY

|*****|

TURKEY TERRITORY

Additional Content Fee

Truck Attributes

ADDITIONAL
LICENSE FEE
PER COPY

|*****| *

EX 10.16.31

*For sake of clarity, an Additional Content Fed8#**] will be applied to the per Copy License Fees sehfabove for use of Truck
Attributes Additional Content in a Route Guidangephcation.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.

Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

II.  Additional License Fees per Copy ft5r***] Route Guidance Applications (with*****] only )

The following additional License Fees per Copy lshpply for use of the specified Data in the taiddow for “[*****]”  [*****]
Route Guidance Applications for the Territoriesafoed in the table below. The License Fees peryCsimll include the [*****]
for use of the [*****], subject to the terms and maitions of that [*****], made by and between Clieand HERE Global B.V
[*****], and shall be paid to HERE in accordance tivithis TL, in connection with the [*****] Route Gdance Application:
regardless of whether [*****] within such Applicain is [*****] or [*****] by [*****]. For sake of cl arity, Client shall pay f
HERE the License Fees per Copy below in additicthéd_icense Fees per Copy under Section | above.

Additional License Fee Per Copy fo*****] Route Guidance Applications

(Wlth [*****] )

Central and
South America |Europe Territory Turkey
Territory

Middle East Australia/New
Territory Zealand

North America

Cantent Territory

[*****]  Additional
Content pluone of
the following
“Content Bundles”
for the applicable
Territory as defined
under Section 1(1)-
(7) of this Exhibit A:

[*****] (as [*****] [*****] [*****] [*****] [*****] [--**** ]

applicable for each
Territory and subject
to payment of Liceng
Fees for the

corresponding conte
bundle in Section | of
this Exhibit A)

One of the following
Content Bundles for
the applicable

Territory as defined
under Section 1(1)-
(7) of this Exhibit A:

[*****] (aS [*****] [*****] [*****] [*****] [*****] ['r**** ]

applicable for each
Territory and subject
to payment of Liceng
Fees for the
corresponding conte
bundle in Section |
above)

I Additional License Fees per Copy {ét***] Route Guidance Applications (witH*****] only )

The following additional License Fees per Copytte License Fees set forth in Section | above sfExihibit A shall
apply for use of the specified Data in the tablewdor “[*****]” [*****] Route Guidance Applicatio ns for the
Territories specified in the table below. The Liserrees per Copy shall include the [*****] for uskthe [*****], subject
to the terms and conditions of that [*****], made land between Client and HERE Global B.V., [*****nd shall be pa
to HERE in accordance with this TL, in connectidittvthe [*****] Route Guidance Applications, regdess of whether
[*****] within such Application is [****] or [**** *] by [*****]. For sake of clarity, Client shall pg to HERE the
License Fees per Copy below in addition to the hseeFees per Copy under Section | above.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asteriskaie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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Content

Additional License Fee Per Copy fo*****] Route Guidance Applications

North America
Territory

Central and
South America
Territory

(Wlth [*****] )

Europe Territory

Turkey

Middle East
Territory

EX 10.16.31

Australia/New
Zealand

[*****]  Additional
Content pluone of
the following
“Content Bundles”
for the applicable
Territory as defined
under Section 1(1)-
(7) of this Exhibit A:
[*****] (aS
applicable for each
Territory and subject
to payment of Liceng
Fees for the
corresponding conte
bundle in Section | 0
this Exhibit A)

f

[*****]

[*****]

[*****]

[*****]

[*****]

|

kkkkk ]

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislkatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

Multi-Year Annual Copy Subscriptions ff***] Route Guidance Applications For each Multi-Year Annual Copy

Subscription for [*****] Route Guidance Applicatia@) the License Fee per Copy for the applicableitbeyrspecified
herein is calculated by [*****] (i) the Per Copy ténse Fees for the applicable Initial Copy (inatgdany applicable
discounts specified in Table 1 below) by (ii) th&f*] provided in Table 1 below based upon the f**] and [*****] of
the Multi-Year Annual Copy Subscription as provided able 1.

Program

[*****] [*****] [*****] *****]

[*****] [*****] [*****] [*‘ ‘***]

[*****], The License Fees set forth in Sectionsll,and Il of this Exhibit A are subject to a [***{ from [*****] through
[*****] and [*****] through [*****] of the TL Term, commencing with Copies distributed in [*****]. Fagake of clarity,
the [*****] shall only apply for the [*****] of [** ***] and [*****] (i.e., [*****] shall not apply in [*****]). The resulting
per Copy License Fee from the [*****] applied in{**] shall be applied for the remaining annual pEds during the TL
Term. For example, the License Fee per Copy fot&RGuidance Applications using [*****] in the [****] is as follows:

[*****]

By way of further example, the License Fee per ClopyRoute Guidance Applications with [*****] usin§F****] for the
[*****] is as follows:

[*****]

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislaie been omitted and filed separately with the B&esiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

The data (“Data”)s provided for your personal, internal use onlg awot for resale. It is protected by copyright, amdubject t
the following terms and conditions which are agréedy you, on the one hand, and [CLIENT] (“[CLIENJ and its licensol
(including their licensors and suppliers) on theeothand.

© 20XX HERE [Insert any applicable copyright nosces required for the country-specific Data beisgd). All rights reserved.
The Data for areas of Canada includes informatdiert with permission from Canadian authoritiesluiding: © Her Majesty th
Queen in Right of Canada, © Queen's Printer fora@mt © Canada Post CorporatipiGeoBase ®, €Department of Natur
Resources Canada.

HERE holds a non-exclusive license from the Unii¢ates Postal Service® to publish and sell ZIP+#@rmation.
©United States Postal Service® 20XX. Prices areestdablished, controlled or approved by the Untades Postal Service®@he
following trademarks and registrations are ownedheyUSPS: United States Postal Service, USPSZ kvt
The Data for Mexico includes certain data fromitogd Nacional de Estadistica y Geografia.

Terms and Conditions
Personal Use Only You agree to use this Data together with [insarne of CLIENTS authorized Application] for the sol
personal, non-commercial purposes for which youeviieensed, and not for service bureau, tsharing or other similar purpos
Accordingly, but subject to the restrictions settioin the following paragraphs, you agree not theowise reproduce, coj
modify, decompile, disassemble, create any devieatiorks of, or reverse engineer any portion of tata, and may not trans
or distribute it in any form, for any purpose, exct the extent permitted by mandatory laws.
Restrictions. Except where you have been specifically licensedlo so by [CLIENT], and without limiting the preainc
paragraph, you may not use this Data (a) with anpgycts, systems, or applications installed or mtfse connected to or
communication with vehicles, capable of vehicleigation, positioning, dispatch, real time routedgrice, fleet management
similar applications; or (b) with or in communigeati with any positioning devices or any mobile oreMsseonnected electror
or computer devices, including without limitatioellalar phones, palmtop and handheld computerseisagnd personal digi
assistants or PDAs.
Warning. The Data may contain inaccurate or incompletermétion due to the passage of time, changing ristances, sourc
used and the nature of collecting comprehensivgrggedic data, any of which may lead to incorrestifis.
No Warranty. This Data is provided to you “as igshd you agree to use it at your own risk. [CLIENIRH its licensors (and th
licensors and suppliers) make no guarantees, wEmuE®NS or warranties of any kind, express orligdp arising by law ¢
otherwise, including but not limited to, contentiatity, accuracy, completeness, effectivenessalsiitiy, fitness for a particul
purpose, usefulness, use or results to be obt&ioedthis Data, or that the Data or server willdmnterrupted or error-free.
Disclaimer of Warranty [CLIENT] AND ITS LICENSORS (INCLUDING THEIR LICENSORS AND SUPPLIERS) DISCLAII
ANY WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, OF QUALITY, PHRFORMANCE, MERCHANTABILITY, FITNESS FOR ,
PARTICULAR PURPOSE OR NONNFRINGEMENT. Some States, Territories and Cousti® not allow certain warrar
exclusions, so to that extent the above exclusiay not apply to you.

Disclaimer of Liability : [CLIENT] AND ITS LICENSORS (INCLUDING THEIR LICENSORS AND SUPPLIERS) SHAL
NOT BE LIABLE TO YOU: IN RESPECT OF ANY CLAIM, DEMAID OR ACTION, IRRESPECTIVE OF THE NATURE (
THE CAUSE OF THE CLAIM, DEMAND OR ACTION ALLEGING AY LOSS, INJURY OR DAMAGES, DIRECT O
INDIRECT, WHICH MAY RESULT FROM THE USE OR POSSE$8Y OF THE INFORMATION; OR FOR ANY LOSS C
PROFIT, REVENUE, CONTRACTS OR SAVINGS, OR ANY OTHHRRECT, INDIRECT, INCIDENTAL, SPECIAL Ol
CONSEQUENTIAL DAMAGES ARISING OUT OF YOUR USE OF ORIABILITY TO USE THIS INFORMATION, ANY
DEFECT IN THE INFORMATION, OR THE BREACH OF THESEERMS OR CONDITIONS, WHETHER IN AN ACTIO
IN CONTRACT OR TORT OR BASED ON A WARRANTY, EVEN IFCLIENT] OR ITS LICENSORS HAVE BEE!
ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES. Somedsts, Territories and Countries do not allow certaibility
exclusions or damages limitations, so to that éxtemabove may not apply to you.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheiegp the omitted portions.

PAGE 28 OF
28




EX 10.16.31

Export Control. [CLIENT] shall not export from anywhere any paftthe Data or any direct product thereof exceptdamplianc
with, and with all licenses and approvals requinader, applicable export laws, rules and regulatjancluding but not limited t
the laws, rules and regulations administered byGfiee of Foreign Assets Control of the U.S. Depant of Commerce and 1
Bureau of Industry and Security of the U.S. Deparitof Commerce. To the extent that any such exaa, rules or regulatio
prohibit HERE from complying with any of its oblitians hereunder to deliver or distribute Data, siadlare shall be excused ¢
shall not constitute a breach of this Agreement.

Entire Agreement These terms and conditions constitute the eagreement between [CLIENT] (and its licensors,udoig thei
licensors and suppliers) and you pertaining tostiigect matter hereof, and supersedes in theregntany and all written or ol
agreements previously existing between us withaetsio such subject matter.

Governing Law. The above terms and conditions shall be govebyetie laws of the State of Illinois [insert “Nettads” where
European HERE Data is used], without giving eftecti) its conflict of laws provisions, or (ii) thenited Nations Convention f
Contracts for the International Sale of Goods, Whicexplicitly excluded. You agree to submit te flrisdiction of the State
lllinois [insert “The Netherlandsivhere European HERE Data is used] for any andigiuties, claims and actions arising fror
in connection with the Data provided to you herexrnd

Government End Userdf the Data is being acquired by or on behalfhef United States government or any other entikise
or applying rights similar to those customarilyiciad by the United States government, this Data ‘isommercial item’as ths
term is defined at 48 C.F.R. (“FAR”) 2.101, is leed in accordance with these Boser Terms, and each copy of Data deliv
or otherwise furnished shall be marked and embeddeappropriate with the following “Notice of Usafid shall be treated
accordance with such Notice:

Notice of Use
Contractor (Manufacturer/ Supplier) Name: HERE
Contractor (Manufacturer/Supplier) Address:
c/o Nokia 425 West Randolph Street, Chicago, liEirgD606

This Data is a commercial item as defined in FARD2.and is subject to these End-User Terms undighwp
this Data was provided.

© 1987 - 20XX HERE - All rights reserved.

If the Contracting Officer, federal government aggnor any federal official refuses to use the tef@rovided herein, tl
Contracting Officer, federal government agencyamy federal official must notify HERE prior to sémdg additional or alternati
rights in the Data.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Besiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheigp the omitted portions.
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EX 10.16.31

l. As of the Effective Date of this TL, notice of trequirements and restrictions imposed on licensEBata (includin
Additional Content) as required by third party sligms or by governmental or regulatory authoritiesprovides
through the link made available through the HERB Bibwnload Center.

[*****] Certain portions denoted with an asterislatie been omitted and filed separately with the Béesiand Exchange Commission.
Confidential treatment has been requested witheegp the omitted portions.
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Exhibit 21.1

SUBSIDIARIES OF TELENAYV, INC.

TeleNav Shanghai Inc. (PRC)

TeleNav Xi'an Software Limited (PRC)

TeleNav Hong Kong, Limited (Hong Kong)

TELENAV DO BRASIL SERVICOS DE LOCALIZACAO LTDA (Brail)
TeleNav UK Limited (U.K.)

Thinknear, Inc. (Delaware)

Telenav GmbH

Telenav Software SRL

Telenav G.K.



Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We have issued our reports dated August 24, 20ith respect to the consolidated financial statemdirtancial statement schedule,
and internal control over financial reporting ingdd in the Annual Report of Telenav, Inc. on Fo@rKlfor the year ended June 30, 2015. We
consent to the incorporation by reference of sajobrts in the Registration Statements of Telenax,dn Form S-8 (File No. 333-198317,
effective August 22, 2014; File No. 333-195815¢efive May 8, 2014, File No. 333-190901, effecthggust 30, 2013; File No. 333-184638,
effective October 29, 2012; File No. 333-18378%edtfve September 7, 2012; File No. 333-17677%affe September 9, 2011; and File No.
333-166780, effective May 13, 2010).

/sl GRANT THORNTON LLP

San Jose, California
August 24, 2015



Exhibit 23.2

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accountingirm

We consent to the incorporation by reference inRbgistration Statements (Form S-8 Nos. 333-1983335195815, 333-190901, 3384638
333-183787, 333-176773 and 333-166780) pertairdrige 2009 Equity Incentive Plan, Non-Plan Induceifestricted Stock Unit Award
Agreement, Amended and Restated 2011 Stock Optidrzaant Plan, 2002 Executive Stock Option Plad, 8899 Stock Option Plan of
Telenav, Inc. of our report dated August 22, 20épt for Notes 5 and 13, as to which the dafaigust 24, 2015) with respect to the
consolidated financial statements and schedulest#riRv, Inc. included in this Annual Report (FortnK) for the year ended June 30, 2015.

/sl Ernst & Young LLP

San Jose, California
August 24, 2015



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF THE PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a)AND 15d-14(a),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

[, Dr. HP Jin, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Telenav, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanadglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date: August 24, 2015 By: /s/ Dr.HP JIN
DR. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ahatCExecutive
Officer




Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF THE CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT RULES 13a-14(a)AND 15d-14(a),
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANESOXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Strambi, certify that:
1. | have reviewed this annual report on FornKl6F Telenav, Inc

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notatomny untrue statement of a material fact ortamstate a material fact necessary t
make the statements made, in light of the circuntets.under which such statements were made, nigadisg with respect to the
period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemeamtd other financial information included in théport, fairly present in all material
respects the financial condition, results of operatand cash flows of the registrant as of, amdtife periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andrke responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure controls and procedures (as
defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15&))}%nd internal control over financial reportirag defined in Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registramd &ave:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedareaused such disclosure controls and procedotee designed under our
supervision, to ensure that material informatidatieg to the registrant, including its consolidhtubsidiaries, is made
known to us by others within those entities, pattidy during the period in which this report ishg prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over finanadglarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial reporting to be designed
under our supervision, to provide reasonable assareegarding the reliability of financial repodgiand the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in ataace with generally accepted accounting principles

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presentglsi report our conclusions
about the effectiveness of the disclosure contintsprocedures, as of the end of the period cousyeldis report based on
such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in thestegnt’s internal control over financial reportitigat occurred during the
registrant’s most recent fiscal quarter (the regigts fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an aimaport) that has materially
affected, or is reasonably likely to materiallyeaft, the registrant’s internal control over finalceporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer antdve disclosed, based on our most recent evatuatimternal control over financial
reporting, to the registrant’s auditors and theitte@mmittee of the registrastboard of directors (or persons performing thevaden!
functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weakses in the design or operation of internal cbotrer financial reporting
which are reasonably likely to adversely affectrdgistrant’s ability to record, process, summaaizd report financial
information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that inveadvmanagement or other employees who have a s@mifiole in the
registrant’s internal control over financial repogt

Date:August 24, 2015 By: [/s/ MICHAEL STRAMBI
Michael Strambi
Chief Financial Officer




Exhibit 32.1
CERTIFICATION OF PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFI CER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANTO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Dr. HP Jin, the president and chief executivicef of Telenav, Inc. (the “Company”), certify ftre purposes of 18 U.S.C.
Section 1350, as adopted pursuant to Section 9¢&dBarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that, to the bésty knowledge,

0] the Annual Report of the Company on Form 10eKthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 (the “R&pdully complies
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet]; an

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: August 24, 2015 By: /s/ Dr.HP JIN

Dr. HP Jin

Chairman of the Board of Directors, President ah@kfOExecutive
Officer




Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C. § 1350, AS ADOPTED PURSUANTO SECTION 906
OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael Strambi, the chief financial officer ©&lenav, Inc. (the “Company”), certify for the poges of 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as
adopted pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanesy@ydt of 2002, that, to the best of my knowledge,

0] the Annual Report of the Company on Form 1@ikthe fiscal year ended June 30, 2015 (the “R&pdully complies
with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(djhef Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amendet]; an

(i) the information contained in the Report faigyesents, in all material respects, the finarmaldition and results of
operations of the Company.

Date: August 24, 2015 By: [/s/ MICHAEL STRAMBI
Michael Strambi
Chief Financial Officer




